
 

1 of 5 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, February 17, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Reverend Daniel Haas, St. John’s United Church of Christ, Rosenberg) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to THE CHURCH for a Donation of Cross-fit Exercise Equipment to the Rosenberg 
Police Department. (Dallis Warren, Police Chief) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to THE CHURCH for a Donation of $3,500 for the Purchase and Installation of 
Soccer Field Lighting at Community Park. (Darren McCarthy, Parks Director) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to 
have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for February 03, 2015. (Linda Cernosek, City 
Secretary) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1916, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Asset Disposition Services Agreement, by and between the 
City and PropertyRoom.Com, for professional auction services. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on an Amending Plat of Beltway Investments, Inc., Amending Plat No. 1, 
plat of 4.6075-acre tract of land, consisting of Reserves A and B, Block 1 of Beltway Investments, Inc., a 
4.6075 tract of land out of a called 356 acre tract of land, recorded in Fort Bend County Clerk’s File Nos. 
9119144 and 2007085589 and Tract II, a 1.2626 acre tract of land recorded under Fort Bend County 
Clerk’s File No. 2008008988, in the Wm. Lusk Survey, Abstract 276, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; 0 lots, 2 reserves, 1 block.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Business Park Drive and Innovation Court Street 
Dedication, a subdivision of 6.728 acres containing 3,462 L.F. of R.O.W. out of the S.B. Pentecost Survey, 
A-378, Fort Bend County, Texas.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 



 

2 of 5 
 

 E. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Rosenberg 36 Industrial Park, a subdivision of 18.214 acres 
of  land being a partial replat of Lot No. 17 of Rosenberg Farms Subdivision (Volume 3, Page 575; Deed 
Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and Volume 4, Page 25; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) 
being a 1.468 acre tract of land (Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2014103215) together with the 
remainder of a call 17.135 acre tract (Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2014072299) and with a call 0.754 
acre tract (Fort Bend County Clerk’s File No. 2012014590), all being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract 
No. 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 0 lots, 2 reserves, 1 block.  (Travis Tanner, Executive 
Director of Community Development) 
 

 F. Consideration of and action on a Short Form Final Plat of Brazos Town Center Collision, a subdivision of 
2.2375 acres of land being a partial replat of Reserve “E”, replat of Reserve “C”, Fort Bend Business 
Center, Section Two (Slide No. 2008A; F.B.C.P.R.), in the Robert E. Handy Survey, Abstract No. 187, City 
of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 1 block, 1 reserve.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of 
Community Development) 
 

 G. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Cottonwood Section Three-C, a subdivision of 8.368 acres 
of land located in the S.A. Stone Survey No. 10, A-392, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 41 
lots, 1 reserve, 3 blocks.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

 H. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1926, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
and accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Public Utility Easement being 3.811 acres (166,027 square 
feet) of land, between the City of Rosenberg and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for public utilities and 
related facilities, generally associated with Rosenberg Business Park. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director 
of Community Development) 
 

 I. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1927, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute 
and accept, for and on behalf of the City, a Public Utility Easement being 0.196 acres (8,538 square 
feet) of land, between the City of Rosenberg and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for public utilities and 
related facilities, generally located west of Business Park Drive and associated with Rosenberg Business 
Park. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

 J. Consideration of and action on Quarterly Financial Report and Quarterly Investment Report for quarter 
ending December 31, 2014.  (Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  Review and discuss proposed branding for new elevated water storage tank, and take action as 
necessary. (Angela Fritz, Executive Director of Information Services) 
 

3.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1921, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, 
for and on behalf of the City, a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services for the 2015 
General Municipal Election and Special Charter Amendment Election, by and between the City and 
Fort Bend County, Texas. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

4.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-03, an Ordinance providing that a General 
Municipal Election be held on May 09, 2015, and a Run-Off Election, if required, on June 13, 2015, for 
the purpose of electing a Mayor and six Council Members; directing the giving of notice of such 
elections; and providing details relating to the holding of such election. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

5.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-07, an Ordinance ordering a Special Election to 
be held on May 09, 2015, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters, for adoption or rejection, 
one (1) proposed amendment to the existing home-rule charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, as 
amended; directing the giving of notice of such elections; and making provisions for the conduct of the 
Special Election. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1904, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-01 for 
construction of Rosenberg Business Park – Phase 1 Water, Sewer, Drainage and Paving Improvements; 
and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or 
agreements regarding same. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1905, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-02 for 
construction of Rosenberg Business Park Lift Station Improvements; and authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. (John Maresh, 
Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1900, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-05, for 
construction of Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation/Replacements; and, authorizing the City 



 

3 of 5 
 

Manager to negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same. 
(John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

9.  Consideration of and action on rescinding prior City Council action to approve the installation of pole 
mounted radar speed signs on Wagon Wheel Lane and Walnut Glen Lane, both generally located in 
the Oaks of Rosenberg subdivision. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

10.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-04, an Ordinance amending the Code of 
Ordinances by deleting all of Section 28-41 (a) and (c), Stop Signs Designated, of Article II, Division 2 of 
Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting therefor a new Section 28-41 (a) and (c) of Article II, Division 2 
of Chapter 28 thereof; providing for a three-way stop at the intersection of Walnut Glen Lane and 
Spacek Road; deleting the one-way stop at the intersection of Carlisle Street and Avenue D; providing 
a penalty in an amount of not less than $1.00 or more than $200.00 for violation of any provision hereof; 
repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent of in conflict herewith; providing for an 
effective date; and providing for severability. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

11.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-05, an Ordinance amending the Code Of 
Ordinances by adding to Section 28-71 of Division 4 of Article II of Chapter 28 thereof, a new prima facie 
speed limit of twenty-five (25) miles per hour along Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of 
approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a distance of 
approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo Lane, from Banner Lane to Stoneridge 
Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland Valley Drive; Bass Lane, from Belvedere Drive to 
Troutline Lane; Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane to a distance approximately one-hundred and twenty 
(120) feet west of Arcola Court; Cunningham Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; 
Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive from Bryan 
Road, a distance of approximately one-thousand four-hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from 
Banner Lane, a distance of approximately two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from 
Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance 
approximately one-hundred and sixty (160) feet west of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland 
Valley Drive, a distance of approximately eight-hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court; Troutline 
Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton 
Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive 
to Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred 
and twenty-five (125) feet; and repealing the prima facie speed limit of thirty (30) miles per hour along 
Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; 
Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; 
Bamboo Lane, from Banner Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland 
Valley Drive; Bass Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane to a 
distance of approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) feet west of Arcola Court; Cunningham Lane, 
from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut 
Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive from Bryan Road, a distance of approximately one-thousand four 
hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a distance of approximately two-
hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge 
Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of approximately one-hundred and sixty (160) feet west 
of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of approximately eight-
hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court; Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane; 
Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend 
to Spacek Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from 
Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and twenty-five (125) feet; making 
certain findings; authorizing the placement of speed limit signs along such streets; providing a penalty 
for violation of any provision hereof; providing an effective date and providing for severability. (John 
Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

12.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1924, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Utility Development Agreement, by and 
between the City and ZED Partners, Ltd., in an amount not to exceed $20,430.00.  (John Maresh, Assistant 
City Manager of Public Services) 
 

13.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1925, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, Amendment No. 1 to the Drainage Agreement, by and between 
the City and ZED Partners, Ltd. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

14.  Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-06, an Ordinance granting consent to Fort Bend 
County Municipal Utility District No. 144 for the sale and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in 
an amount not to exceed $3,400,000. (Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E., City Engineer) 
 

15.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1922, a Resolution regarding adoption of the Main 
Street Advisory Board Bylaws. (Randall Malik, Economic Development Director) 



 

4 of 5 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
16.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1923, a Resolution approving and adopting a Traffic 

Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedure. (John Maresh, Assistant City 
Manager of Public Services) 
 

17.  Hold Executive Session to deliberate the employment, evaluation, and duties of Police Chief pursuant 
to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code.  
 

18.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

19.  Announcements. 
 

20.  Adjournment. 
 



 

5 of 5 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2015, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Anne M. Stark, Acting City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
Robert Gracia, City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of special 
assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, any 
time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

 consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
 deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
 deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
 deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers that 
may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the meeting, 
to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions or 
committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the presiding 
officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically provided for 
on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent 
to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by 
all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 New Elevated Water Storage Tank Branding Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed branding for new elevated water storage tank, and take action as 
necessary.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

523-0000-600-7031 (CP1504) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:   MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Presentation – FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank Branding Recommendation 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
Angela Fritz 
Executive Director  
Information Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] Project Director 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City’s soon to be built elevated water storage tank on FM 2977 near Fire Station No. 3 provides an 
excellent opportunity to brand and designate Rosenberg to the surrounding area. Staff will present a 
proposed scheme for the water tower for City Council’s consideration, and recommends capitalizing on the 
opportunity the new elevated storage tank presents to continue creating a consistent identity and image for 
the City. 
 



Branding Recommendation
February 17, 2015 
Rosenberg City Council Meeting

FM 2977 
Elevated Water Storage Tank



New Elevated Storage Tank on FM 2977 
Provides a Prime Opportunity to Amplify 
Brand Image and Promote Rosenberg

photo by: SugarLandDotCom © "Sugar Land Water Tower”

• e.g.  new Sugar Land tank 
on I69 @ Telfair



Brand image is already being 
established and used in other mediums



Existing Water Tower Examples



Recommendation
• Brand new 

water tower 
with simplified 
image 
representative 
of desired 
Rosenberg 
identity

Caldwellwatertanks.com



Next Steps
• Incorporate visual 

design scheme into 
bid specifications for 
new water tower

• Consider branding 
other major 
infrastructure with 
simplified image 
representative of 
Rosenberg 
(e.g. I69 medallions)



Next Steps Cont’d.
• Develop brand identity guidelines and design 

standards for use of particular images moving forward 
(ongoing as part of Strategic Communications Plan 
development): 
▫ Logo
▫ Brand
▫ Seal – reserve for official use/purposes as intended 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 
Resolution No. R-1921 - Joint Election Agreement and Contract for 
Election Services 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1921, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services for the 2015 
General Municipal Election and Special Charter Amendment Election, by and between the City and Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [  ]  N/A 

Source of Funds: 
101-1300-510-5720 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

MUD #:   N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1921 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 

 

Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney  DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   

 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-1921 is a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute and the City Secretary to attest the Joint 
Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services, by and between the City and the County Elections 
Administrator of Fort Bend County, Texas.  Exhibit “A” to the Resolution is a Contract with Fort Bend County to 
have the Fort Bend County Elections Administrator coordinate, supervise and handle all aspects of administering 
the May 9, 2015 City of Rosenberg General and Special Elections. 
 
According to the attached Contract, the City will pay Fort Bend County for equipment, supplies, services and 
administrative costs related to the May 9, 2015 General Election.  The Elections Administrator will serve as the 
administrator for the election, but the City will remain responsible for the lawful conduct of the election.  The 
Elections Administrator will provide advisory services in connection with decisions to be made and actions to be 
taken by the officers of the City.  The Contract attachments include the Election Day Voting Polling Places 
(Attachment A); the Early Voting Schedule (Attachment B), and the estimated costs (Attachment C). Note that 
the Early Voting Polling Place Schedule is subject to change if any of the other political subdivisions cancel their 
election. 
 
The City Secretary is recommending approval of Resolution No. R-1921 for the Joint Election Agreement and 
Contract for Election Services with Fort Bend County. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1921 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSEBERG, TEXAS, A 
JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT FOR ELECTION 
SERVICES FOR THE 2015 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION AND 
SPECIAL CHARTER AMENDMENT ELECTION, BY AND BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND FORT BEND COUNTY, 
TEXAS. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. That the Mayor and the City Secretary are hereby authorized to 

execute and attest, respectively, the Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election 

Services (Contract), by and between the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Fort Bend 

County, Texas, for the purpose of conducting the 2015 General Municipal and Special 

Charter Amendment Election on May 9, 2015.  A copy of such Contract is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this ___ day of ____________, 2015. 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 

              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
      



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1921

























CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Ordinance No. 2015-03 – General Municipal Election  

 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-03, an Ordinance providing that a General Municipal 
Election be held on May 09, 2015, and a Run-Off Election, if required, on June 13, 2015, for the purpose 
of electing a Mayor and six Council Members; directing the giving of notice of such elections; and 
providing details relating to the holding of such election. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ]  Recurring 
[X]  N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X]  N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:   N/A 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-03 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:  

 

Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 

Reviewed by:  
  
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council:   
 

 

Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The election for Rosenberg City Officials will be held on May 9, 2015.  The proposed Ordinance No. 2015-03 is 
an election ordinance ordering the election, setting various election dates and procedures, and contracting with 
the Elections Administrator of Fort Bend County, Texas, for the General Election, and a Runoff Election, if 
needed. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-03 as presented. 
 



Page 1 of 8. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, PROVIDING 
THAT A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION BE HELD ON MAY 9, 2015, 
AND A RUN-OFF ELECTION, IF REQUIRED, ON JUNE 13, 2015, FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING A MAYOR AND SIX COUNCIL 
MEMBERS; DIRECTING THE GIVING OF NOTICE OF SUCH 
ELECTIONS; AND PROVIDING DETAILS RELATING TO THE 
HOLDING OF SUCH ELECTION. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. In accordance with the general laws and Constitution of the State of 

Texas, a General Municipal Election is hereby called and ordered for the second 

Saturday in May 2015, the same being the 9th day of said month, for the purpose of 

electing the following officials of the City to two-year terms of office: 

 Mayor, At Large 
    Councilmember, At Large, Position 1 
    Councilmember, At Large, Position 2 
 
and the following officials of the City to a one-year term of office: 
 

Councilmember, Council District 1 
    Councilmember, Council District 2 
    Councilmember, Council District 3 
    Councilmember, Council District 4 
 
Each resident qualified voter of the City may vote for only one candidate for Mayor and 

one candidate for each At Large Council Position, and may vote for only one candidate 

for the single-member Council District position in the Council District where said 

qualified voter resides, and may not vote for any candidate in any other single-member 

Council District. 

 Section 2. The candidate receiving a majority of the votes in the General 

Municipal Election for each of the offices identified in Section 1 hereof, shall be declared 

elected.  If no candidate for an office shall receive a majority of all votes cast for such 



Page 2 of 8. 

office at such Election, a run-off election, between the two candidates who received the 

highest number of votes, is hereby called and ordered for Saturday, June 13, 2015 (the 

“Run-off Election”). 

 Section 3. No person’s name shall be placed upon the official ballot as a 

candidate for any of the above referenced positions unless such person has filed his or 

her sworn application, as provided by Section 143.007 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE, 

with the City Secretary at the City of Rosenberg City Hall, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, 

Texas 77471, not later than five o’clock (5:00) p.m. on the 27th day of February 2015.  

The City Secretary shall note on the face of each such application the date and time of 

its filing.  Such application shall include the office the candidate is seeking and the 

number of the position or district the candidate is seeking. 

 
 Section 4. The election precincts for the Election shall consist of the territory 

within the boundaries of the City situated within one or more County election precincts, 

which bear the precinct numbers set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

herein.  The voting location for voting on Election Day for each election precinct shall be 

as set forth in Exhibit A, or at such other locations as hereafter may be designated by 

the County Elections Administrator as provided in the Joint Election Agreement.  On 

Election Day the polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

 
 Section 5. The General Municipal Election, and the Run-off Election, if 

required, ordered hereby shall be conducted by the County Elections Administrator 

pursuant to that certain Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services, 

dated February 17, 2015 (the “2015 Election Services Contract”), by and between the 



Page 3 of 8. 

City and the County Elections Administrator of Fort Bend County, Texas (the “County 

Elections Administrator”).  The County Elections Administrator shall appoint election 

judges, alternate election judges, and clerks, pursuant to the 2015 Election Services 

Contract.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to provide a copy of this 

Ordinance to the County Elections Administrator. 

 Section 6. Pursuant to the 2015 Election Services Contract, Mr. John Oldham, 

the County Elections Administrator, is hereby appointed clerk for early voting; 

appointments of deputy clerks for early voting by the County Elections Administrator 

shall be in accordance with Section 83.001, et seq., of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE.  

 The County Elections Administrator shall receive applications by mail for a ballot 

to be voted by mail from March 10, 2015, until the close of business on April 30, 2015.  

Requests for applications should be mailed to:  Mr. John Oldham, County Elections 

Administration, Fort Bend County Elections Division, 4520 Reading Road, Suite A, 

Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 

 Early voting for the General Municipal Election, and the Run-off Election, if 

required, shall be conducted by personal appearance at the locations, at the times and 

on the days as set forth or in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, or at 

such other locations as hereafter may be designated by the County Elections 

Administrator as provided in the Joint Election Agreement. 

 Section 7. Pursuant to the provisions of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE, an Early 

Voting Ballot Board is hereby created, which shall consist of a presiding judge and 

clerks as appointed by the County Elections Administrator.  The Early Voting Ballot 

Board shall perform such functions and shall have such duties as are provided for by 



Page 4 of 8. 

the TEXAS ELECTION CODE.  In addition, the counting station for all ballots cast in such 

Elections shall be operated by the County Elections Administrator and such clerks as 

shall be necessary to count the ballots and to prepare Election returns in accordance 

with the provisions of Chapter 65 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE. 

 Section 8. Voting at the General Municipal Election, and the Run-off Election, 

if required, and early voting therefor, shall be by the use of the lawfully approved Fort 

Bend County voting systems and ballots. 

  
 Section 9. Pursuant to Chapter 146 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE, write-in 

votes cast in a municipal election shall not be counted unless the name written in 

appears on the list of write-in candidates.  To be entitled to a place on the list of write-in 

candidates, a candidate must make a declaration of write-in candidacy.  Such 

declaration is to be filed with the City Secretary not later than five o’clock (5:00) p.m. on 

February 27, 2015, and all of said declarations shall be on a form as prescribed by the 

Secretary of State. 

 Section 10. The order in which the names of the candidates are to be printed 

on the ballots for the General Municipal Election, and the Run-off Election, if required, 

shall be determined by a drawing conducted by the City Secretary, as provided by 

Section 52.094 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE.  The City Secretary shall post a notice in 

her office of the date, hour, and place of drawing.  Such notice shall remain posted 

continuously for seventy-two (72) hours immediately preceding the scheduled time of 

such drawing, and personal notice shall also be given to any candidate who makes a 

written request for such notice and furnishes to the City Secretary a self-addressed, 



Page 5 of 8. 

stamped envelope.  Each candidate involved in such drawing, or his or her designated 

representative, shall have the right to be present and observe the drawing. 

 Section 11. Notice of these Elections shall be given in accordance with the 

provisions of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE and returns of such notice shall be made as 

provided for in said Code.  The Mayor shall issue all necessary orders and writs for 

such Elections, and returns of such Elections shall be made to the City Secretary 

immediately after the closing of the polls. 

 Section 12. Such Elections shall be held in accordance with the TEXAS 

ELECTION CODE and the Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of February 

2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 



Page 6 of 8. 

Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-03 

 
 

ELECTION DAY VOTING LOCATIONS 
May 9, 2015 Joint Election 

City of Rosenberg 
Polls will be open from 7:00 A.M. until 7:00 P.M. 

 
Precincts Polling Place Address City 

1007(p) Williams Elementary School 5111 FM 762 RICHMOND 

1012 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1013 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1015(p) Frieden's United Church of Christ 7526 Avenue I BEASLEY 

1025(p) Fort Bend County Fairgrounds Bldg D 4310 Hwy 36 South ROSENBERG 

1037 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1040(p) Richmond Water Maintenance Bldg 110 N. 8th Street RICHMOND 

1048 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1054(p) Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1074 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

 



Page 7 of 8. 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance No. 2015-03 
Revised 02/03/15 

EARLY VOTING SCHEDULE 
May 9, 2015 Joint Election 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Fort Bend ISD, Lamar CISD, Needville ISD, Stafford MSD, City of Arcola, City of Beasley, City of Fulshear, City of 
Kendleton, City of Meadows Place, City of Missouri City, City of Needville, City of Richmond, City of Rosenberg, City 

of Simonton, City of Stafford, City of Sugar Land, Village of Pleak, FBC MUD 18 & Fulshear MUD 1 

 
Schedule for: 
Irene Stern Community Center – 6920 Fulshear-Katy Road, Fulshear, TX 
Missouri City Community Center – 1522 Texas Pkwy, Missouri City, TX 
Fort Bend County Road & Bridge – 3743 School Street, Needville, TX 
Fort Bend County Rosenberg Annex – 4520 Reading Road, Rosenberg, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
First Colony Conference Center – 3232 Austin Parkway, Sugar Land, TX 
Hightower High School – 3333 Hurricane Lane, Missouri City, TX 
Four Corners Community Center – 15700 Old Richmond Rd, Sugar Land, TX 
Sugar Land Branch Library – 550 Eldridge, Sugar Land, TX 
James Bowie Middle School – 700 Plantation Dr., Richmond, TX  
Randall’s – 5800 New Territory Blvd., Sugar Land, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Lost Creek Park – 3703 Lost Creek Blvd, Sugar Land, TX 
Sugar Land City Hall – 2700 Town Center Blvd. North, Sugar Land, TX 
Sienna Branch Library – 8411 Sienna Springs Blvd., Missouri City, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 10:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Fort Bend ISD Admin. Bldg. – 16431 Lexington Blvd., Sugar Land, TX 
Willowridge High School – 16301 Chimney Rock, Houston, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 



Page 8 of 8. 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance No. 2015-03 
Revised 02/03/15 

 
EARLY VOTING SCHEDULE (Continued) 

May 9, 2015 Joint Election 
 
Schedule for: 
Meadows Place City Hall – One Troyan Dr., Meadows Place, TX 
Stafford City Hall – 2610 Main Street, Stafford, TX 
Beasley City Hall – 319 S. 3rd Street, Beasley, TX  
Quail Valley Fund Office – 3603 Glenn Lakes, Missouri City, TX 
Richmond Water Maintenance Facility – 110 N. 8th Street, Richmond, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Stafford MSD Administration Bldg – 1625 Staffordshire Rd., Stafford, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 7:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Ordinance No. 2015-07 – City Charter Amendment Special Election 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-07, an Ordinance ordering a Special Election to be 
held on May 9, 2015, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters, for adoption or rejection, one (1) 
proposed amendment to the existing home-rule charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, as amended; 
directing the giving of notice of such elections; and making provisions for the conduct of the Special 
Election. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

101-1300-510-5720 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  All In-City MUDs 

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-07 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by: 

 

Linda Cernosek 
City Secretary 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Ordinance No. 2015-07 is an Ordinance ordering the Special Election to be held on May 9, 2015, on the same 
ballot as the General Election.  
 
The proposed Charter Amendment language is underlined as shown on page 3 of 9 of Ordinance No. 2015-07.  
The ballot language will read: “For/Against The amendment of the City Charter providing a term limit of three 
consecutive terms of office.” 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-07 as presented. 
 



Page 1 of 9. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-07 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, ORDERING 
A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 9, 2015, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS, FOR 
ADOPTION OR REJECTION, ONE (1) PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO 
THE EXISTING HOME-RULE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AS AMENDED; DIRECTING THE GIVING OF 
NOTICE OF SUCH ELECTIONS; AND MAKING PROVISIONS FOR THE 
CONDUCT OF THE SPECIAL ELECTION. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 41.001 of the Texas Election Code, as amended 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Code”) establishes May 9, 2015, as a “uniform election 
date” for the purposes of conducting an election; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has on its own 

motion determined to submit to the qualified voters of said City of Rosenberg for their 
adoption or rejection thereof a certain proposed amendment to the existing Home-Rule 
Charter of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, pursuant to Section 13.17 of the Charter of the 
City of Rosenberg and Section 9.004(a) of the Texas Local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas further provide that Section 3.001 of 
the Election Code of the State of Texas is applicable to said elections, and in order to 
comply with said Code, an Ordinance should be passed ordering said election and 
establishing the procedure to be followed in said election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to and in compliance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, proposed a Charter amendment during a public meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that the Rosenberg voters should vote on 
the following proposed amendment, in the form of a proposition; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, hereby directs City 

staff to publish notice of the election in a newspaper of general circulation in the City on 
the same day in each of two (2) successive weeks, the date of the first publication to be 
not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the date of the May 9, 2015, election. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings.  That the facts and recitations contained in the preamble 
of this Ordinance are hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are adopted 
as part of this Ordinance for all purposes. 
 



Page 2 of 9. 

 Section 2.  Election Order.  The City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, 
hereby calls for a Special Election to be held on Saturday, May 9, 2015, to consider one 
(1) ballot proposition for amendment to the home-rule charter.  
 
 Section 3.  Proposed Charter Amendment.  That at the Election the following 
amendment to the City Charter shall be submitted to the resident, qualified voters of the 
City of Rosenberg, Texas:  
 

Measure No. 1 

SHALL SECTION 3.01 OF THE CITY CHARTER BE AMENDED BY ADDING THE 
FOLLOWING UNDERLINED LANGUAGE: 
 
Sec. 3.01. - Number, selection and term.  

The legislative and governing body of the city shall consist of the mayor and six (6) council 
members and shall be known as the "City Council of the City of Rosenberg."  

(a) The mayor and two members of the city council shall be elected from the city at large. 
 
(b) The mayor shall be the presiding officer of the city council and shall be recognized as 

the head of city government for all ceremonial purposes and by the government 
[governor] for purposes of military law but shall have no regular administrative duties. 
The mayor shall be entitled to vote on all matters under consideration by the city 
council.  

 
(c) The mayor and six (6) council members, including two (2) at large council members 

and four (4) council members elected by districts shall be elected to two-year terms. 
The mayor and (2) council members shall be elected at-large in odd number years. 
The two (2) at-large council members positions shall be respectively designated as 
Position 1 and Position 2. The remaining four (4) council members shall be elected by 
districts, designated as Districts one (1), two (2), three (3) and four (4), in even 
numbered years.  
 

At the general election in May 2015, the four (4) designated district positions, one (1), 
two (2), three (3), and four (4) shall be placed on the ballot for election for a one-year 
term. The two (2) at-large council member positions and the position of mayor shall be 
placed on the ballot for election to two-year terms. At the City general election May 
2016, the district positions designated as Districts one (1), two (2), three (3) and four (4) 
shall be placed on the ballot for two-year terms. At the City general election May 2017, 
the two (2) at-large council member positions and the position of mayor shall be elected 
to two-year terms.  

All positions shall be elected to two-year terms after the foregoing provisions have been 
effected.  

(d) The four (4) members of the city council elected by districts shall be elected from 
districts which shall be designated Districts one (1), two (2), three (3) and four (4). The 



Page 3 of 9. 

area or territory includable in the district shall be adjusted from time to time or 
reconfigured as the city may annex or de-annex territory or area within the city. A legal 
description of all property to be includable in any of the several districts shall be on file 
in the office of the city secretary of the City of Rosenberg.  

(e) No elected official shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms of office.  For 

purposes of this subsection an official shall have been considered to have served a term 

upon taking the oath of office, regardless of whether the official serves the complete 

term. Any official who has served three (3) consecutive terms shall be prohibited from 

serving another term for a period of one year and eleven months from the date of the 

expiration of the third consecutive term. 
 
MEASURE 1 SHALL BE PLACED ON THE BALLOT IN THE FORM OF THE 
FOLLOWING PROPOSITION: 
 
PROPOSITION NO. 1 
 
FOR/AGAINST The amendment of the City Charter providing for a term limit of 
three consecutive terms of office. 
 
 Section 4.  Voting System, Ballot Proposition.  Voting on the date of the 
election, and early voting therefore, shall be by the use of a lawfully approved voting 
system. The preparation of the voting equipment to be used in connection with such 
voting system and the official ballots for the election shall conform to the Texas Election 
Code, as amended, so as to permit the electors of the City of Rosenberg, Texas to vote 
“For” or to vote “Against” for the one (1) home-rule charter ballot proposition. Said 
ballots shall have printed therein such provisions, marking, and language as may be 
required by law and the Proposition shall be set forth on said ballots in substantially the 
following form and language: 
 

SPECIAL ELECTION 
City of Rosenberg, Texas 

 
May 9, 2015 

 
That at the Election the following amendment to the City Charter shall be submitted to 
the resident, qualified voters of the City of Rosenberg, Texas: 
 

PROPOSITION NO. 1 
 
FOR/AGAINST The amendment of the City Charter providing for a term limit of 
three consecutive terms of office. 
 
Section 5.  Polling Places and Procedures.  The election precincts for the Election 
shall consist of the territory within the boundaries of the City situated within one or more 
County election precincts which bear the precinct numbers set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and incorporated herein. The voting location for voting on Election Day 



Page 4 of 9. 

for each election precinct shall be as set forth in Exhibit A, or at such other locations as 
hereafter may be designated by the County Elections Administrator as provided in the 
Election Services Agreement. On Election Day the polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 
7:00 p.m. 

 
 Section 6.  Early Voting.   Pursuant to the 2015 Election Services Contract, Mr. 
John Oldham, the County Elections Administrator, is hereby appointed clerk for early 
voting; appointments of deputy clerks for early voting by the County Elections 
Administrator shall be in accordance with Section 83.001, et seq., of the TEXAS 

ELECTION CODE.  
 
 The County Elections Administrator shall receive applications by mail for a ballot 
to be voted by mail from March 10, 2015, until the close of business on April 30, 2015.  
Requests for applications should be mailed to:  Mr. John Oldham, County Elections 
Administration, Fort Bend County Elections Division, 4520 Reading Road, Suite A, 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 
 
 Early voting for the Special Municipal Election shall be conducted by personal 
appearance at the locations, at the times and on the days as set forth in Exhibit B 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, or at such other locations as hereafter may be 
designated by the County Elections Administrator as provided in the Joint Election 
Agreement. 
 
 Section 7.  Early Voting Ballot Board.  Pursuant to the provisions of the TEXAS 

ELECTION CODE, an Early Voting Ballot Board is hereby created, which shall consist of a 
presiding judge and clerks as appointed by the County Elections Administrator.  The 
Early Voting Ballot Board shall perform such functions and shall have such duties as are 
provided for by the TEXAS ELECTION CODE.  In addition, the counting station for all ballots 
cast in such Elections shall be operated by the County Elections Administrator and such 
clerks as shall be necessary to count the ballots and to prepare Election returns in 
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 65 of the TEXAS ELECTION CODE. 
 
 Section 8.  Voting System.  Voting at the Special Municipal Election and early 
voting therefor, shall be by the use of the lawfully approved Fort Bend County voting 
systems and ballots. 
  
 Section 9.  Notice.  That the City Secretary is hereby ordered and directed to 
publish and post the required notices in the manner and for the time periods required by 
law: 
 
(a) Publishing the notice of the election at least once, not more than thirty (30) days nor 
less than (10) days before the election in the official newspaper of the City; 
(b) Filing with the City Secretary, a copy of the notice of the election; 
(c) Posting a copy of the notice on the bulletin board used for posting notices of the 
meetings of the City Council at least twenty-one (21) days before the election; 



Page 5 of 9. 

(d) Publish notice of the charter amendment election in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City on the same day in each of two (2) successive weeks, the date of 
the first publication to be not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the election. 
 

The City Secretary shall file a copy of the Publisher’s Affidavit, which complies 
with the Texas Election Code, as amended, that the notice was published, with the 
name of the newspaper and the dates of publication. 

 
 Section 10.  Election Compliance.  This election shall be held in accordance 
with, and shall be governed by, the election laws of the State of Texas. In all City 
elections, the Mayor, City Secretary, or City Council shall perform each act as is 
required to be performed, in connection with the holding and consummation of such 
election, and to give effect to the intent of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 11.  Voting Qualification; Voting Materials.  That all registered, 
qualified voters of the City shall be permitted to vote at the election. In addition, the 
election materials enumerated in the Texas Election Code, as amended, shall be 
printed in English and Spanish for use at the polling places and for early voting for the 
Election. 
 
 Section 12. Joint Election.  The City has agreed to participate in a joint election 
with other participating governmental entities in the County who are also holding 
elections on Election Day and will contract with the County Elections Administrator for 
election services. 
 
 Section 13.  Statement of Fiscal Impact.  Pursuant to Section 9.004(c)(2) of 
the Texas Local Government Code, (requiring a statement of the anticipated fiscal 
impact to the City if the proposed amendment is approved), the City asserts it is difficult 
to accurately account for the fiscal impact for the proposed amendment in light of the 
peculiar unknown effect to the actual operation of the City government, but an overall 
analysis reflects that there will be negligible or no fiscal impact to the probable 
economic cost to the City if the proposed amendment is approved. 
 
 Section 14.  Severability Clause.  If any word, section, article, phrase, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or portion of this Ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this 
Ordinance; and the City Council hereby declares it would have passed such remaining 
portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity which remaining portions shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 15.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption and publication in accordance with and as provided by law and the City 
Charter. 
 



Page 6 of 9. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“nays” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of February 

2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott M. Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 
 



Page 7 of 9. 

Exhibit “A” to Ordinance No. 2015-07 

 
 

ELECTION DAY VOTING LOCATIONS 
May 9, 2015 Joint Election 

City of Rosenberg 
Polls will be open from 7:00 A.M. until 7:00 P.M. 

 
Precincts Polling Place Address City 

1007(p) Williams Elementary School 5111 FM 762 RICHMOND 

1012 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1013 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1015(p) Frieden's United Church of Christ 7526 Avenue I BEASLEY 

1025(p) Fort Bend County Fairgrounds Bldg D 4310 Hwy 36 S ROSENBERG 

1037 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1040(p) Richmond Water Maintenance Bldg 110 N. 8th St RICHMOND 

1048 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1054(p) Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

1074 Rosenberg City Hall 2110 4th Street ROSENBERG 

 



Page 8 of 9. 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance No. 2015-07 
Revised 02/03/15 

EARLY VOTING SCHEDULE 
May 9, 2015 Joint Election 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Fort Bend ISD, Lamar CISD, Needville ISD, Stafford MSD, City of Arcola, City of Beasley, City of Fulshear, City of 
Kendleton, City of Meadows Place, City of Missouri City, City of Needville, City of Richmond, City of Rosenberg, City 

of Simonton, City of Stafford, City of Sugar Land, Village of Pleak, FBC MUD 18 & Fulshear MUD 1 

 
Schedule for: 
Irene Stern Community Center – 6920 Fulshear-Katy Road, Fulshear, TX 
Missouri City Community Center – 1522 Texas Pkwy, Missouri City, TX 
Fort Bend County Road & Bridge – 3743 School Street, Needville, TX 
Fort Bend County Rosenberg Annex – 4520 Reading Road, Rosenberg, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
First Colony Conference Center – 3232 Austin Parkway, Sugar Land, TX 
Hightower High School – 3333 Hurricane Lane, Missouri City, TX 
Four Corners Community Center – 15700 Old Richmond Rd, Sugar Land, TX 
Sugar Land Branch Library – 550 Eldridge, Sugar Land, TX 
James Bowie Middle School – 700 Plantation Dr., Richmond, TX  
Randall’s – 5800 New Territory Blvd., Sugar Land, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Lost Creek Park – 3703 Lost Creek Blvd, Sugar Land, TX 
Sugar Land City Hall – 2700 Town Center Blvd. North, Sugar Land, TX 
Sienna Branch Library – 8411 Sienna Springs Blvd., Missouri City, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 10:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Fort Bend ISD Admin. Bldg. – 16431 Lexington Blvd., Sugar Land, TX 
Willowridge High School – 16301 Chimney Rock, Houston, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 



Page 9 of 9. 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance No. 2015-07 
Revised 02/03/15 

 
EARLY VOTING SCHEDULE (Continued) 

May 9, 2015 Joint Election 
 
Schedule for: 
Meadows Place City Hall – One Troyan Dr., Meadows Place, TX 
Stafford City Hall – 2610 Main Street, Stafford, TX 
Beasley City Hall – 319 S. 3rd Street, Beasley, TX  
Quail Valley Fund Office – 3603 Glenn Lakes, Missouri City, TX 
Richmond Water Maintenance Facility – 110 N. 8th Street, Richmond, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 
Schedule for: 
Stafford MSD Administration Bldg – 1625 Staffordshire Rd., Stafford, TX 
Day Date Hours
Monday – Friday April 27 – May 1, 2015 7:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
Saturday May 2, 2015 CLOSED 
Sunday May 3, 2015 CLOSED 
Monday – Tuesday May 4 – 5, 2015 7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Resolution No. R-1904 – Awarding Bid No. 2015-01  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1904, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-01 for construction 
of Rosenberg Business Park – Phase I Water, Sewer, Drainage and Paving Improvements; and, authorizing the 
City Manager to negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [  ] N/A 

Source of Funds: 

225-7000-540-7030 CP1302   

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Kalkomey Correspondence without attachments – 02-09-15 
4. Resolution No. R-1904 
5. Project Location Map 
6. Resolution No. R-1755 – 02-18-14 
7. Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement – 02-05-13 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-18-14 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-05-13 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Economic Development Director  

Approved for Submittal to City 
Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Bids were received on Wednesday, January 21, 2015, for Bid No. 2015-01 for construction of Rosenberg Business 
Park – Phase I Water, Sewer, Drainage and Paving Improvements (Project). A total of two (2) bids were opened and 
tabulated as indicated on the attached bid summary form.  
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-01 be awarded to Hurtado Construction Company, for the base bid in the total 
amount of $2,958,000.00. The attached correspondence from Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer, recommends same. 
Should the bid be awarded as recommended, the proposal from Hurtado Construction Company, will be attached and 
serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1904. The contract time is 120 calendar days. 
 
Funding for this Project was approved through Resolution No. R-1755 approved by City Council on February 18, 
2014. However, additional funding will be required to complete the Project. Randall Malik, Economic Development 
Director, will be presenting a funding request to the Rosenberg Development Corporation on Thursday, February 12, 
2015. Should the request be approved, Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services, will prepare any 
required budget amendment for approval at a subsequent Council meeting.    
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1904 which will award Bid No. 2015-01 and provide authorization for 
the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate the Agreement.



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
BID NO. 

 
COMPANY 

 
TOTAL BASE 

BID 

 
ALTERNATE 

BID 

 
TOTAL  

BID 
 

 
CALENDAR 

DAYS 
 

1.  
 

Hurtado Construction 
Company 
2115 Center Street 
Richmond, Texas  77469 
 

$2,958,000.00 $91,784.00 $3,076,784.00
 

120 

2.  
 

Triple B Services 
820 Old Atascocita Road 
Huffman, Texas  77336 
 

$3,982,464.75 $108,174.00 $4,090,638.75
210 

 

  
   

 
 
 

 
BID SUMMARY 
Bid No. 2015-01 

ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK –  
PHASE I WATER, SEWER, DRAINAGE AND PAVING IMPROVEMENTS 























































 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1904 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2015-01 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK – PHASE I 
WATER, SEWER, DRAINAGE AND PAVING IMPROVEMENTS; AND, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE 
APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING 
SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2015-01 to 

____________________________, in the base bid amount of $__________________ 

for construction of the Rosenberg Business Park – Phase I Water, Sewer, Drainage and 

Paving Improvements. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



\\h
o

u
-s

d
e

0
1\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
1

80
0

\1
88

0
-0

0
1

-0
0

_
R

o
se

nb
e

rg
B

u
si

ne
ss

P
ar

k\
R

B
P

_P
ro

p
D

e
v_

w
C

A
D

_
11

x1
7

.m
xd

  
  P

lo
tte

d
: 

1
/2

3
/2

0
14

  
a

t  
4

:2
7

:3
5

 P
M

  
b

y 
 a

m
a

nd
a

n

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 2

DRY CREEK

£¤59

Ä2218

BRYAN RD

SP
AC

EK
 RD

KOEBLEN RD

REESE RD

PIS
CES S

T

SPA
CEK R

D

T
O

M
 G

R
A

Y
 R

D

STONERIDGE CT

O
A

K
LA

N
D

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 D
R

WAGON WHEEL LN

BELVIEDRE DR

AQUARIUS ST

WALNUT GLEN LN

CUNNINGHAM LN

A
C

E
 C

T

HUNTER LN

D
IA

M
O

N
D

 R
IV

E
R

 D
R

LIBRA ST

F
O

S
T

E
R

 L
N

A
R

C
O

L
A

 C
T

Legend
Project Location

Phase 1 R.O.W.

Phase 2 R.O.W.

* H-GAC Aerials (Jan 2012)

0 600 1,200300
Feet

1 inch = 600 feet

±
ROSENBERG

BUSINESS PARK
PHASE 1 R.O.W.

13333 NW. Freeway, Suite 300

Houston, Texas  77040

Phone: 713-462-3178



RESOLUTION NO. R -1755

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, REGARDING A FUNDING ARRANGEMENT BY
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND THE
ROSENBERG DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR THE

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS TO SERVE THE ROSENBERG

BUSINESS PARK. 

WHEREAS, The Rosenberg Development Corporation ( "RDC') Strategic Plan, 

adopted in 2008, established as a priority the development of a business park in the

City of Rosenberg ( "City "); and, 

WHEREAS, the RDC and City staff worked with a developer who purchased a

184 -acre tract in order to develop a business park within the corporate limits of the City; 

and, 

WHEREAS, on February 05, 2013, the Rosenberg City Council approved

Resolution No. R -1613, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and

execute, for an on behalf of the City, a Development Agreement ( "Agreement'), by and

among the City, RDC, and Rosenberg Business Park, Ltd., for the development of the

Rosenberg Business Park; and, 

WHEREAS, on February 14, 2013, the RDC Board of Directors authorized the

Executive Director to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the RDC, a

Development Agreement, by and among the RDC, the City, and Rosenberg Business

Park, Ltd., for the development of the Rosenberg Business Park; now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. Pursuant to Section 3 of said Development Agreement

Agreement), the City will construct the infrastructure improvements ( "improvements ") 

which include the water distribution system, sanitary sewer, storm sewer drainage, 



paving improvements, installation of natural gas lines, and electrical services in two (2) 

phases. The cost of Phase I is estimated to be $ 3,478, 300 and Phase II is estimated to

be $ 1, 700,000. 

Section 2. The City and RDC will each fund fifty percent ( 50 %) of said

improvements pursuant to Section 3(c) of said Agreement. 

Section 3. On November 14, 2013, the RDC Board agreed to propose a

request to the City that the RDC' s debt be lowered in return for the RDC' s advance

funding of approximately fifty percent ( 50 %) of the City's portion of the Rosenberg

Business Park Phase I improvements. 

Section 4. On January 29, 2014, the Rosenberg Finance /Audit Committee

recommended approval to City Council of the RDC' s proposed request to reduce the

amount of RDC debt owed to the City by approximately $ 1, 700,000. 

Section 5. That the City agrees to the reduction in RDC debt each year until

the total amount of $ 1, 700,000 is reduced from RDC's debt, and agrees to approve the

new RDC debt schedule with the stated reductions as summarized therein, attached

hereto as Exhibit "A ", and made a part hereof for all

purposT- day

es

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED on this of

2014. 

ATTEST: 

I-AAAA) PMM' k, 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary

pF RoS
ti

U\ {,.....,. % 

Off`:. / • 
INS* 

z

APPROVFn• 



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R -1755

Rosenberg Development Corporation

Outstanding Debt Service

Total Adjustment Adjusted

Fiscal Principal Total Principal & for Business Principal & 

Year Due Interest Interest Park Interest

2013 -14 779,700 219, 694 999, 394 999, 394

2014 -15 802,235 197, 708 999, 943 35, 000 964,943

2015 -16 652,770 177, 221 829, 991 35, 000 794, 991

2016 -17 657, 305 160, 476 817,781 113, 000 704, 781

2017 -18 672, 840 147, 957 820,797 113, 000 707, 797

2018 -19 687, 875 126, 890 814,765 113, 000 701, 765

2019 -20 703,410 104,444 807,854 113, 000 694,854

2020 -21 382, 980 85, 627 468,607 191, 000 277, 607

2021 -22 387, 515 71, 341 458, 856 191, 000 267, 856

2022 -23 284, 800 59,162 343, 962 270, 000 73, 962

2023 -24 297, 835 48,994 346, 829 270, 000 76, 829

2024 -25 228, 190 39,216 267,406 256, 000 11, 406

2025 -26 236,225 29, 874 266, 099 266, 099

2026 -27 247,295 19, 974 267, 269 267, 269

2027 -28 255, 330 9, 557 264, 887 264,887

2028 -29 71, 400 2, 621 74, 021 74,021

2029 -30 23, 005 489 23,494 23,494

Total 7, 370,710 1, 501, 245 8, 871, 955 1, 700,000 7, 171, 955











































































CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 
Resolution No. R-1905 – Awarding Bid No. 2015-02 for Construction of 
Rosenberg Business Park Lift Station Improvements 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1905, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-02 for 
construction of Rosenberg Business Park Lift Station Improvements; and, authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [  ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

225-7000-540-7030 (CP1302) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 
1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Kalkomey Correspondence without attachments – 02-09-15 
4. Resolution No. R-1905 
5. Project Location Map (Please see previous agenda item.) 
6. Resolution No. R-1755 – 02-18-14 (Please see previous agenda item.) 
7. Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement – 02-05-13 (Please see previous agenda item.) 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-18-14 (Please see previous agenda item.) 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-05-13 (Please see previous agenda item.) 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Economic Development Director   

Approved for Submittal to City 
Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Bids were received on Wednesday, January 21, 2015, for Bid No. 2015-02 for construction of Rosenberg Business 
Park Lift Station Improvements (Project). A total of six (6) bids were opened and tabulated as indicated on the 
attached bid summary form.  
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-02 be awarded to Liftwater Construction, for the base bid in the total amount of 
$494,700.00. The attached correspondence from Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer, recommends same. Should the 
bid be awarded as recommended, the proposal from Liftwater Construction will be attached and serve as Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. R-1905. The contract time is 180 calendar days. 
 
Funding for this Project was approved through Resolution No. R-1755 approved by City Council on February 18, 
2014. However, as noted in the previous Agenda item, additional funding will be required to complete the Project. 
Randall Malik, Economic Development Director, will be presenting a funding request to the Rosenberg Development 
Corporation on Thursday, February 12, 2015. Should the request be approved, Joyce Vasut, Executive Director or 
Administrative Services, will prepare any required budget amendment for approval at a subsequent City Council 
meeting.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1905 which will award Bid No. 2015-02 and provide authorization for 
the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate the Agreement.
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
BID NO. 

 
COMPANY 

 
TOTAL BASE 

BID 

 
CALENDAR 

DAYS 
 

1. Liftwater Construction, Inc. 
22803 Schiel Road 
Cypress, Texas  77433 
 

$494,700.00 180 

2. Panorama Construction Management Technology 
822 Durham 
Suite 100 
Houston, Texas  77007 
 

$497,401.50 150 

3. McDonald Municipal and Industrial 
5044 Timber Creek Drive 
Houston, Texas  77017 
 

$499,300.00 210 

4. R+B Group, Inc. 
1213 N. Durham Drive 
Houston, Texas  77008 
 

$550,231.50 240 

5. Peltier Brothers Construction. Ltd. 
11603-B Windfern 
Houston, Texas  77064 
 

$562,481.50 240 

6. T&C Construction, Ltd. 
5411 Killough 
Houston, Texas  77086-4011 
 

$611,461.50 No Bid 

 
BID SUMMARY 
Bid No. 2015-02 

ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK –  
LIFT STATION IMPROVEMENTS 















 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1905 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2015-02 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF ROSENBERG BUSINESS PARK LIFT STATION 
IMPROVEMENTS; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS AND/OR 
AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2015-02 to 

____________________________, in the amount of $__________________ for 

construction of the Rosenberg Business Park Lift Station Improvements. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 
Resolution No. R-1900 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-05 for Construction of 
Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation/Replacements 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1900, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-05 for 
construction of Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation/Replacements; and, authorizing the City 
Manager to negotiate and execute appropriate documents and/or agreements regarding same.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:   

422-0000-550-7036 CP1413 
424-0000-550-7033 CP1413 
County Mobility Funds 

[X] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[X] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal 
3. Kalkomey Correspondence without attachments – 02-09-15 
4. Resolution No. R-1900 
5. Project Location Map 
6. Resolution No. R-1801 – 06-17-14 
7. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 08-26-14 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-17-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] Project Director      

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Bids were received on Wednesday, February 04, 2015, for Project Bid No. 2015-05 for construction of 
Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation/Replacements (Project). A total of six (6) bids were opened 
and tabulated as indicated on the attached bid summary form.  
 
Staff recommends Bid No. 2015-05 be awarded to Scohil Construction Services, LLC, for the base bid in 
the total amount of $2,175,005.00. The attached correspondence from Charles Kalkomey, Project 
Engineer, recommends same. Should the bid be awarded as recommended, the proposal from Scohil 
Construction Services, LLC, will be attached and serve as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1900. The 
contract time is 180 calendar days. 
 
This Project is included in the FY2015 Capital Improvement Plan approved by City Council on June 17, 
2014. The Project also includes the water line located along 7th Street, south of Avenue I to near Avenue M 
due to the poor physical condition. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1900 which will award Bid No. 2015-05 and provide 
authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate 
the Agreement. 
 



\\primary\Shared\CURRENT AGENDA\Agenda - CCC Forms\2015\02-17-15\R-1900 - Awarding Bid 2015-05 Avenue H & I Water Line Relocation 
Replacement\working docs\Bid 2015-05 - Waterline Replacement Avenue H & Avenue I.doc 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
BID NO. 

 
COMPANY 

 
TOTAL BASE 

BID 

 
CALENDAR 

DAYS 
 

1.  
 

SCOHIL Construction Services 
15821 FM 529 #116 
Houston, Texas  77095 
 

$2,175,005.00 180 

2.  
 

Cruz Tec Inc. 
12210 Ann Lane 
Houston, Texas  77064 
 

$2,542,069.50 
 

360 
 

3.  
 

Reliance Construction 
4302 Almeda-Genoa Road 
Houston, Texas  77048 
 

$2,566,279.00 
 

365 
 
 

4.  
 

A Absolute Plumbing 
16195 S Hwy 288B 
Angleton, Texas  77515 
 

$2,798,270.00 
 

280 
 

5.  
 

D.L. Elliott Enterprises 
11104 W. Airport, Ste 101 
Stafford, Texas  77477 
 

$2,943,188.00 
 

360 
 

6.  Alcott, Inc., dba TCH 
PO Box 1250 
Friendswood, Texas  77549 
 

$3,370,032.00 
 

340 
 

   

 
BID SUMMARY 
Bid No. 2015-05 

Waterline Replacement Avenue H & Avenue I 





























 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1900 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2015-05 FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF AVENUE H AND AVENUE I WATER LINE 
RELOCATION/REPLACEMENTS; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE APPROPRIATE 
DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2015-05 to 

____________________________, in the amount of $__________________ for 

construction of the Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation/Replacements 

Project. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439

P:\MARKETING\City of Rosenberg Water Line Replacements - One Way Pairs\Civil\Exhibits\Project Exhibit.dwg  Sep 09,2014 - 4:22pm DRK





johnm
Rectangle



sherrin
Rectangle



sherrin
Rectangle



The general consensus of Council was to proceed with the request by staff to add one ( 1) Technology
Specialist position at this time. 

Action: Councilor Bolf made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve one Information Technology
Specialist position. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R -1804, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, BUDGET AMENDMENT 14 -15 IN
THE AMOUNT OF $ 15,079.00 FOR THE ADDITION OF AN INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SPECIALIST. 

Executive Summary. In the previous Agenda item, Executive Director of Information Services, Angela Fritz, 

requested the addition of an Information Technology Specialist. If City Council authorizes the position, a Budget
Amendment is needed to fund this position for the remainder of FY2014. 

Budget Amendment 14 -15, in the amount of $ 15,079.00 will provide funding for an Information Technology
Specialist for the remainder of FY2014. 

Budget Amendment 14 -15 is included as Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R -1804. In order to add this position in
FY2014, staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R -1804 as presented. 

Key discussion points: 
Joyce Vasut read the Executive Summary regarding Resolution No. R -1804. 

Action: Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Resolution No. R -1804, a
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, Budget Amendment 14 -15 in
the amount of $ 15, 079.00 for the addition of an Information Technology Specialist. The motion carried by a
unanimous vote of those present. 

8. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R -1801, A RESOLUTION APPROVING
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2015. 

Executive Summary: During the FY2015 Budget process, staff reviewed the current Capital Improvement Plan
CIP) and is recommending that a total of twenty-five ( 25) projects be addressed in FY2015. Exhibit " A" to

Resolution No. R -1801 lists the twenty -five (25) individual projects. The Planning Commission met on May 21, 
2014, and also recommended approval of the projects proposed for the FY2015 CIP. These projects were also

presented to City Council at the May 27, 2014 City Council Workshop. 

Existing or proposed funding is available for all or a portion of twenty ( 20) of the Capital Projects that will be
addressed in FY2015. There are two ( 2) projects for which funding needs have not been determined. The

three ( 3) remaining Capital Projects are not completely funded. Funding for these projects may include the
issuance of Certificates of Obligation or other funding sources. Funding for these projects will be addressed
during FY2015. 

Approval of Resolution No. R -1801 will establish the City's FY2015 Capital Improvements Plan and allow for
the projects to be properly included in the proposed FY2015 Budget. Staff recommends approval of Resolution
No. R -1801. 

Key discussion points: 
Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R -1801 and the City' s FY 2015
Capital Improvements Plan. 

Questions: 

Councilor Benton expressed concern with # 11 — Traffic signal Reading Road at Town Center Boulevard
and asked how urgent it is. 

John Maresh explained that is tied to a development agreement. The developer that is working on the
project from Fire Station 2 will trigger when they have to put up fifty percent (50 %) of the money for that
traffic signal. There is a timeframe by which the City has to come up with the remaining fifty percent
50 %). They are getting close to the triggering point. 

Councilor Grigar asked if the items are the twenty -five in each of the two areas that surfaced to the top. 
Joyce Vasut explained staff looked at the 2014 list and any projects that were not complete or not
substantially complete by September 30th were left on the list. Staff then looked at 2015 in the five year
plan and pulled those out that staff felt needed to rise to the top. A lot of these are projects that are
started that we need to complete that we have County mobility funding. We need to move on that
project so we do not lose the funding. # 11 that was referred to is based on the development agreement

PAGE 7 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014

sherrin
Rectangle



that we think will need action during FY2015. The developer will pay one -half and we have requested
the other half from the RDC. 

Items 15, 16, and 17 are all GRP projects that are part of the Subsidence mandate we need to get
done. At this time, all except three are funded in one way or another with available funds. The other
three, which is Airport Road and Bryan Road that was discussed at the Workshop meeting. Airport
Road and Bryan Road will need additional funding and we discussed certificates of obligation and
Council felt they could agree to that. Staff will bring back those options along with the budget. The
majority of these will be funded in the fiscal year. 

Action: Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Resolution No. R -1801, a
Resolution approving Capital Improvement Plan Priorities for FY2015. The motion carried by a unanimous vote
of those present. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R -1802, A RESOLUTION APPROVING

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PRIORITIES FOR FY2016 TO FY2019. 

Executive Summary. Pursuant to the City Charter which requires a five -year Capital Improvement Plan ( CIP), 
staff has prepared a proposed schedule for Capital Projects in FY2016, FY2017, FY2018 and FY2019. The

development of the CIP for FY2016 to FY2019 is based on several factors, including but not limited to: 

Deadline for compliance with the Fort Bend Subsidence District mandate, 

Availability of Fort Bend County Mobility Funds, 
Possibility of a City Bond Election in 2015, 
Results of the City Facilities Assessment, and
Needs Identified in the Five Year Strategic Plan. 

The proposed FY2016- FY2019 CIP was attached to Resolution No. R -1802 as Exhibit "A" and will allow City
Council to approve the proposed FY2016- FY2019 Capital Improvement Plan for the City of Rosenberg. Staff
recommends approval of Resolution No. R -1802. 

Key discussion points: 
Joyce Vasut gave an overview of the item regarding Resolution No. R -1802. Exhibit A to Resolution No. 
R -1802 was included in the agenda packet. 

Questions: 

Councilor Euton — FY2017 Streets and Drainage — 3`d Street at Intersection with Avenue E — what does
that entail? 

John Maresh stated this is a carryover project that has been on the CIP for several years and has never
been ranked high enough to be funded. It is at the intersection of 3`d Street where there is a rise in the
street and a hump as you approach Avenue N. It would be to cutout that section of 3`d Street and
reconstruct it. 

FY2018 — Brooks Avenue what is the plan? 

This is a long range future project that was placed on the list recently. That would be an improvement
project to reconstruct that street with curb and gutter. 

FY 2019 — Klauke Road extension — is that still on our radar? 

It is long range for 2019. There have been discussions about addressing some connectivity and other
ways. 

FY2018 — Brazos River Trail Project — Councilor Euton stated she objected to that project because
some of the residents would be displaced in the north area of town. 

Darren McCarthy, Director of Parks and Recreation stated it has nothing to do with residential
displacement. It is a paddle trail utilizing the resources of the Brazos River. Fort Bend Green at the
direction of Judge Hebert just completed a three year master plan study of that. Councilor McConathy
was part of the group in the Rosenberg segment. That will be coming to Council in a future Workshop
after the budget is complete. Mayor Morales, Councilor McConathy and Robert Gracia have copies of
that master plan. Staff plans to distribute to Council when it is brought to Council in a Workshop. 
Councilor Grigar — FY2018 — Streets and Drainage — Avenue C Extension; Avenue D Street Paving and
Drainage — is that in connection to get an east/west connection because of railroad crossing closures? 
John Maresh stated that is specifically the crossing and east to Rawson Road and would connect there. 
That is the only access in and out over that grade crossing that would provided that connectivity. 
Avenue D — this is long range. We have been focusing with our CDBG funds to try to get the
infrastructure of the sanitary sewer replaced. The application we have before the County now is for
waterline replacements. We hope to complete that in the next 3 to 5 years and then we could do some
street and sidewalk improvements. 

PAGE 8 of 11 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * JUNE 17, 2014

sherrin
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 
Rescinding Installation of Pole Mounted Radar Speed Signs - Wagon 
Wheel Lane and Walnut Glen Lane 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on rescinding prior City Council action to approve the installation of pole 
mounted radar speed signs on Wagon Wheel Lane and Walnut Glen Lane, both generally located in the 
Oaks of Rosenberg subdivision. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-18-14 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other)      

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On November 18, 2014, City Council identified and approved certain streets in the City to receive pole 
mounted radar speed signs. The following is a list of streets that were approved to receive said signage: 
 

1. Grunwald Heights Boulevard 
2. Wagon Wheel Lane 
3. Walnut Glen Lane  
4. Lane Drive 
5. Jones Street 
6. Brooks Street 
7. Callender Street 

 
This item has been added to the Agenda to offer City Council an opportunity to rescind their November 18th 
action as it relates to Wagon Wheel Lane and Walnut Glen Lane. If City Council takes said action, the four 
(4) pole mounted radar speed signs purchased for these streets can be installed at other locations at a 
future date.  
 



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 Ordinance No. 2015-04 – Location of Stop Signs 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-04, an Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances 
by deleting all of Section 28-41 (a) and (c), Stop Signs Designated, of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, 
Stop Streets, and substituting therefor a new Section 28-41 (a) and (c) of Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 
28 thereof; providing for a three-way stop at the intersection of Walnut Glen Lane and Spacek Road; 
deleting the one-way stop at the intersection of Carlisle Street and Avenue D; providing a penalty in an 
amount of not less than $1.00 or more than $200.00 for violation of any provision hereof; repealing all 
ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent of in conflict herewith; providing for an effective date; and 
providing for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  159 (Oaks of Rosenberg)

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-04 – Redlined 
2. Ordinance No. 2015-04 
3. Location Map – Walnut Glen Lane at Spacek Road 
4. Location Map – Carlisle Street at Avenue D 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Police Chief  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-04 that would designate the intersection of Walnut Glen Lane and 
Spacek Road as a three-way stop. The intersection currently functions as a one-way stop with Walnut Glen 
Lane having the stop condition and Spacek Road being uncontrolled. 
 
The proposed Ordinance will also delete the one-way stop at the intersection of Carlisle Street and Avenue 
D. The stop sign is no longer required since the portion of the Carlisle Street right-of-way at the Avenue D 
intersection was vacated, closed, abandoned and sold to Our Lady of Guadalupe Church to accommodate 
the church reconstruction project.   
 
This item has been placed on the Agenda for consideration and action by City Council.  Staff recommends 
approval of Ordinance No. 2015-04. 
 



Page 1 of 22 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 (a) 
AND (c), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW 
SECTION 28-41 (a) AND (c) OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR A THREE-WAY STOP AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF WALNUT GLEN LANE AND SPACEK ROAD; 
DELETING THE ONE-WAY STOP AT THE INTERSECTION OF CARLISLE 
STREET AND AVENUE D; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF 
NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF 
ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is authorized by 
Section 542.202 of the Texas Transportation Code to regulate traffic by the placement of 
traffic control devices; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined and 
finds that the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the traveling 
public require removing certain stop signs and placing stop signs at certain locations which 
requires deleting the following stop sign designations from Section 28-41 (a) and (c) of 
Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting a new Section 28-41 (a) 
and (c) with new stop sign designations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that Chapter 28 
requires amending to include a penalty range of a fine in an amount of not less than one 
dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00); now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby 

amended by deleting from Chapter 28, Section 28-41 (a) and (c) Stop Signs Designated, 

of Article II, Division 2, and substituing a new Section 28-41 (a) and (c) Stop Signs 

Designated as follows: 

“Sec. 28-41. - Stop signs designated. 
 



Page 2 of 22 

 

(a) One-way stops. Stop signs indicating one-way stops shall be placed at the following 
locations within the city: 
 

Stop Street Intersection Streets 

1st Street 1st Street and Walnut Avenue 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue O 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue E 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue F 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue M 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Main Street 

3rd Street 3rd Street and Mons Avenue 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue A 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue C 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue E 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue F 

4th Street 4th Street and Mons Avenue 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue B 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue E 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue F 

5th Street 5th Street and Parrott Avenue 

6th Street 6th Street and Avenue B 

6th Street 6th Street and Parrott Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Avenue F 

7th Street 7th Street and Leaman Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Mons Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Parrott Avenue 



Page 3 of 22 

 

8th Street (Northbound) 8th Street and Avenue F 

Ace Court Ace Court and Stone Ridge Court 

Alamo Street Alamo Street and Mons Avenue 

Alamo Street Alamo Street and Old Richmond Road 

Aldernay Court Aldernay Court and Gerona Boulevard 

Allen Street Allen Street and Dallas Avenue 

Allen Street Allen Street and Spur 529 

Allen Street Allen Street and Walger Avenue 

Allwright Street Allwright Street and Orange Blossom Lane 

Arbor Court Arbor Court and Village Court Lane 

Arbury Hill Lane Arbury Hill Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 

Archer Ranch Lane Archer Ranch Lane and Wimberly Hollow Lane 

Arcola Court Arcola Court and Belvedere Drive 

August Green Drive August Green Drive and F.M. Highway 2977 

Austin Street Austin Street and Avenue L 

Austin Street Austin Street and Avenue N 

Austin Street Austin Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Avenue B Avenue B and 3rd Street 

Avenue B Avenue B and 8th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 2nd Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 6th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 7th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 8th Street 

Avenue D Avenue D and 7th Street 

Avenue D Avenue D and Elm Street 



Page 4 of 22 

 

Avenue E Avenue E and Elm Street 

Avenue J Avenue J and Bamore Road 

Avenue J Avenue J and Mahlmann Street 

Avenue K Avenue K and 8th Street 

Avenue K Avenue K and Bamore Road 

Avenue K Avenue K and Damon Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and 8th Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and Allen Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and Bamore Road 

Avenue L Avenue L and Mahlman Street 

Avenue M Avenue M and Allen Street 

Avenue M Avenue M and Bamore Road 

Avenue M Avenue M and George Street 

Avenue M (West) Avenue M (West) and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Avenue N Avenue N and 3rd Street 

Avenue N Avenue N and 4th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Avenue O Avenue O and 3rd Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and 4th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and 8th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and Louise Street 

Avenue P Avenue P and Louise Street 

Avenue R Avenue R and Louise Street 

Azalea Drive Azalea Drive and Mulcahy Street 

Baker Road Baker Road and F.M. Highway 723 



Page 5 of 22 

 

Bamboo Lane Bamboo Lane and Stoneridge Court 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and Spur 529 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Bayou Cane Lane Bayou Cane Lane and Fallen Reed Lane 

Bayou Cane Lane Bayou Cane Lane and Louise Street 

Bayou Crossing Court Bayou Crossing Court and Airport Avenue 

Bayou Crossing Court Bayou Crossing Court and Cypress Landing Court 

Bend Ray Court Bend Ray Court and Summer Night Lane 

Bernard Avenue Bernard Avenue and Bamore Road 

Bernard Avenue Bernard Avenue and West Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and 4th Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and 7th Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Biotics Research Drive Biotics Research Drive and Spacek Road 

Blackhawk Ridge Court Blackhawk Ridge Court and Hawthorne Pasture Road 

Blackwood Road Blackwood Road and Muegge Road 

Blaydon Court Blaydon Court and W. Parma Drive 

Blue Lake Drive Blue Lake Drive and Summer Shore Drive 

Blume Road Blume Road and Klauke Road 

Blume Road Blume Road and Spur 529 

Bower Court Bower Court and West Columbary Drive 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue D 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue G 



Page 6 of 22 

 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Walger Avenue 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Walnut Avenue 

Brazos Town Crossing Brazos Town Crossing and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Briar Ridge Drive Briar Ridge Drive and Junker Street 

Bridle Path Bridle Path and Wilson Drive 

Bridle Path Bridle Path and Pecan Park Drive 

Broadview Circle Broadview Circle and 4th Street 

Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and 4th Street 

Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and Bamore Road 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Avenue N 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Briar Ridge Drive 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Jones Street 

Bryan Road Bryan Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Bryan Road Bryan Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Butler Lakes Court Butler Lakes Court and Summerdale Drive 

Callender Street Callender Street and West Street 

Calvin Road Calvin Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

Cambay Drive Cambay Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Cambridge Circle Cambridge Circle and Ward Street 

Canton Circle Canton Circle and East Columbary Drive 

Canyon Hill Lane Canyon Hill Lane and Athea Way 

Canyon Hill Lane Canyon Hill Lane and Bamore Road 

Cardinal Drive Cardinal Drive and Meadow Lane 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Avenue D 



Page 7 of 22 

 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Avenue G 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Walger Avenue 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Walnut Avenue 

Cartwright Court Cartwright Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Caslyn Drive Caslyn Drive and Cotter Lane 

Cedar Lane Cedar Lane and Mons Avenue 

Cedar Road Cedar Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Celaya Court Celaya Court and East Parma Drive 

Chelsea Court Chelsea Court and Parrott Avenue 

Chupik Street Chupik Street and Mons Avenue 

Cindy Court Cindy Court and Ripple Creek Drive 

City Hall Drive City Hall Drive and 4th Street 

Cole Avenue Cole Avenue and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Cole Avenue Cole Avenue and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Collins Creek Boulevard Collins Creek Boulevard and Delta Crossing 

Corporate Drive Corporate Drive and Mustang Avenue 

Cotter Court Cotter Court and Cotter Lane 

Cotton Gum Lane Cotton Gum Lane and Hawthorne Pasture Road 

Cotton Gum Lane Cotton Gum Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Cottonwood Church Road 
(Northbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road (Northbound) and U.S. Highway 59 
Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road 
(Southbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road (Southbound) and U.S. Highway 59 
(Northbound) 

Daily Road Daily Road and U.S. Highway 59 (Northbound) 

Daily Road Daily Road and U.S. Highway 59 (Southbound) 

Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Bamore Road 



Page 8 of 22 

 

Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Damascus Road Damascus Road and Bamore Road 

Damon Street Damon Street and Avenue N 

Damon Street Damon Street and Old Richmond Road 

Danziger Road Danziger Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Danziger Road Danziger Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

David Street David Street and Mons Avenue 

Debbie Court Debbie Court and Teresa Drive 

Delta Crossing Court 
(East) 

Delta Crossing Court (East) and Delta Crossing Lane 

Delta Crossing Court 
(West) 

Delta Crossing Court (West) and Delta Crossing Lane 

Delta Crossing Lane Delta Crossing Lane and Ellis Grove Lane 

Desert Oasis Lane Desert Oasis Lane and Crabapple Way 

Desert Oasis Lane Desert Oasis Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Desert Springs Lane Desert Springs Lane and Crabapple Way 

Desert Springs Lane Desert Springs Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Desert Willow Lane Desert Willow Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Diamond River Drive Diamond River Drive and Walnut Glen Lane 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Bamore Road 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and George Street 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Easy Street Easy Street and West Street 

Elizabeth Avenue Elizabeth Avenue and Bamore Road 

Ellis Grove Lane Ellis Grove Lane and Fisher Bend Lane 



Page 9 of 22 

 

Elm Street Elm Street and Walnut Avenue 

Emilee Court Emilee Court and Taylan Lane 

Enchanted Brook Court Enchanted Brook Court and Fisher Bend Lane 

Enchanted Springs Drive Enchanted Springs Drive and Cottonwood School Road 

Evans Road Evans Road and F.M. Highway 723 

F.M. Highway 1640 
(Avenue I) 

F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) and Spur 529 

Fairgrounds Boulevard Fairgrounds Boulevard and State Highway 36 

Finney Vallet Road Finney Vallet Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Fisher Bend Lane Fisher Bend Lane and Milam Branch Lane 

Fountains Drive Fountains Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Frances Drive Frances Drive and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Franklin Circle Franklin Circle and Monroe Avenue 

Freeway Manor Freeway Manor and Airport Avenue 

Frost Street Frost Street and Walger Avenue 

Gardenia Circle Gardenia Circle and Mulcahy Street 

George Street George Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Georgina Street Georgina Street and Avenue N 

Georgina Street Georgina Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Gerona Boulevard Gerona Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Gibbons Court Gibbons Court and Walid Lane 

Golden Grain Drive Golden Grain Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Grand Isle Lane Grand Isle Lane and Grand Cane Lane 

Green Gate Drive Green Gate Drive and Reading Road 



Page 10 of 22 

 

Greenfield Drive Greenfield Drive and Rockwood Drive 

Greenwood Drive Greenwood Drive and Avenue N 

Grillo Way Grillo Way and Old Richmond Road 

Grillo Way Grillo Way and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Grunwald Heights 
Boulevard 

Grunwald Heights Boulevard and Bamore Road 

Grunwald Heights 
Boulevard 

Grunwald Heights Boulevard and West Street 

Gulf Court Gulf Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Habitat Lane Habitat Lane and Avenue F 

Habitat Lane Habitat Lane and Old Richmond Road 

Hackberry Bank Lane Hackberry Bank Lane and Creole Bay Lane 

Hackberry Bank Lane Hackberry Bank Lane and Grand Cane Lane 

Hampton Court Hampton Court and Old Creek Road 

Hanover Boulevard Hanover Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Hardcastle Street Hardcastle Street and Old Richmond Road 

Hardcastle Street Hardcastle Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Hardwood Drive Hardwood Drive and Old Creek Road 

Harrisburg Court Harrisburg Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Hartledge Road Hartledge Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Hawthorne Pasture Road Hawthorne Pasture Road and Cottonwood School Road 

Hawthorne Pasture Road Hawthorne Pasture Road and Wild Cotton Road 

Helen Street Helen Street and Herbie Road 

Helmsley Drive Helmsley Drive and Manor Drive 

Helmsley Drive Helmsley Drive and West Columbary Drive 



Page 11 of 22 

 

Herbie Road Herbie Road and Spacek Road 

Heritage Haven Court Heritage Haven Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Horace Mann Avenue Horace Mann Avenue and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Horace Mann Avenue Horace Mann Avenue and Mustang Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue K 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue L 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue M 

Houston Street Houston Street and Callender Street 

Houston Street Houston Street and Dyer Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Southbound) 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walenta Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walger Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walnut Avenue 

Huntington Road Huntington Road and State Highway 36 

Ida Street Ida Street and Cole Avenue 

Iris Hills Lane Iris Hills Lane and Wimberly Hollow Lane 

J. Meyer Road J. Meyer Road and State Highway 36 

J. Meyer Road J. Meyer Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

James Street James Street and Dallas Street 

James Street James Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

James Street James Street and Walger Avenue 

Jefferson Street Jefferson Street and Blume Road 

Jennetta Street Jennetta Street and Old Richmond Road 

Jervis Drive Jervis Drive and Hannover Boulevard 



Page 12 of 22 

 

Jones Street Jones Street and Airport Avenue 

Junction Court Junction Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Junker Road Junker Road and U.S. Highway 90A 

Junker Road Junker Road and Spur 529 

Junker Street Junker Street and Avenue N 

Kane Court Kane Court and Enchanted Springs Drive 

Kay Cee Drive Kay Cee Drive and State Highway 36 

Kent Valley Lane Kent Valley Lane and Fisher Bend Lane 

Kentucky Street Kentucky Street and Callender Street 

Kentucky Street Kentucky Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Southbound) 

Klare Avenue Klare Avenue and Bamore Road 

Klare Avenue Klare Avenue and West Street 

Klauke Court Klauke Court and Briar Ridge Drive 

Kovar Road Kovar Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

Kroesche Road Kroesche Road and Spur 529 

Lake Commons Drive Lake Commons Drive and Round Lake Drive 

Lake Commons Drive Lake Commons Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Lakeshore Point Lane Lakeshore Point Lane and Summer Night Lane 

Law Court Law Court and Walid Lane 

Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and Avenue N 

Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Lazy Lane Lazy Lane and Reading Road 

Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and 3rd Street 

Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and 4th Street 



Page 13 of 22 

 

Lee Circle Lee Circle and Ward Street 

Leonard Street Leonard Street and Avenue N 

Libra Street Libra Street and Pisces Street 

Limestone Court Limestone Court and Kent Valley Lane 

Limestone Court Limestone Court and Orange Blossom Lane 

Lindsey Drive Lindsey Drive and Timber Lane 

Little Haven Court Little Haven Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Little Summer Drive Little Summer Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Lloyd Street Lloyd Street and Avenue F 

Lloyd Street Lloyd Street and Old Richmond Road 

Longhorn Drive Longhorn Drive and Juan Carlos Court 

Lory Street Lory Street and Airport Avenue 

Lory Street Lory Street and Mons Avenue 

Louise Street Louise Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Louise Street Louise Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Lubojacky Road Lubojacky Road and J. Meyer Road 

MacArthur Street MacArthur Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

MacArthur Street McArthur Street and Avenue K 

Magnolia Drive Magnolia Drive and Bamore Road 

Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and Avenue P 

Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Main Street Main Street and 4th Street 

Main Street Main Street and Louise Street 

Main Street Main Street and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Manor Circle Manor Circle and Village Court Lane 



Page 14 of 22 

 

Manor Stone Lane Manor Stone Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 

Maple Road Maple Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Marilyn Street Marilyn Street and Avenue N 

Marilyn Street Marilyn Street and Briar Ridge Drive 

Marvin Drive Marvin Drive and State Highway 36 

Mary Tere Court Mary Tere Court and Teresa Drive 

Meadow Lane Meadow Lane and F.M. Highway 2977 

Meadow Lane (West) Meadow Lane (West) and Debbie Street 

Mebane Lane Mebane Lane and Spur 529 

Mercantile Drive Mercantile Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 

Miles Street Miles Street and Avenue N 

Miller Road Miller Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Miller Road Miller Road and Randon School Road 

Millie Street Millie Street and Avenue N 

Millie Street Millie Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Mimosa Lane Mimosa Lane and Mulcahy Street 

Mockingbird Lane Mockingbird Lane and Airport Avenue 

Mons Avenue Mons Avenue and Louise Street 

Moore Bar Road Moore Bar Road and State Highway 36 

Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and Southgate Drive 

Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and Walnut Avenue 

Nanterre Court Nanterre Court and East Parma Drive 

North Fairgrounds Road North Fairgrounds Road and US Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Oak Street Oak Street and Avenue E 



Page 15 of 22 

 

Oak Street Oak Street and Walnut Avenue 

Oakland Valley Drive Oakland Valley Drive and Bryan Road 

Old Creek Road Old Creek Road and Avenue N 

Old Radio Lane Old Radio Lane and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Old Radio Lane Old Radio Lane and Radio Lane 

Park Place Boulevard Park Place Boulevard and Reading Road 

Park Thicket Lane Park Thicket Lane and Golden Brandy Lane 

Park Thicket Lane Park Thicket Lane and J. Meyer Road 

Parrott Avenue Parrott Avenue and 4th Street 

Peace Street Peace Street and Cole Avenue 

Peace Street Peace Street and Radio Lane 

Pecan Road Pecan Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Pine Road Pine Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Pisces Street Pisces Street and Bryan Road 

Plaza Drive Plaza Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Prairie Lane Prairie Lane and Spur 529 

Premier Circle Premier Circle and Banner Lane 

Rainswept Pass Drive Rainswept Pass Drive and Blue Lake Drive 

Randon Dyer Road Randon Dyer Road and Spur 10 

Rawson Drive Rawson Drive and Old Richmond Road 

Rawson Drive Rawson Drive and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Reading Road Reading Road and Herndon Drive 

Redbud Drive Redbud Drive and Greenwood Drive 

Reese Road Reese Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Reese Road Reese Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 



Page 16 of 22 

 

Reinhard Street Reinhard Street and Bamore Road 

Rice Street Rice Street and West Street 

Ricefield Road Ricefield Road and F.M. Highway 2977 

Richard Street Richard Street and Reading Road 

Rickfish Run Drive Rickfish Run Drive and Lake Commons Drive 

Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Graeber Road 

Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Jones Street 

Rockwood Drive Rockwood Drive and Old Creek Road 

Rude Road Rude Road and U.S. Highway 90A 

Rychlik Drive Rychlik Drive and Louise Street 

San Antonio Court San Antonio Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Avenue K 

San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Old Richmond Road 

Santa Fe Court Santa Fe Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Scott Road Scott Road and Spur 529 

Seabourne Meadows Drive Seabourne Meadows Drive and Spur Highway 529 

Sequoia Lane Sequoia Lane and Mons Avenue 

Shane Street Shane Street and Herbie Road 

Sidney Street Sidney Street and Old Richmond Road 

Sidney Street Sidney Street and U.S. Highway 90A(Avenue H) 

Silver Ripple Drive Silver Ripple Drive and Round Lake Drive 

Silver Stone Lane Silver Stone Lane and J. Meyer Road 

Silver Stone Lane Silver Stone Lane and Oak Briar Lane 

Silverado Trails Silverado Trails and Old Richmond Road 

Silverado Trails Silverado Trails and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 



Page 17 of 22 

 

Southgate Drive Southgate Drive and Bamore Road 

Southgate Drive Southgate Drive and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Spacek Road Spacek Road and Bryan Road 

Spacek Road Spacek Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Spur 10 Spur 10 and State Highway 36 

Spur 10 Ramp Spur 10 Ramp and Randon Dyer Road 

Spur 10 Ramp Spur 10 Ramp and U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp North of 
U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. Highway 90A and Spur 10 

Spur 10 Ramp South of 
U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp South of U.S. Highway 90A and Spur 10 

Spur 529 Spur 529 and State Highway 36/U.S. Highway 90 A (Avenue H) 

State Highway 36 State Highway 36 and U.S. Highway 90A 

Stella Road Stella Road and Band Road 

Stevens Court Stevens Court and Taylan Lane 

Stone Ridge Court Stone Ridge Court and Oakland Valley Drive 

Summer Creek Lane Summer Creek Lane and Summer Night Lane 

Summer Creek Lane Summer Creek Lane and Summerdale Drive 

Summer Crest Drive Summer Crest Drive and Reading Road 

Summer Crest Drive Summer Crest Drive and Summer Shore Drive 

Summer Gate Court Summer Gate Court and Summer Night Lane 

Summer Mist Lane Summer Mist Lane and Summer Shore Drive 

Summer Night Lane Summer Night Lane and Round Lake Drive 

Summer Park Way Summer Park Way and Spacek Road 

Summer Shore Drive Summer Shore Drive and Lake Commons Drive 

Talasek Street Talasek Street and Mons Avenue 



Page 18 of 22 

 

Teresa Drive Teresa Drive and Ripple Creek Drive 

Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and George Street 

Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Timber Lane Timber Lane and Sally Anne Drive 

Tobola Street Tobola Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Town Center Boulevard Town Center Boulevard and Radio Lane 

Town Village Boulevard Town Village Boulevard and East Columbary Drive 

Town Village Boulevard Town Village Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Township Court Township Court and East Columbary Drive 

Tremont Court Tremont Court and Parrott Avenue 

Truman Circle Truman Circle and Ward Street 

Turtle Creek Drive Turtle Creek Drive and Airport Avenue 

Tyler Trace Lane Tyler Trace Lane and Milam Branch Lane 

Tyler Trace Lane Tyler Trace Lane and Orange Blossom Lane 

Village Club Drive Village Club Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Village Club Drive Village Club Drive and Vista Drive 

Village Court Boulevard Village Court Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Village Court Circle Village Court Circle and Village Court Drive 

Village Court Lane Village Court Lane and Cotter Lane 

Village Court Lane Village Court Lane and Village Court Drive 

Wagon Wheel Lane Wagon Wheel Lane and Bass Lane 

Wagon Wheel Lane Wagon Wheel Lane and Diamond River Drive 

Walenta Avenue Walenta Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Walenta Avenue Walenta Avenue and West Street 

Walger Avenue Walger Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 



Page 19 of 22 

 

Walger Avenue (North) Walger Avenue (North) and Bamore Road 

Walger Avenue (South) Walger Avenue (South) and Bamore Road 

Walger Avenue (South) Walger Avenue (South) and West Street 

Wallace Wehring Drive Wallace Wehring Drive and State Highway 36 

Walnut Glen Lane Walnut Glen Lane and Spacek Road 

Walnut Street Walnut Street and 3rd Street 

Walnut Street Walnut Street and State Highway 36 

Walsh Road Walsh Road and Spur 529 

Walter Street Walter Street and Old Richmond Road 

Ward Street Ward Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Ward Street Ward Street and Old Richmond Road 

Ward Street Ward Street and Parkway Avenue 

Ward Street Ward Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Washington Street Washington Street and Blume Road 

Waterbrook Lane Waterbrook Lane and Belvedere Drive 

West Columbary Drive West Columbary Drive and Village Court Boulevard 

West Fairgrounds Road West Fairgrounds Road and Fairground Boulevard 

West Street West Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

West Street West Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

West Street West Street and Walnut Avenue 

Westwood Drive Westwood Drive and Lane Drive 

White Oak Drive White Oak Drive and Avenue N 

Wilburn Street Wilburn Street and Bamore Road 

Willow Street Willow Street and Walnut Avenue 

Winding Lakes Lane Winding Lakes Lane and Summer Night Lane 



Page 20 of 22 

 

Winners Court Winners Court and Cunningham Lane 

Woodland Village Drive Woodland Village Drive and Brooks Avenue 

Woodrow Drive Woodrow Drive and Lane Drive 

Woodrow Drive Woodrow Drive and Wilson Drive 

  

*** 

(c) Three-way stops. Stop signs indicating three-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city: 

Stop Street Intersection Streets 

8th Street and Parrott Avenue 8th Street and Parrott Avenue 

Airport Avenue and Graeber Road Airport Avenue and Graeber Road 

Airport Avenue, Alamo Street, and Live Oak 
Drive 

Airport Avenue, Alamo Street, and Live Oak 
Drive 

Avenue E and West Street Avenue E and West Street 

Avenue M and 8th Street Avenue M and 8th Street 

Avenue N and Graeber Road Avenue N and Graeber Road 

Avenue O, Avenue R, and Leonard Street 
(Southbound) 

Avenue O, Avenue R, and Leonard Street 
(Southbound) 

Avenue R and Tobola Street Avenue R and Tobola Street 

Collins Creek Boulevard and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Collins Creek Boulevard and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Commercial Drive and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Commercial Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Dogwood Drive and Greenwood Drive Dogwood Drive and Greenwood Drive 

Freeway Manor and Junker Street Freeway Manor and Junker Street 

Herndon Drive and Mustang Avenue Herndon Drive and Mustang Avenue 

Homestead Road and Allwright Street Homestead Road and Allwright Street 



Page 21 of 22 

 

Homestead Road and Lazy Lane Homestead Road and Lazy Lane 

Homestead Road and Richard Street Homestead Road and Richard Street 

Jones Street and Briar Ridge Jones Street and Briar Ridge 

Jones Street and Marilyn Street Jones Street and Marilyn Street 

Junker Street and Jones Street Junker Street and Jones Street 

Klauke Road and Bamore Road Klauke Road and Bamore Road 

Reading Road and U.S. Highway 59 
Frontage Road 

Reading Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage 
Road 

Sandalwood Avenue and Greenwood Drive Sandalwood Avenue and Greenwood Drive 

Sandalwood Avenue and Spruce Drive Sandalwood Avenue and Spruce Drive 

Vista Drive and Town Center Boulevard Vista Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Walnut Glen Lane Walnut Glen Lane and Spacek Road 

West Fairgrounds Road, Stella Road, and 
Klauke Road 

West Fairgrounds Road, Stella Road, and 
Klauke Road 

White Oak Drive and Woodway Avenue White Oak Drive and Woodway Avenue 

 
* * * “ 

Section 3. Any person who shall violate any provision contained in this Ordinance, 

or who shall commit or perform any act declared herein to be unlawful shall be deemed 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount of not less 

than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 5. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 



Page 22 of 22 

 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of 

the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 22 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY DELETING ALL OF SECTION 28-41 (a) 
AND (c), STOP SIGNS DESIGNATED, OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF 
CHAPTER 28, STOP STREETS, AND SUBSTITUTING THEREFOR A NEW 
SECTION 28-41 (a) AND (c) OF ARTICLE II, DIVISION 2 OF CHAPTER 28 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR A THREE-WAY STOP AT THE 
INTERSECTION OF WALNUT GLEN LANE AND SPACEK ROAD; 
DELETING THE ONE-WAY STOP AT THE INTERSECTION OF CARLISLE 
STREET AND AVENUE D; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT OF 
NOT LESS THAN $1.00 OR MORE THAN $200.00 FOR VIOLATION OF 
ANY PROVISION HEREOF; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS 
OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is authorized by 
Section 542.202 of the Texas Transportation Code to regulate traffic by the placement of 
traffic control devices; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined and 
finds that the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the traveling 
public require removing certain stop signs and placing stop signs at certain locations which 
requires deleting the following stop sign designations from Section 28-41 (a) and (c) of 
Article II, Division 2 of Chapter 28, Stop Streets, and substituting a new Section 28-41 (a) 
and (c) with new stop sign designations; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, finds that Chapter 28 
requires amending to include a penalty range of a fine in an amount of not less than one 
dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00); now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

 Section 2. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg is hereby 

amended by deleting from Chapter 28, Section 28-41 (a) and (c) Stop Signs Designated, 

of Article II, Division 2, and substituing a new Section 28-41 (a) and (c) Stop Signs 

Designated as follows: 

“Sec. 28-41. - Stop signs designated. 
 



Page 2 of 22 

 

(a) One-way stops. Stop signs indicating one-way stops shall be placed at the following 
locations within the city: 
 

Stop Street Intersection Streets 

1st Street 1st Street and Walnut Avenue 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue O 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue E 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue F 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Avenue M 

2nd Street 2nd Street and Main Street 

3rd Street 3rd Street and Mons Avenue 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue A 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue C 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue E 

4th Street 4th Street and Avenue F 

4th Street 4th Street and Mons Avenue 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue B 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue E 

5th Street 5th Street and Avenue F 

5th Street 5th Street and Parrott Avenue 

6th Street 6th Street and Avenue B 

6th Street 6th Street and Parrott Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Avenue F 

7th Street 7th Street and Leaman Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Mons Avenue 

7th Street 7th Street and Parrott Avenue 



Page 3 of 22 

 

8th Street (Northbound) 8th Street and Avenue F 

Ace Court Ace Court and Stone Ridge Court 

Alamo Street Alamo Street and Mons Avenue 

Alamo Street Alamo Street and Old Richmond Road 

Aldernay Court Aldernay Court and Gerona Boulevard 

Allen Street Allen Street and Dallas Avenue 

Allen Street Allen Street and Spur 529 

Allen Street Allen Street and Walger Avenue 

Allwright Street Allwright Street and Orange Blossom Lane 

Arbor Court Arbor Court and Village Court Lane 

Arbury Hill Lane Arbury Hill Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 

Archer Ranch Lane Archer Ranch Lane and Wimberly Hollow Lane 

Arcola Court Arcola Court and Belvedere Drive 

August Green Drive August Green Drive and F.M. Highway 2977 

Austin Street Austin Street and Avenue L 

Austin Street Austin Street and Avenue N 

Austin Street Austin Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Avenue B Avenue B and 3rd Street 

Avenue B Avenue B and 8th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 2nd Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 6th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 7th Street 

Avenue C Avenue C and 8th Street 

Avenue D Avenue D and 7th Street 

Avenue D Avenue D and Elm Street 



Page 4 of 22 

 

Avenue E Avenue E and Elm Street 

Avenue J Avenue J and Bamore Road 

Avenue J Avenue J and Mahlmann Street 

Avenue K Avenue K and 8th Street 

Avenue K Avenue K and Bamore Road 

Avenue K Avenue K and Damon Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and 8th Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and Allen Street 

Avenue L Avenue L and Bamore Road 

Avenue L Avenue L and Mahlman Street 

Avenue M Avenue M and Allen Street 

Avenue M Avenue M and Bamore Road 

Avenue M Avenue M and George Street 

Avenue M (West) Avenue M (West) and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Avenue N Avenue N and 3rd Street 

Avenue N Avenue N and 4th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Avenue O Avenue O and 3rd Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and 4th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and 8th Street 

Avenue O Avenue O and Louise Street 

Avenue P Avenue P and Louise Street 

Avenue R Avenue R and Louise Street 

Azalea Drive Azalea Drive and Mulcahy Street 

Baker Road Baker Road and F.M. Highway 723 



Page 5 of 22 

 

Bamboo Lane Bamboo Lane and Stoneridge Court 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and Spur 529 

Bamore Road Bamore Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Bayou Cane Lane Bayou Cane Lane and Fallen Reed Lane 

Bayou Cane Lane Bayou Cane Lane and Louise Street 

Bayou Crossing Court Bayou Crossing Court and Airport Avenue 

Bayou Crossing Court Bayou Crossing Court and Cypress Landing Court 

Bend Ray Court Bend Ray Court and Summer Night Lane 

Bernard Avenue Bernard Avenue and Bamore Road 

Bernard Avenue Bernard Avenue and West Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and 4th Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and 7th Street 

Bernie Avenue Bernie Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Biotics Research Drive Biotics Research Drive and Spacek Road 

Blackhawk Ridge Court Blackhawk Ridge Court and Hawthorne Pasture Road 

Blackwood Road Blackwood Road and Muegge Road 

Blaydon Court Blaydon Court and W. Parma Drive 

Blue Lake Drive Blue Lake Drive and Summer Shore Drive 

Blume Road Blume Road and Klauke Road 

Blume Road Blume Road and Spur 529 

Bower Court Bower Court and West Columbary Drive 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue D 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Avenue G 



Page 6 of 22 

 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Walger Avenue 

Brazos Street Brazos Street and Walnut Avenue 

Brazos Town Crossing Brazos Town Crossing and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Briar Ridge Drive Briar Ridge Drive and Junker Street 

Bridle Path Bridle Path and Wilson Drive 

Bridle Path Bridle Path and Pecan Park Drive 

Broadview Circle Broadview Circle and 4th Street 

Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and 4th Street 

Brooks Avenue Brooks Avenue and Bamore Road 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Avenue N 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Briar Ridge Drive 

Brumbelow Street Brumbelow Street and Jones Street 

Bryan Road Bryan Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Bryan Road Bryan Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Butler Lakes Court Butler Lakes Court and Summerdale Drive 

Callender Street Callender Street and West Street 

Calvin Road Calvin Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

Cambay Drive Cambay Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Cambridge Circle Cambridge Circle and Ward Street 

Canton Circle Canton Circle and East Columbary Drive 

Canyon Hill Lane Canyon Hill Lane and Athea Way 

Canyon Hill Lane Canyon Hill Lane and Bamore Road 

Cardinal Drive Cardinal Drive and Meadow Lane 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Avenue G 



Page 7 of 22 

 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Walger Avenue 

Carlisle Street Carlisle Street and Walnut Avenue 

Cartwright Court Cartwright Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Caslyn Drive Caslyn Drive and Cotter Lane 

Cedar Lane Cedar Lane and Mons Avenue 

Cedar Road Cedar Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Celaya Court Celaya Court and East Parma Drive 

Chelsea Court Chelsea Court and Parrott Avenue 

Chupik Street Chupik Street and Mons Avenue 

Cindy Court Cindy Court and Ripple Creek Drive 

City Hall Drive City Hall Drive and 4th Street 

Cole Avenue Cole Avenue and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Cole Avenue Cole Avenue and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Collins Creek Boulevard Collins Creek Boulevard and Delta Crossing 

Corporate Drive Corporate Drive and Mustang Avenue 

Cotter Court Cotter Court and Cotter Lane 

Cotton Gum Lane Cotton Gum Lane and Hawthorne Pasture Road 

Cotton Gum Lane Cotton Gum Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Cottonwood Church Road 
(Northbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road (Northbound) and U.S. Highway 59 
Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road 
(Southbound) 

Cottonwood Church Road (Southbound) and U.S. Highway 59 
(Northbound) 

Daily Road Daily Road and U.S. Highway 59 (Northbound) 

Daily Road Daily Road and U.S. Highway 59 (Southbound) 

Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and Bamore Road 

Dallas Avenue Dallas Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 



Page 8 of 22 

 

Damascus Road Damascus Road and Bamore Road 

Damon Street Damon Street and Avenue N 

Damon Street Damon Street and Old Richmond Road 

Danziger Road Danziger Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Danziger Road Danziger Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

David Street David Street and Mons Avenue 

Debbie Court Debbie Court and Teresa Drive 

Delta Crossing Court 
(East) 

Delta Crossing Court (East) and Delta Crossing Lane 

Delta Crossing Court 
(West) 

Delta Crossing Court (West) and Delta Crossing Lane 

Delta Crossing Lane Delta Crossing Lane and Ellis Grove Lane 

Desert Oasis Lane Desert Oasis Lane and Crabapple Way 

Desert Oasis Lane Desert Oasis Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Desert Springs Lane Desert Springs Lane and Crabapple Way 

Desert Springs Lane Desert Springs Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Desert Willow Lane Desert Willow Lane and Wild Cotton Road 

Diamond River Drive Diamond River Drive and Walnut Glen Lane 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and Bamore Road 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and George Street 

Dyer Avenue Dyer Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Easy Street Easy Street and West Street 

Elizabeth Avenue Elizabeth Avenue and Bamore Road 

Ellis Grove Lane Ellis Grove Lane and Fisher Bend Lane 

Elm Street Elm Street and Walnut Avenue 



Page 9 of 22 

 

Emilee Court Emilee Court and Taylan Lane 

Enchanted Brook Court Enchanted Brook Court and Fisher Bend Lane 

Enchanted Springs Drive Enchanted Springs Drive and Cottonwood School Road 

Evans Road Evans Road and F.M. Highway 723 

F.M. Highway 1640 
(Avenue I) 

F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) and Spur 529 

Fairgrounds Boulevard Fairgrounds Boulevard and State Highway 36 

Finney Vallet Road Finney Vallet Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Fisher Bend Lane Fisher Bend Lane and Milam Branch Lane 

Fountains Drive Fountains Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Frances Drive Frances Drive and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Franklin Circle Franklin Circle and Monroe Avenue 

Freeway Manor Freeway Manor and Airport Avenue 

Frost Street Frost Street and Walger Avenue 

Gardenia Circle Gardenia Circle and Mulcahy Street 

George Street George Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Georgina Street Georgina Street and Avenue N 

Georgina Street Georgina Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Gerona Boulevard Gerona Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Gibbons Court Gibbons Court and Walid Lane 

Golden Grain Drive Golden Grain Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Grand Isle Lane Grand Isle Lane and Grand Cane Lane 

Green Gate Drive Green Gate Drive and Reading Road 

Greenfield Drive Greenfield Drive and Rockwood Drive 



Page 10 of 22 

 

Greenwood Drive Greenwood Drive and Avenue N 

Grillo Way Grillo Way and Old Richmond Road 

Grillo Way Grillo Way and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Grunwald Heights 
Boulevard 

Grunwald Heights Boulevard and Bamore Road 

Grunwald Heights 
Boulevard 

Grunwald Heights Boulevard and West Street 

Gulf Court Gulf Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Habitat Lane Habitat Lane and Avenue F 

Habitat Lane Habitat Lane and Old Richmond Road 

Hackberry Bank Lane Hackberry Bank Lane and Creole Bay Lane 

Hackberry Bank Lane Hackberry Bank Lane and Grand Cane Lane 

Hampton Court Hampton Court and Old Creek Road 

Hanover Boulevard Hanover Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Hardcastle Street Hardcastle Street and Old Richmond Road 

Hardcastle Street Hardcastle Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Hardwood Drive Hardwood Drive and Old Creek Road 

Harrisburg Court Harrisburg Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Hartledge Road Hartledge Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Hawthorne Pasture Road Hawthorne Pasture Road and Cottonwood School Road 

Hawthorne Pasture Road Hawthorne Pasture Road and Wild Cotton Road 

Helen Street Helen Street and Herbie Road 

Helmsley Drive Helmsley Drive and Manor Drive 

Helmsley Drive Helmsley Drive and West Columbary Drive 

Herbie Road Herbie Road and Spacek Road 



Page 11 of 22 

 

Heritage Haven Court Heritage Haven Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Horace Mann Avenue Horace Mann Avenue and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Horace Mann Avenue Horace Mann Avenue and Mustang Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue K 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue L 

Houston Street Houston Street and Avenue M 

Houston Street Houston Street and Callender Street 

Houston Street Houston Street and Dyer Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Southbound) 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walenta Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walger Avenue 

Houston Street Houston Street and Walnut Avenue 

Huntington Road Huntington Road and State Highway 36 

Ida Street Ida Street and Cole Avenue 

Iris Hills Lane Iris Hills Lane and Wimberly Hollow Lane 

J. Meyer Road J. Meyer Road and State Highway 36 

J. Meyer Road J. Meyer Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

James Street James Street and Dallas Street 

James Street James Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

James Street James Street and Walger Avenue 

Jefferson Street Jefferson Street and Blume Road 

Jennetta Street Jennetta Street and Old Richmond Road 

Jervis Drive Jervis Drive and Hannover Boulevard 

Jones Street Jones Street and Airport Avenue 



Page 12 of 22 

 

Junction Court Junction Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Junker Road Junker Road and U.S. Highway 90A 

Junker Road Junker Road and Spur 529 

Junker Street Junker Street and Avenue N 

Kane Court Kane Court and Enchanted Springs Drive 

Kay Cee Drive Kay Cee Drive and State Highway 36 

Kent Valley Lane Kent Valley Lane and Fisher Bend Lane 

Kentucky Street Kentucky Street and Callender Street 

Kentucky Street Kentucky Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Southbound) 

Klare Avenue Klare Avenue and Bamore Road 

Klare Avenue Klare Avenue and West Street 

Klauke Court Klauke Court and Briar Ridge Drive 

Kovar Road Kovar Road and F.M. Highway 2218 

Kroesche Road Kroesche Road and Spur 529 

Lake Commons Drive Lake Commons Drive and Round Lake Drive 

Lake Commons Drive Lake Commons Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Lakeshore Point Lane Lakeshore Point Lane and Summer Night Lane 

Law Court Law Court and Walid Lane 

Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and Avenue N 

Lawrence Street Lawrence Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Lazy Lane Lazy Lane and Reading Road 

Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and 3rd Street 

Leaman Avenue Leaman Avenue and 4th Street 

Lee Circle Lee Circle and Ward Street 



Page 13 of 22 

 

Leonard Street Leonard Street and Avenue N 

Libra Street Libra Street and Pisces Street 

Limestone Court Limestone Court and Kent Valley Lane 

Limestone Court Limestone Court and Orange Blossom Lane 

Lindsey Drive Lindsey Drive and Timber Lane 

Little Haven Court Little Haven Court and Grande Gables Drive 

Little Summer Drive Little Summer Drive and Summer Night Lane 

Lloyd Street Lloyd Street and Avenue F 

Lloyd Street Lloyd Street and Old Richmond Road 

Longhorn Drive Longhorn Drive and Juan Carlos Court 

Lory Street Lory Street and Airport Avenue 

Lory Street Lory Street and Mons Avenue 

Louise Street Louise Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Louise Street Louise Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Lubojacky Road Lubojacky Road and J. Meyer Road 

MacArthur Street MacArthur Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

MacArthur Street McArthur Street and Avenue K 

Magnolia Drive Magnolia Drive and Bamore Road 

Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and Avenue P 

Mahlman Street Mahlman Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Main Street Main Street and 4th Street 

Main Street Main Street and Louise Street 

Main Street Main Street and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Manor Circle Manor Circle and Village Court Lane 

Manor Stone Lane Manor Stone Lane and Heath Ridge Lane 



Page 14 of 22 

 

Maple Road Maple Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Marilyn Street Marilyn Street and Avenue N 

Marilyn Street Marilyn Street and Briar Ridge Drive 

Marvin Drive Marvin Drive and State Highway 36 

Mary Tere Court Mary Tere Court and Teresa Drive 

Meadow Lane Meadow Lane and F.M. Highway 2977 

Meadow Lane (West) Meadow Lane (West) and Debbie Street 

Mebane Lane Mebane Lane and Spur 529 

Mercantile Drive Mercantile Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road 

Miles Street Miles Street and Avenue N 

Miller Road Miller Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Miller Road Miller Road and Randon School Road 

Millie Street Millie Street and Avenue N 

Millie Street Millie Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Mimosa Lane Mimosa Lane and Mulcahy Street 

Mockingbird Lane Mockingbird Lane and Airport Avenue 

Mons Avenue Mons Avenue and Louise Street 

Moore Bar Road Moore Bar Road and State Highway 36 

Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and Southgate Drive 

Mulcahy Street Mulcahy Street and Walnut Avenue 

Nanterre Court Nanterre Court and East Parma Drive 

North Fairgrounds Road North Fairgrounds Road and US Highway 59 Frontage Road 
(Northbound) 

Oak Street Oak Street and Avenue E 

Oak Street Oak Street and Walnut Avenue 



Page 15 of 22 

 

Oakland Valley Drive Oakland Valley Drive and Bryan Road 

Old Creek Road Old Creek Road and Avenue N 

Old Radio Lane Old Radio Lane and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Old Radio Lane Old Radio Lane and Radio Lane 

Park Place Boulevard Park Place Boulevard and Reading Road 

Park Thicket Lane Park Thicket Lane and Golden Brandy Lane 

Park Thicket Lane Park Thicket Lane and J. Meyer Road 

Parrott Avenue Parrott Avenue and 4th Street 

Peace Street Peace Street and Cole Avenue 

Peace Street Peace Street and Radio Lane 

Pecan Road Pecan Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Pine Road Pine Road and Kay Cee Drive 

Pisces Street Pisces Street and Bryan Road 

Plaza Drive Plaza Drive and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

Prairie Lane Prairie Lane and Spur 529 

Premier Circle Premier Circle and Banner Lane 

Rainswept Pass Drive Rainswept Pass Drive and Blue Lake Drive 

Randon Dyer Road Randon Dyer Road and Spur 10 

Rawson Drive Rawson Drive and Old Richmond Road 

Rawson Drive Rawson Drive and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Reading Road Reading Road and Herndon Drive 

Redbud Drive Redbud Drive and Greenwood Drive 

Reese Road Reese Road and F.M. Highway 2218 (B.F. Terry Boulevard) 

Reese Road Reese Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Reinhard Street Reinhard Street and Bamore Road 



Page 16 of 22 

 

Rice Street Rice Street and West Street 

Ricefield Road Ricefield Road and F.M. Highway 2977 

Richard Street Richard Street and Reading Road 

Rickfish Run Drive Rickfish Run Drive and Lake Commons Drive 

Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Graeber Road 

Ripple Creek Drive Ripple Creek Drive and Jones Street 

Rockwood Drive Rockwood Drive and Old Creek Road 

Rude Road Rude Road and U.S. Highway 90A 

Rychlik Drive Rychlik Drive and Louise Street 

San Antonio Court San Antonio Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Avenue K 

San Jacinto Street San Jacinto Street and Old Richmond Road 

Santa Fe Court Santa Fe Court and Seabourne Meadows Drive 

Scott Road Scott Road and Spur 529 

Seabourne Meadows Drive Seabourne Meadows Drive and Spur Highway 529 

Sequoia Lane Sequoia Lane and Mons Avenue 

Shane Street Shane Street and Herbie Road 

Sidney Street Sidney Street and Old Richmond Road 

Sidney Street Sidney Street and U.S. Highway 90A(Avenue H) 

Silver Ripple Drive Silver Ripple Drive and Round Lake Drive 

Silver Stone Lane Silver Stone Lane and J. Meyer Road 

Silver Stone Lane Silver Stone Lane and Oak Briar Lane 

Silverado Trails Silverado Trails and Old Richmond Road 

Silverado Trails Silverado Trails and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Southgate Drive Southgate Drive and Bamore Road 



Page 17 of 22 

 

Southgate Drive Southgate Drive and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Spacek Road Spacek Road and Bryan Road 

Spacek Road Spacek Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Northbound) 

Spur 10 Spur 10 and State Highway 36 

Spur 10 Ramp Spur 10 Ramp and Randon Dyer Road 

Spur 10 Ramp Spur 10 Ramp and U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp North of 
U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp North of U.S. Highway 90A and Spur 10 

Spur 10 Ramp South of 
U.S. Highway 90A 

Spur 10 Ramp South of U.S. Highway 90A and Spur 10 

Spur 529 Spur 529 and State Highway 36/U.S. Highway 90 A (Avenue H) 

State Highway 36 State Highway 36 and U.S. Highway 90A 

Stella Road Stella Road and Band Road 

Stevens Court Stevens Court and Taylan Lane 

Stone Ridge Court Stone Ridge Court and Oakland Valley Drive 

Summer Creek Lane Summer Creek Lane and Summer Night Lane 

Summer Creek Lane Summer Creek Lane and Summerdale Drive 

Summer Crest Drive Summer Crest Drive and Reading Road 

Summer Crest Drive Summer Crest Drive and Summer Shore Drive 

Summer Gate Court Summer Gate Court and Summer Night Lane 

Summer Mist Lane Summer Mist Lane and Summer Shore Drive 

Summer Night Lane Summer Night Lane and Round Lake Drive 

Summer Park Way Summer Park Way and Spacek Road 

Summer Shore Drive Summer Shore Drive and Lake Commons Drive 

Talasek Street Talasek Street and Mons Avenue 

Teresa Drive Teresa Drive and Ripple Creek Drive 



Page 18 of 22 

 

Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and George Street 

Texas Avenue Texas Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Timber Lane Timber Lane and Sally Anne Drive 

Tobola Street Tobola Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Town Center Boulevard Town Center Boulevard and Radio Lane 

Town Village Boulevard Town Village Boulevard and East Columbary Drive 

Town Village Boulevard Town Village Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Township Court Township Court and East Columbary Drive 

Tremont Court Tremont Court and Parrott Avenue 

Truman Circle Truman Circle and Ward Street 

Turtle Creek Drive Turtle Creek Drive and Airport Avenue 

Tyler Trace Lane Tyler Trace Lane and Milam Branch Lane 

Tyler Trace Lane Tyler Trace Lane and Orange Blossom Lane 

Village Club Drive Village Club Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Village Club Drive Village Club Drive and Vista Drive 

Village Court Boulevard Village Court Boulevard and Town Center Boulevard 

Village Court Circle Village Court Circle and Village Court Drive 

Village Court Lane Village Court Lane and Cotter Lane 

Village Court Lane Village Court Lane and Village Court Drive 

Wagon Wheel Lane Wagon Wheel Lane and Bass Lane 

Wagon Wheel Lane Wagon Wheel Lane and Diamond River Drive 

Walenta Avenue Walenta Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Walenta Avenue Walenta Avenue and West Street 

Walger Avenue Walger Avenue and State Highway 36 (1st Street) 

Walger Avenue (North) Walger Avenue (North) and Bamore Road 



Page 19 of 22 

 

Walger Avenue (South) Walger Avenue (South) and Bamore Road 

Walger Avenue (South) Walger Avenue (South) and West Street 

Wallace Wehring Drive Wallace Wehring Drive and State Highway 36 

Walnut Street Walnut Street and 3rd Street 

Walnut Street Walnut Street and State Highway 36 

Walsh Road Walsh Road and Spur 529 

Walter Street Walter Street and Old Richmond Road 

Ward Street Ward Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

Ward Street Ward Street and Old Richmond Road 

Ward Street Ward Street and Parkway Avenue 

Ward Street Ward Street and U.S. Highway 90A (Avenue H) 

Washington Street Washington Street and Blume Road 

Waterbrook Lane Waterbrook Lane and Belvedere Drive 

West Columbary Drive West Columbary Drive and Village Court Boulevard 

West Fairgrounds Road West Fairgrounds Road and Fairground Boulevard 

West Street West Street and F.M. Highway 1640 (Avenue I) 

West Street West Street and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage Road (Southbound) 

West Street West Street and Walnut Avenue 

Westwood Drive Westwood Drive and Lane Drive 

White Oak Drive White Oak Drive and Avenue N 

Wilburn Street Wilburn Street and Bamore Road 

Willow Street Willow Street and Walnut Avenue 

Winding Lakes Lane Winding Lakes Lane and Summer Night Lane 

Winners Court Winners Court and Cunningham Lane 

Woodland Village Drive Woodland Village Drive and Brooks Avenue 



Page 20 of 22 

 

Woodrow Drive Woodrow Drive and Lane Drive 

Woodrow Drive Woodrow Drive and Wilson Drive 

  

*** 

(c) Three-way stops. Stop signs indicating three-way stops shall be placed at the 
following locations within the city: 

Stop Street Intersection Streets 

8th Street and Parrott Avenue 8th Street and Parrott Avenue 

Airport Avenue and Graeber Road Airport Avenue and Graeber Road 

Airport Avenue, Alamo Street, and Live Oak 
Drive 

Airport Avenue, Alamo Street, and Live Oak 
Drive 

Avenue E and West Street Avenue E and West Street 

Avenue M and 8th Street Avenue M and 8th Street 

Avenue N and Graeber Road Avenue N and Graeber Road 

Avenue O, Avenue R, and Leonard Street 
(Southbound) 

Avenue O, Avenue R, and Leonard Street 
(Southbound) 

Avenue R and Tobola Street Avenue R and Tobola Street 

Collins Creek Boulevard and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Collins Creek Boulevard and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Commercial Drive and Town Center 
Boulevard 

Commercial Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Dogwood Drive and Greenwood Drive Dogwood Drive and Greenwood Drive 

Freeway Manor and Junker Street Freeway Manor and Junker Street 

Herndon Drive and Mustang Avenue Herndon Drive and Mustang Avenue 

Homestead Road and Allwright Street Homestead Road and Allwright Street 

Homestead Road and Lazy Lane Homestead Road and Lazy Lane 

Homestead Road and Richard Street Homestead Road and Richard Street 



Page 21 of 22 

 

Jones Street and Briar Ridge Jones Street and Briar Ridge 

Jones Street and Marilyn Street Jones Street and Marilyn Street 

Junker Street and Jones Street Junker Street and Jones Street 

Klauke Road and Bamore Road Klauke Road and Bamore Road 

Reading Road and U.S. Highway 59 
Frontage Road 

Reading Road and U.S. Highway 59 Frontage 
Road 

Sandalwood Avenue and Greenwood Drive Sandalwood Avenue and Greenwood Drive 

Sandalwood Avenue and Spruce Drive Sandalwood Avenue and Spruce Drive 

Vista Drive and Town Center Boulevard Vista Drive and Town Center Boulevard 

Walnut Glen Lane Walnut Glen Lane and Spacek Road 

West Fairgrounds Road, Stella Road, and 
Klauke Road 

West Fairgrounds Road, Stella Road, and 
Klauke Road 

White Oak Drive and Woodway Avenue White Oak Drive and Woodway Avenue 

 
* * * “ 

Section 3. Any person who shall violate any provision contained in this Ordinance, 

or who shall commit or perform any act declared herein to be unlawful shall be deemed 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount of not less 

than one dollar ($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

Section 4. All ordinances or parts inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed. 

Section 5. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of 



Page 22 of 22 

 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of 

the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

Section 6. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 

 

 

 



johnm
Callout
Spacek Road

johnm
Callout
Bryan Road

johnm
Callout
US Hwy 59 / I-69

johnm
Callout
Proposed 3-Way Stop - intersection of Walnut Glen Lane & Spacek Road



johnm
Callout
FM 723

johnm
Callout
Avenue D

johnm
Callout
Carlisle Street

johnm
Callout
Our Lady of Guadalupe Church

johnm
Callout
Intersection of Carlisle Street & Avenue D - Delete Stop Sign

johnm
Polygon

johnm
Callout
Portion of Carlisle Street Right of Way Sold to Our Lady of Guadalupe Church



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

11 Ordinance No. 2015-05 – Revised Speed Limit in Oaks of Rosenberg 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-05,  an Ordinance amending the Code Of Ordinances 
by adding to Section 28-71 of Division 4 of Article II of Chapter 28 thereof, a new prima facie speed limit of 
twenty-five (25) miles per hour along Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of approximately three-
hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a distance of approximately one-
hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo Lane, from Banner Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from 
Bamboo Court to Oakland Valley Drive; Bass Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Belvedere 
Drive, from Bass Lane to a distance approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) feet west of Arcola 
Court; Cunningham Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Diamond River Drive, from 
Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive from Bryan Road, a distance of 
approximately one-thousand four-hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a 
distance of approximately two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to 
Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance approximately one-hundred 
and sixty (160) feet west of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of 
approximately eight-hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court; Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to 
Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, 
from Silverton Bend to Spacek Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Winners 
Court, from Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and twenty-five (125) feet; and 
repealing the prima facie speed limit of thirty (30) miles per hour along Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a 
distance of approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a 
distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo Lane, from Banner Lane to 
Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland Valley Drive; Bass Lane, from Belvedere 
Drive to Troutline Lane; Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane to a distance of approximately one-hundred and 
twenty (120) feet west of Arcola Court; Cunningham Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; 
Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive from Bryan 
Road, a distance of approximately one-thousand four hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from 
Banner Lane, a distance of approximately two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from 
Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of 
approximately one-hundred and sixty (160) feet west of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland 
Valley Drive, a distance of approximately eight-hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court; Troutline 
Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton 
Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to 
Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and 
twenty-five (125) feet; making certain findings; authorizing the placement of speed limit signs along such 
streets; providing a penalty for violation of any provision hereof; providing an effective date and providing 
for severability. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  159 (Oaks of Rosenberg)

 
1. Ordinance No. 2015-05 
2. Location Map 

 
 



APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of Public 
Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[X] City Attorney  DNRBHZ/rl   
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Police Chief 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Staff has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-05 that would repeal the existing thirty (30) mile per hour speed 
limit and establish a twenty-five (25) mile per hour speed limit on all streets located within the Oaks of 
Rosenberg subdivision.   
 
This item has been placed on the Agenda for consideration and action by City Council. Staff recommends 
approval of Ordinance No. 2015-05 as presented. 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-05 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, BY ADDING TO SECTION 28-71 OF 
DIVISION 4 OF ARTICLE II OF CHAPTER 28 THEREOF, A NEW PRIMA 
FACIE SPEED LIMIT OF TWENTY-FIVE (25) MILES PER HOUR ALONG 
ACE COURT FROM STONERIDGE COURT, A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY THREE-HUNDRED AND TWENTY (320) FEET; 
ARCOLA COURT FROM BELVEDERE DRIVE, A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY ONE-HUNDRED AND NINETY (190) FEET; BAMBOO 
LANE, FROM BANNER LANE TO STONERIDGE COURT; BANNER 
LANE FROM BAMBOO COURT TO OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE; BASS 
LANE, FROM BELVEDERE DRIVE TO TROUTLINE LANE; BELVEDERE 
DRIVE, FROM BASS LANE TO A DISTANCE APPROXIMATELY ONE-
HUNDRED AND TWENTY (120) FEET WEST OF ARCOLA COURT; 
CUNNINGHAM LANE, FROM DIAMOND RIVER DRIVE TO SILVERTON 
BEND; DIAMOND RIVER DRIVE, FROM CUNNINGHAM LANE TO 
WALNUT GLEN LANE; OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE FROM BRYAN 
ROAD, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-THOUSAND FOUR-
HUNDRED AND FIFTY (1,450) FEET; PREMIER CIRCLE FROM BANNER 
LANE, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY TWO-HUNDRED AND 
TWENTY (220) FEET; SILVERTON BEND, FROM CUNNINGHAM LANE 
TO WALNUT GLEN LANE; STONERIDGE COURT, FROM OAKLAND 
VALLEY DRIVE A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-HUNDRED 
AND SIXTY (160) FEET WEST OF BAMBOO LANE; STONERIDGE 
COURT, FROM OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY EIGHT-HUNDRED AND FIFTY (850) FEET EAST OF 
ACE COURT; TROUTLINE LANE, FROM BASS LANE TO 
WATERBROOK LANE; WAGON WHEEL LANE, FROM DIAMOND RIVER 
DRIVE TO SILVERTON BEND; WALNUT GLEN LANE, FROM 
SILVERTON BEND TO SPACEK ROAD; WATERBROOK LANE, FROM 
BELVEDERE DRIVE TO TROUTLINE LANE; WINNERS COURT, FROM 
CUNNINGHAM LANE, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-
HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIVE (125) FEET; AND REPEALING THE 
PRIMA FACIE SPEED LIMIT OF THIRTY (30) MILES PER HOUR ALONG 
ACE COURT FROM STONERIDGE COURT, A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY THREE-HUNDRED AND TWENTY (320) FEET; 
ARCOLA COURT FROM BELVEDERE DRIVE, A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY ONE-HUNDRED AND NINETY (190) FEET; BAMBOO 
LANE, FROM BANNER LANE TO STONERIDGE COURT; BANNER 
LANE FROM BAMBOO COURT TO OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE; BASS 
LANE, FROM BELVEDERE DRIVE TO TROUTLINE LANE; BELVEDERE 
DRIVE, FROM BASS LANE TO A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY 
ONE-HUNDRED AND TWENTY (120) FEET WEST OF ARCOLA COURT; 
CUNNINGHAM LANE, FROM DIAMOND RIVER DRIVE TO SILVERTON 
BEND; DIAMOND RIVER DRIVE, FROM CUNNINGHAM LANE TO 



 

 2 

WALNUT GLEN LANE; OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE FROM BRYAN 
ROAD, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-THOUSAND FOUR 
HUNDRED AND FIFTY (1,450) FEET; PREMIER CIRCLE FROM BANNER 
LANE, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY TWO-HUNDRED AND 
TWENTY (220) FEET; SILVERTON BEND, FROM CUNNINGHAM LANE 
TO WALNUT GLEN LANE; STONERIDGE COURT, FROM OAKLAND 
VALLEY DRIVE, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-HUNDRED 
AND SIXTY (160) FEET WEST OF BAMBOO LANE; STONERIDGE 
COURT, FROM OAKLAND VALLEY DRIVE, A DISTANCE OF 
APPROXIMATELY EIGHT-HUNDRED AND FIFTY (850) FEET EAST OF 
ACE COURT; TROUTLINE LANE, FROM BASS LANE TO 
WATERBROOK LANE; WAGON WHEEL LANE, FROM DIAMOND RIVER 
DRIVE TO SILVERTON BEND; WALNUT GLEN LANE, FROM 
SILVERTON BEND TO SPACEK ROAD; WATERBROOK LANE, FROM 
BELVEDERE DRIVE TO TROUTLINE LANE; WINNERS COURT, FROM 
CUNNINGHAM LANE, A DISTANCE OF APPROXIMATELY ONE-
HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIVE (125) FEET; MAKING CERTAIN 
FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING THE PLACEMENT OF SPEED LIMIT SIGNS 
ALONG SUCH STREETS; PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF 
ANY PROVISION HEREOF; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is authorized by 

Section 545.356 of the Texas Transportation Code to regulate speed limits on certain City 

streets in order to facilitate the reasonable movement of traffic; and,  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 

the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the traveling public 

require that at the locations of Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of 

approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a 

distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo Lane, from Banner 

Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland Valley Drive; Bass 

Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Drive; Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane a distance 

approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) feet west of Arcola Court; Cunningham Lane, 

from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane 



 

 3 

to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive, from Bryan Road, a distance of approximately 

one-thousand four-hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a 

distance of two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to 

Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of one-

hundred and sixty (160)  feet west of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland 

Valley Drive a distance of approximately eight-hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace 

Court; Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from 

Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek 

Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from 

Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and twenty-five (125) feet, 

the prima facie speed limit be set at twenty-five (25) miles per hour and that speed limit 

signs should be placed along such road; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, has determined that 

the safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and other members of the traveling public 

require that at the locations of Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of 

approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a 

distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo Lane, from Banner 

Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland Valley Drive; Bass 

Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Drive; Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane a distance 

approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) feet west of Arcola Court; Cunningham Lane, 

from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane 

to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive, from Bryan Road, a distance of approximately 

one-thousand four-hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a 



 

 4 

distance of two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to 

Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of one-

hundred and sixty (160)  feet west of Bamboo Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland 

Valley Drive a distance of approximately eight-hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace 

Court; Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from 

Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek 

Road; Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from 

Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and twenty-five (125) feet, 

the current prima facie speed limit of thirty (30) miles per hour is repealed; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

Section 2. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is hereby 

amended by adding to Section 28-71 of Division 4 of Article II of Chapter 28 thereof the 

following new prima facie speed limits as follows: 

“Section 28-71.  Speed zones. 

* * * 

Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a distance of approximately three-hundred and twenty 
(320) feet, twenty-five (25) miles per hour;  
 
Arcola Court from Belvedere Drive, a distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety 
(190) feet, twenty-five (25) miles per hour;  
  
Bamboo Lane, from Banner Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to 
Oakland Valley Drive, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
   
Bass Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Drive, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 



 

 5 

Belvedere Drive, from Bass Lane a distance approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) 
feet west of Arcola Court, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 
Cunningham Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend, twenty-five (25) miles per 
hour; 
 
Diamond River Drive, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane, twenty-five (25) miles 
per hour; 
   
Oakland Valley Drive, from Bryan Road, a distance of approximately one-thousand four-
hundred and fifty (1,450) feet, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 
Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a distance of two-hundred and twenty (220) feet, twenty-
five (25) miles per hour; 
  
Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane, twenty-five (25) miles per 
hour; 
   
Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of one-hundred and sixty (160)  
feet west of Bamboo Lane, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 
Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive a distance of approximately eight-hundred 
and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 
Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to Waterbrook Lane, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend, twenty-five (25) miles 
per hour; 
   
Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek Road, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
Waterbrook Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane, twenty-five (25) miles per hour; 
 
Winners Court, from Cunningham Lane, a distance of approximately one-hundred and 
twenty-five (125) feet twenty-five (25) miles per hour. 
 

* * *” 

 
 Section 3. The prima facie speed limit on Ace Court from Stoneridge Court, a 

distance of approximately three-hundred and twenty (320) feet; Arcola Court from 

Belvedere Drive, a distance of approximately one-hundred and ninety (190) feet; Bamboo 

Lane, from Banner Lane to Stoneridge Court; Banner Lane from Bamboo Court to Oakland 

Valley Drive; Bass Lane, from Belvedere Drive to Troutline Drive; Belvedere Drive, from 



 

 6 

Bass Lane, a distance approximately one-hundred and twenty (120) feet west of Arcola 

Court; Cunningham Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; Diamond River 

Drive, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Oakland Valley Drive, from Bryan 

Road, a distance of approximately one-thousand four-hundred and fifty (1,450) feet; 

Premier Circle from Banner Lane, a distance of two-hundred and twenty (220) feet; 

Silverton Bend, from Cunningham Lane to Walnut Glen Lane; Stoneridge Court, from 

Oakland Valley Drive, a distance of one-hundred and sixty (160)  feet west of Bamboo 

Lane; Stoneridge Court, from Oakland Valley Drive a distance of approximately eight-

hundred and fifty (850) feet east of Ace Court; Troutline Lane, from Bass Lane to 

Waterbrook Lane; Wagon Wheel Lane, from Diamond River Drive to Silverton Bend; 

Walnut Glen Lane, from Silverton Bend to Spacek Road; Waterbrook Lane, from 

Belvedere Drive to Troutline Lane; Winners Court, from Cunningham Lane, a distance of 

approximately one-hundred and twenty-five (125) feet,   set at thirty (30) miles per hour is 

hereby repealed. 

 Section 4. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to cause the 

placement of speed limit signs as described in Section 2 hereof. 

 Section 5.  The speed limits established by this Ordinance shall be effective 

upon ten (10) days following passage of this Ordinance and shall be published in a 

newspaper of general circulation in compliance with Section 3.10 of the City Charter. 

 Section 6.  Pursuant to Texas Transportation Code Section 545.356(d), not later 

than February 1 of each year, the Chief of Police shall ensure that a report that compares 

the following for each of the two previous calendar years is posted on the City’s website 

and submitted to the Texas Department of Transportation:  



 

 7 

(1)  the number of traffic citations issued by peace officers of the municipality and 
the alleged speed of the vehicles, for speed limit violations on the highway or part of 
the highway; 
 
(2)  the number of warning citations issued by peace officers of the municipality on 
the highway or part of the highway; and 
 
(3)  the number of vehicular accidents that resulted in injury or death and were 
attributable to speed limit violations on the highway or part of the highway. 
 

 Section 7. Violations of this Ordinance shall be punished in accordance with the 

penalty provisions of the City of Rosenberg Code of Ordinances. 

Section 8. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this 

Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any 

reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 

shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 

hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council 

of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part 

of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 

unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ day of 

________________ 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 



 

 8 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!

STONERIDGE CT

BRYAN RD

BA
SS

 LN

WI
NN

ER
S

CT

BELVEDERE DR

ARCOLA CT

PIS
CE

S
ST

WATERBROOK

LN

PREMIER
CIR

WAGON WHEEL LN

WALNUT GLEN LN

SIL
VE

RT
ON

 BN
D

ACE CT

DI
AM

ON
D 

RIV
ER

 D
R

BA
MB

OO
L N

TROUTLINE LN CUNNINGHAM LN

BANNER LN

OA
KL

AN
D

VA
L L

E Y
DR

SPA
CE

K R
D

Å

Û

N

S

E
W

Public Road
The Oaks of Rosenberg

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Paul M. Jones
Date Created: February 06, 2015
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\City_Secretary\2015\Oaks_of_Rosenberg.mxd

The Oaks of Rosenberg Subdivision
City of Rosenberg, Texas

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:3,600
1 inch = 300 feet

Scale:
or

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston Area Council, which
reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of this data is strictly prohibited absent written
consent from the Houston-Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

12 
Resolution No. R-1924 – Utility Development Agreement with ZED 
Partners, Ltd. 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1924, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, a Utility Development Agreement, by and between the 
City and ZED Partners, Ltd. in an amount not to exceed $20,430.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [X] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: N/A   

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1924  
2. Location Map 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[X] City Engineer  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-1924 provides authorization for the City to enter into a Utility Development Agreement 
(Agreement) with ZED Partners, Ltd., (Developer) so that the City may participate in the cost to upsize an 
8-inch waterline installation planned by the Developer along SH 36 North to a 12-inch waterline. 
 
The 12-inch waterline will be needed by the City to adequately supply water to the northwest portion of the 
City as it continues to develop. By participating in the cost to oversize the waterline at the present time, the 
City will not have to bear 100% of the cost to replace the 8-inch line with a 12-inch line in the future. The 
City has previously entered into similar type agreements as a means to leverage public funds with private 
development for public infrastructure that will have regional benefits.        
 
Per the Agreement, the City would be responsible for the costs associated with upsizing the waterline in an 
amount not to exceed $20,430.00. If approved, the Executive Director of Administrative Services will 
prepare the necessary budget amendment for approval at a subsequent meeting. The Agreement has 
been reviewed and approved by Attorney Jeanne McDonald, Special Counsel to the City.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1924 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1924 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A UTILITY DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ZED 
PARTNERS, LTD., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $20,430.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to negotiate and execute a Utility Development Agreement (Agreement), 

by and between the City and ZED Partners, Ltd. in an amount not to exceed 

$20,430.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1924















EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A











johnm
Callout
SH 36

johnm
Callout
BNSF Railroad

johnm
Callout
Purina Feed Mill

johnm
Callout
Benedettini Facility

johnm
Callout
Seatex

johnm
Line

johnm
Callout
Proposed 12 inch water line

johnm
Callout
Proposed Development



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

13 
Resolution No. R-1925 – ZED Partners Drainage Agreement, Amendment 
No. 1 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of an action on Resolution No. R-1925, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, Amendment No. 1 to the Drainage Agreement, by and between the 
City and ZED Partners, Ltd.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[X] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1925 
2. Drainage Agreement – 02-07-12 
3. Location Map  
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-07-12 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney JM/rl     
[X] City Engineer  
[X] Economic Development Director  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On February 07, 2012, the City entered into a Drainage Agreement (Agreement) with ZED Partners, Ltd., 
(Developer) regarding participation in a regional storm drain sewer improvement project located along 
State Highway 36 North. This specific Agreement allowed for oversizing of the storm drainage system to 
accommodate the storm water runoff from a 17.889 acre tract without the need for on-site detention.  
According to the terms of the Agreement, the Developer is obligated to make a $75,000.00 payment to the 
City for the oversizing upon the issuance of a building permit on the property, or on the tenth anniversary of 
the Agreement, whichever occurs first.  
 
The Developer is currently planning to plat and construct improvements on a 1.468 acre tract. Due to the 
small size of the proposed improvements, the Developer plans to provide on-site detention and continue to 
drain into the State Highway 36 roadside ditch. Therefore, the Developer has requested to amend the 
Agreement allowing this 1.468 acre tract to develop without triggering the requirement to submit the 
$75,000.00 payment to the City.  
 
Attorney Jeanne McDonald, Special Counsel to the City, has prepared the attached Amendment No. 1 to 
the Drainage Agreement, which will exempt the 1.468 acre tract from the Agreement and allow said 
development without making the $75,000.00 payment at this time. The remainder of the 17.889 acre tract 
will remain under the full terms and obligations of the original Agreement.      
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1925 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1925 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE DRAINAGE AGREEMENT, BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND ZED 
PARTNERS, LTD. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 (Amendment) to the Drainage Agreement, 

by and between the City of Rosenberg and ZED Partners, Ltd. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1925







DRAINAGE AGREEMENT 

r1.R THIS ORAl AGE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this 
_T--=--_ day of 2012, between the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
hereinafter referred to as" TY"and ZED Partners, Ltd" hereinafter referred to as "OWNER", 

WHEREAS, the OWNER owns certain real property in Fort Bend County, Texas, 
comprised of two (2) tracts and described collectively as 17,889 acres as depicted on the survey 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein for all purposes (the "Property"), which 
Property is located within the City Limits of the City of Rosenberg; and 

WHEREAS, the OWNER requires a drainage system on its Property to serve future 
expansion and development to be located on its Property such that OWNER can drain storm 
water, including the engineered 100 year storm, undetained and unretained, from the Property 
through an existing non-exclusive easement over, across and through the adjoining properties 
and into the outfall and Drainage Improvements, defined below; and 

WHEREAS, certain oversizing of the drainage pipes onto and across State Highway 36 
and the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad will greatly benefit the future development of the 
OWNER's Property, and will have regional economic benefits to the Highway 36 area of the 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has agreed to construct the drainage improvements and pipe 
oversizing described in the project plans attached hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated 
herein for all purposes (the "Drainage Improvements") and further represents that the plans and 
specifications for such Drainage Improvements have been engineered and designed by Kelly R. 
Kaluza & Associates, Inc" at the direction of the CITY (the "Plans and Specifications"); and 

WHEREAS, the OWNER has agreed to pay the CITY the agreed to project participation 
cost established in Exhibit "e", attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, in an 
amount not to exceed $75,000,00 ("Project Participation Cost"), said payment due upon 
whichever occurs first of the tenth anniversary of this agreement or upon the issuance of a 
building permit on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and the OWNER desire to oversize the Drainage Improvements 
as part of the development activities for their mutual benefit; and 

WHEREAS, a non-exclusive, perpetual public utilities easement is in place over, across, 
under and through certain tracts or parcels of land adjacent to the Property as shown on Exhibit 
"0", attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the "Public Utility Easement"): 
and the CITY has agreed to provide OWNER use of said Public Utility Easement as detailed 
herein, and further has committed to acquire an additional 20 feet in width along the entire 
length of said Public Utility Easement to accommodate such use by OWNER; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
are in the best interests of the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the CITY and 
provide for a public benefit; 

1 

johnm
Polygon

johnm
Highlight



NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations, 
covenants, and benefits hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals. 
All of the above recitals and premises are found to be true and correct and are 

incorporated into the body of this Agreement as if copied in their entirety. 

Section 2. Agreement. 
The CITY hereby agrees to engage a contractor to construct the Drainage 

Improvements, consistent with the Plans and Specifications. The OWNER hereby agrees to pay 
to CITY the total Project Participation Cost for the Drainage Improvements as described in 
Exhibit "C" in an amount not to exceed $75.000.00, plus interest equal to the resulting 
municipal bond rate actually paid by CITY ("Interest"), with such Project Participation Cost and 
Interest becoming due upon the tenth anniversary of this Agreement or the issuance of a 
building permit on the Property, whichever shall occur first. The CITY also agrees to permit and 
hereby grants the OWNER non-exclusive and perpetual use of the Public Utility Easement 
described in Exhibit "0" (as shall subsequently be expanded to 35 feet in width) for the 
construction, installation and continued operation of a storm sewer line, water line and sanitary 
sewer line from the OWNER's Property and connecting to the Drainage Improvements and 
existing CITY utility lines ("Owner Improvements"). 

Section 3. Procedure of construction. 
CITY shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and 

procedures of construction of the Drainage Improvements. The OWNER shall be solely 
responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction of 
the Owner Improvements, provided however, CITY shall provide OWNER with reasonable 
access to the Public Utility Easement for such construction. 

Section 4. Ownership and maintenance. 
Upon completion of the Drainage Improvements, including the oversizing, the City will 

own, operate and maintain the Drainage Improvements as part of the City's storm water 
drainage system. OWNER acknowledges that it will have no ownership interest in the resulting 
drainage line, easements, or related infrastructure, except to the extent of rights appurtenant to 
ownership of the Property as expressly defined herein. 

Section 5. Liabilitv. 
Neither party shall be liable for any indirect or incidental damages during the 

construction of the Drainage Improvements and after completion of the Drainage Improvements. 

Section 6. Binding Effect and Assignment. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their 

respective successors and assigns and shall remain in full force and effect whether the OWNER 
sells, assigns, transfers, leases, or in any other manner disposes of, either voluntarily or by 
operation of law, all or any part of the Property or any interest therein, and the agreements 
contained herein are and shall be held to be covenants running with the Land for so long as this 

2 

johnm
Highlight

johnm
Polygon



Agreement or any renewal or extension thereof remains in force. This Agreement shall bind and 
benefit the respective parties and their legal successors and shall be assignable, in whole or in 
part, by any party after first obtaining written consent of the other party, such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld. 

Section 7. Amendment or Modification. 
Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be subject to 

change, amendment or modification only in writing, and by the signatures and mutual consent of 
the parties hereto, which modification or amendment shall become effective upon filing the 
same in the Real Property Records of Fort Bend County, Texas. 

Section 8. Parties in Interest. 
This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and shall 

not be construed to confer any rights upon any third party. 

Section 9. Remedies Not Exclusive. 
The rights and remedies contained in this Agreement shall not be exclusive, but shall be 

cumulative of all rights and remedies now or hereinafter existing, by statute or in equity. 

Section 10. Waiver. 
The failure of any party to insist in anyone or more instances on the performance of any 

of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement, or to exercise any of its rights, shall not 
be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of such term, covenant, or condition, or right with 
respect to further performance. 

Section 11. Record Agreement. 
This Agreement shall be recorded in the Real Property Records of Fort Bend County, 

Texas. 

Section 12. Covenants Running With the Land. 
The covenants and agreements contained herein shall be construed as covenants and 

not as conditions, and to the fullest extent legally possible all such covenants shall run with title 
to the Property. 

Section 13. Entire Agreement. 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties related to the 

subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior agreements, whether oral or 
written, dealing with the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Section 14. Venue. 
This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Fort Bend County, Texas, and 

shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

3 

johnm
Highlight

johnm
Polygon



Section 15. Severability. 

If any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the terms and provisions of this Agreement 

shall remain in full force and effect and shall not in any way be invalidated, impaired or affected. 

Attachments 

Exhibit "A" Survey of Property 

Exhibit "8" Project Plans 

Exhibit "C" Project Scope and Cost 

Exhibit "0" Easement on Adjacent Property 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written, as evidenced by their signatures below. 

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 

ATTEST: 

~'~, 
Dan D'Acquisto, Attorney 

City of Rosenberg 
21104th Street 
Rosenberg, TX 77471 

"CITY" 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

"OWN , 
ZED attner~, Ltd~ 

.' 

Edward P. de evall s, Pr,sident f 
ZED GP Corp, its G,p'J 

9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

4 



LlNDACERNOsEK Notary Public In and For the State of Texas 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

Apt 17,2016 

THE STATE OFjdl;S / 
COUNTY OF ("y1 "7' 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the Z-{~ day of ~tJAf1[j' 
2012, by Edward P. deZevallos, President of ZED GP Corp. its G.P., on behJlf of said c poration. 

r 

Notary Seal 

I(JJ.t VESTA GAIBIlI.E 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

FebniI!y S. 2015 

After recording, please return original to: 
Ms. Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 

Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

After recording, please return a recorded file copy to: 
Mr. Don D' Acquisto 
9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

5 



--

17.135 AC. 
('.A,ooo,. .... _,_.~_> -...... ~'''~, •. .:....c.. ... '*._ ..... .............. ~,,-; 

--- ---~ --~I __ ' ---
u..P R.R. -----------

Ev.A 



i 
1 
I 

.1 

I 
. .1. 

... "" 

,t
f--.j. I 
1-

' .. , .. ~). 
:1.\ 

!;'~--\~'i: I 

, '\ ": 
"1 ~:-_~, II -i 

l"\A.'~; , ~_.IO-.J 
l-< ' ~ 

/' 
, 

II 
I Ii! 

~I ! 1" 
1111 
IIlIiIll 

! 

, ' 

, 
I 
I , , , , 

, , 



EXHIBIT "c" 

KELLY R. KALUZA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Consulling Engineers & Surveyors 

Engiaeeriog Firm No. F-1339 
3014 Annue I, Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
(281)3'1~OS • FAX (281) 341·6333 

May 27.:Wll 
Estimated Construction Cost Estimate for 

6S Acre Industrial Site Stonn Sewer Outfall 
City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas 

L Storm Sewer 

1. 6' X 5' Reinforced Concrete Box-
425 Linear Feet@ $3!O.00ILinear Foot ~ $131,750.00 

2. 6' X 5' TunnelAcross Railroad Right-<>f-Way-
100 Linear Feet@$750.00ILinear Foot ~ $ 75,000.00 

3. Cement Stabilized Sand Backfill for Reinforced 
Concrete Box -

50 Linear Feet@S170.00/LinearFoot= $ 8,500.00 

4. junction Box with Type "E" Inlet-
2 Each @ $3,100.00/ Each ~ $ 6,200.00 

5. Concrete Headwall For 6' X 5' Reinforced Concrete Box -
1 Each @$25,000.00/ Each ~ $ 25,000.00 

6. 5" Concrete Slope Pavement-
530 Square Yards@S5S.00/Square Yard ~ $ 29,150.00 

7. Excavation of Existing Channel to Required Cross--Section -
1,600 Cubic Yards@SI0.00/Cubic Yard ~ $ 16,000.00 

8. Removal of Abandoned WOoden Bridge-
1 Lump Sum@ $3,000.00 ~ $ 3,000.00 

9. Trenching and Shoring-
325 Linear Feet@$IS.00/LinearFoot= $ 4,875.00 

10. 12" Thick Stabilized Black Base-
275 Square Yards@$65.00/Square Yard ~ $ 17,875.00 

11. 2" Thick Hot Mix Hot Laid Asphaltic Concrete-
250 Square Yards@$30.00/Square Yard ~ $ 7,500.00 

12. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan-
1 Lump Sum@ $15,000.00 ~ $ 15,000.00 

13. Solid Sod St, Augustine Grass -
1,000 Square Yards@S3.50/Square Yard ~ $ 3,500.00 

14. Hydromulch Seeding ~ 
3,500 Square Yards@SO.50ISquare Yard ~ $ 1,750.00 

15. Traffic Control, Signage, Etc ~ 
1 Lump Sum@$15,000,00= $ 15,000.00 

16. Contractor Mobilization -
1 Lump Sum @ 525,000.00 ~ $ 25,000.00 

17. Provide Bonds, Insurance & Miscellaneous -
1 Lump Sum@ $12,000.00 ~ $ 1200000 

SuI>-Total = S 397,100-00 
10% Contingencies::;: ~ 39,900.00 

Total Estimated Construction Cost = S 437,000.00 



Project Participation Cost Formula 

(Project Cost/Total Acreage Impacted by Project) x Owner's Acreage 

($437,000- $250,000)/54 = $3,463 x Owner's Acreage 

Total Reimbursement will consist of Project Cost plus annual interest accrued from the date 

the City received the bond proceeds and at the rate the City received at the time of sale of the bonds. 
The CITY will notify the OWNER of the interest rate at the time the bonds are sold. 



Cl 

E-4 
H 
CQ 
H 
:I: 
>< 
Iil 

i 
i;~ 
:lit; 
;5", 
~::! 
~ 

II 

~ 
u 

NO.5OS06-3or 

,. 

HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE. ABSTRACT 
S' CITY OF ROSENBERG 

r4rt: 
.... /G' .... ~y 

..16" 

CALLED 

(/00'.1 

CAU-ED 0.161 AC. 
VOL.""" "'.151. 

O.A.F.8.c.T. 

83 , 
I 

SeALE: ,"~ 60' 

. " ... 0Ilt'17",,; 2113.89' I, ~I- N'laOtrOt-w· "'D.'~,.;, 0 ' I ~ --------r-aJ...L...---. '.~. 4 ....... . - . . . ,- -... Fni.2/.r. 

--------~1---·--- y~ S.aeosa·17-E. 253.151' -- '- 8.80241 :::: .. - - -_. 
• V~ ~ 202.48'-"-'(1 

TRACT .ne" 1 'I tiI), CALLED O.2a9 ~C .• _ 

CALLED 778' AG. I 15-FT. WIDE EASEMENT 'I "!:;; .... "'._ ........ ,,""",--_ .. "" 
e.c.r. NQ. 2004141711' tIS ~ .. t: ~~"fiiiI'JOB<irt~JO.'I'~"1 

o.eR.'.8.t.T. I ( 0.206 AC. I !! Si1 o;;;;li~""~"'l""""""""';·· .. 1 "Z s l'~ cei'litT ~I tWr-:wm::r ",u nIaII. cin I,", 

• 
I cAlLED 5.00 At. -1~:1 rooM'"imdC;,. my ~m~ - IhlI. 1fIIi,pta! 

C C. F. NO. 2004 141701 t::. ~ '" ~,Ca .. I,..t4~"lUIN'1.x.,"r<\l1",!,l;C:Jl!cll~~~iIiIl .. 
O.R R.j!,B.C.T. "0 l .~ 5fmtlJ_lhIlki.s:f'RIl~jaykl>~~1I1 

SURVEY 
OF AO·m,\l;tIE1'IiAeTGfLAICI 

IN lIIEHEtIRY eoon~ AI/BI1iACT II 
em Of II/l&EHIIERil 

I'QlIi'lIEMl cbuInY. lIXAS 
BaNG our OflHATCE!lTAlli CALlED 5M ACRl! TRACT IlIiSCRI8EIi 1Ii_ ~iII 00UlriY tuillics fIlE NO. __ 

ANOTHAT GERTAiN CAUJ!O UII_TRAcT ITIW:T.., 
DESCRIBED IN DEI!D fUiCORllED IN GeUII'IY Cl.Ell('S FiI.e NO. _41711 

OFfIcw.PUBUC REcOlUl8 FORT _ CouNrI, mcAs 

.... 3°4"00''£. 
III. (XI' 

ciAAlJE 

. clNnpIkI wilh It\c ~uel\l T~u Si;i~11 QC 
, f'joi'U5Jc-J ~'~~1iIId Sp«Itr.:t.llcuis I .-.-0-20./2 ~:.t-~·i8.~lOn'Jt'.StiF~~1 

VOL 2131.f'G.896 _r /I. - 'ALLED 17.8~2; AC.. . ~ 
o .•.••. C.T. ~ -4. .~ 

INC. 

CharleS-A. KaJ,komey Dale: 4·.05 
JUgmered PI'OI'es.sioIW Laud Surveyor 
1Cill 1\ep3$rWion No. 2506 

;;;
IL 
o 

~ 
t: 
m 
I 
X 
w 



CHARLIE KALKOMEY SURVEYING, INC. 
ISIS MONS AVENUE 

ROSENBERG, TEXAS 77471 
2& \ >42-203~ 

FIELD NOTES FOR A 0.206 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, 
ABSTRACT 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF THAT 
CERTAIN CALLED 5.00 ACRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN COUNTY 
CLERK'S FILE NO. 2004141707, AND THAT CERTAIN CALLED 7.781 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 
"B") DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2004141711, 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: WITH ALL 
BEARINGS BEING BASED ON THE EAST LINE OF SAlD CAILED 5.00 ACRE TRACT, SAME 
BEING THE WEST LINE OF A CERTAIN ADJOINING CALLED 17.852 ACRE TRACT 
DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 2131, PAGE 896, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT 
BEND COUJ>.'TY, TEXAS, AS BEING NORTH (CALLED NORTH). 

BEGINNING at a 2 inch iron pipe found at the northeast comer of said called 5.00 acre tract for the 
northellSt comer and Place of Begjnnlng of the herein described 0.206 acre tract, said point being the 
southeast comer of a certain adjoining called 0.J61 acre tract described in deed recorded in VolullJe 
1900, Page 1519, Official Records, Fort Bend County, Texas; 

THENCE North 86 degrees 24 minutes 52 seconds West (called North 86 degrees 24 minutes 52 
seconds West) along the north line of the said called 5.00 acre tract, 217.04 feet (called 217.04 feet) to 
an angle point in the north line of the herein described tract, said point being a re-entry comer to the 
aforementioned called 5.00 acre tract; 

THENCE North 86 degrees 59 minutes 17 seconds West, 253.99 feet to • point in the west line of the 
aforementioned called 7.781 acre tract for the northwest comer of the herein described 0.206 acre tract, 
said point being an east line of a CenterPoint Energy Houston Fee Strip; 

THENCE South 00 degrees 11 minutes 19 seconds West (called South 00 degrees II minutes J9 
seconds West) along the west line of said called 7.781 acre tract, 15.02 feet to a point for the upper 
southwest comer of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 86 degrees 59 minutes 17 seconds East, 253.57 feet to an angle point in the upp..
south line of the herein described tract; 

THENCE South 86 degrees 24 minutes 52 seconds East, 202.48 feet to a point for a re-entry comer to 
the herein described tract; 

THENCE South along a line being 15.00 feet west of and plITallel to the east line of said called 5.00 
acre tract, 128.90 feet to a point for the lower southwest comer of the herein described tract; 

CHA.RUE KALKOMEY 
kmlS't£I.ED J'l(lfI!SILOHAJ,. W«loSt,lRYEYOll 

EXHIBIT "B" (2 OF 3) 

CHRIS D. KALKOMEY 
ReGrST1!IU!D~LAlIm$UR.VE~OlI. 



Field Notes - 0.206 Acre Tract (tont'd) Pagel 

THENCE North 83 degrees 41 minutes 00 seconds East, 15.09 feet to a point in the east line of said 
called 5.00 acre tract, same being the west line ofthe aforementioned adjoining called 17.852 acre tract, 
for the southeast comer of the herein described tract; 

THENCE North (called North) along the east line of said called 5.00 acre tract, same being the west 
line of the aforementioned adjoining called 17.7852 acre tract, at 20.12 feet pass the lower northwest 
comer of said called 17.852 acre tract, and continuing for a total distance of 141.33 feet to the Place of 
Beginning and containing 0.206 acre of11ll1d, more Or less. 

For reference 1llId further description see Survey Plat No. 50906·301 prepared by the undersigned on 
same date. 

E:\Engino:nnglS09 City of ROIeabcrg\5()906.30 1 Bencddtini\F'Je1d Notcs\S0906·301.doe 

Charles A. Kalkomey, R.P.L.S. 
Texas Registration Number 2506 
April 28, 2006 

Job Number 50906·30 I 
Revised September 21, 2006 

EXHIBIT "8" (3 OF 3) 



DAN D' ACQUISTO 

©© 
9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 

O [;§)l1 Houston, Texas 77024 
(713) 974-1488 OFe 
(7l3) 782-7608 FAX 

February 22, 2012 

Via Certified Mail No. 7011 1570 0001 0571 9353 
Fort Bend County Clerk 
Real Property Records 
301 Jackson Street 
Richmond, TX 77469 

RE: RECORDING REQUEST 
Drainage Agreement 

Dear Clerk: 

Enclosed please find a one (1) original executed Drainage Agreement together 
with a check in the amount of $55.00 payable to Fort Bend County Clerk for the 
recording fee. Your assistance in recording this Drainage Agreement in the real 
property records for Fort Bend County is appreciated. Please contact my office if you 
have any questions. 

Sincerely: 

Dan D'Acquisto 

Enclosure 

Cc: Matt Fielder, Economic Development Director - Rosenberg 

liCENSEOATTOFlNEY ADMITTED IN TEXAS AND COLORADO 



DRAINAGE AGREEMENT 

AGE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this 
"""",'o\Ll~~,2012, between the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
ed to as" TY"and ZED Partners, Ltd" hereinafter referred to as "OWNER". 

WNER owns certain real property in Fort Bend County, Texas, 
"l_,,,,s,,,",,,,nd described collectively as 17,889 acres as depicted on the survey 

a"eiS'lEiI1ilbit" "and incorporated herein for all purposes (the "Property"), which 
Limits of the City of Rosenberg; and 

ER requires a drainage system on its Property to serve future 
DrtiieRl-tc!l..be located on its Property such that OWNER can drain storm 

water, including t e ine d 0 year storm, undetained and unretained, from the Property 
through an existing n xci iv ea~nt over, across and through the adjoining properties 
and into the outfall an 0 I age I ~~ents, defined below; and 

WHEREAS, certai 
and the Burlington Norther'IMJ(aflltaF'&J~ 
OWNER's Property, and will 
City; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY 

WHEREAS, the OWNER has agreed to pay t ~' th agreed to project participation 
cost established in Exhibit "e", attached hereto an in rp at herein for all purposes, in an 
amount not to exceed $75,000.00 ("Project Part ip on ' said payment due upon 
whichever occurs first of the tenth anniversary of thl or pon the issuance of a 
building permit on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY and the OWNER desire to 0 i 
as part of the development activities for their mutual benefit; and 

WHEREAS, a non-exclusive, perpetual public utilities ease 
under and through certain tracts or parcels of land adjacent to the Pr'OOI§rnr'i 
"0", attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the" 
and the CITY has agreed to provide OWNER use of said Public Utility se~"',;n., 

herein, and further has committed to acquire an add~ional 20 feet in WI 

length of said Public Utility Easement to accommodate such use by OWNER; nd 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the terms and conditions of t IS 

are in the best interests of the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens of e r.n'Y/l'''''' 
provide for a public benefit; 

1 



NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations, 
an ,and benefits hereinafter set forth, the Parties agree as follows: 

Recitals, 
and correct and are 

~,j:!~~~g;'re;es to engage a contractor to construct the Drainage 
,MlIV.itI'kthe Plans and Specifications. The OWNER hereby agrees to pay 

~~H~r1~· ipation Cost for the Drainage Improvements as described in 
not to exceed $75,000.00, plus interest equal to the resulting 

lyt(i~H>9.l.·d by CITY ("Interest"), with such Project Participation Cost and 
th tenth anniversary of this Agreement or the issuance of a 

ich shall occur first. The CITY also agrees to permit and 
iIpl!5cC~N· e and perpetual use of the Public Utility Easement 

""",,,,,,,,.r subsequently be expanded to 35 feet in width) for the 
construction, installation 
sewer line from the OWN 
existing CITY utility lines ("0 

tinu d 0 ration of a stonm sewer line, water line and sanitary 
Pro a d co necting to the Drainage Improvements and 

eril!iiProv ). 

Section 3. !.P.,!;ro~c~e::.ld.!.lu.!.lr.l:e~,J<l='"'-";~=i:<!.!:. 
CITY shall be solely respon s, ethods, techniques, sequences and 

procedures of construction of the Drainage I~OV en. The OWNER shall be solely 
responsible for the means, methods, techni es, ue ces and procedures of construction of 
the Owner Improvements, provided hower, I sha provide OWNER with reasonable 
access to the Public Utility Easement for suc construe· 

Section 4. Owners hi and maintenanc . ./J 
Upon completion of the Drainage Improve n!s;-incl.,..1 ~.J1JW-..\t,he oversizlng, the City will 

own, operate and maintain the Drainage Improve part the City's storm water 
drainage system. OWNER acknowledges that It will have 0 interest in the resulting 
drainage line, easements, or related infrastructure, except 10 ights appurtenant to 
ownership of the Property as expressly defined herein. , 

Section 5. Liability. 
Neither party shall be liable for any indirect or inci nt 

construction of the Drainage Improvements and after completion of tn 

Section 6. Binding Effect and ASSignment. 
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

respective successors and assigns and shall remain in full force and effect wH e e ~ 
sells, assigns, transfers, leases, or in any other manner disposes of, either v u [1y..6r y 
operation of law, all or any part of the Property or any interest therein, and th a~~'e.~pejRS 
contained herein are and shall be held to be covenants running with the Land for so 

2 



./A""',e ent or any renewal or extension thereof remains in force. This Agreement shall bind and 
,t til respective parties and their legal successors and shall be aSSignable, in whole or in 
y y party after first obtaining written consent of the other party, such consent ncit to be 

'~l.Pabty-l(tithheld . 

endment or Modification. 
e provided in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be subject to 

~V"'vv,'", cation only in writing, and by the signatures and mutual consent of 
QrIJ'!9Qification or amendment shall become effective upon filing the 

PIl'iW.~co s of Fort Bend County, Texas. 

Section 9. 
The rights and re 

cumulative of all rights and 
ont Ine in this Agreement shall not be exclusive, but shall be 

o hereinafter existing, by statute or in equity. 

Section 10. Waiver. 
The failure of any party to I I one or more instances on the performance of any 

of the terms, covenants or condition of s Agreeme ,0 0 exercise any of its rights, shall not 
be construed as a waiver or relinquis ment of ~~' venant, or condition, or right with 
respect to further performance. ~ 

Section 11. Record Agreement. 
This Agreement shall be recorded in til Records of Fort Bend County, 

Texas. 

Section 12. Covenants Running With the 
The covenants and agreements contained herein 

not as conditions, and to the fullest extent legally possible 
to the Property. 

Section 13. Entire Agreement. 

rued as covenants and 
:tw<e~lQts shall run with title 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement betwee 
subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior a r 
written, dealing with the subject matter of this Agreement. 

Section 14. Venue. 
This Agreement shall be performable and enforceable in Fort Bend C 

shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

3 



Severability. 
ny term or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, void or unenforceable by 
competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the terms and provisions of this Agreement 

1l.-rEfm1rtfrmJull force and effect and shall not in any way be invalidated, impaired or affected. 

Linda Cernosek, City Secretary 

ATTEST: 

c::~ 
Dan D'Acquisto, Attorney 

o osenberg 
4th Street 

77471 

9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

4 



A'inIJl~"""!\l~ FORT BEND 

liLjns'trUlment was acknowledged before me on the & day of +'Jd(~,p:,.u.!~~ 
(20l<dYyjIad; City Manager of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, on behalf of said mUnicipality. 

This instrument was ackno ed.,.." ~~ 
2012, by Edward P. deZevallos, Presi n 

Notary Seal 

rre""".'!~~·~"'·H""·MY"'~"="""i\"~":"',;·~!IIES'" 

After recording. please return original to: 
Ms. linda Cernosek, City Secretary 
City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

~.~,J b, / ~)MJ)'\J.l 
Notary Public In and For the State of Texas 

@ 
@ 

After recording. please return a recorded file copy to: 
Mr. Don D' Acquisto 
9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

5 



c 

ali 

RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM 
This page is not satisfactory for photographic recordation due to carbon or 
photocopy. discolored paper, etc. All blockwouts. additions and changes 

were presented at time instrument was filed and recorded. 

~~-

,
iil', 
ll'_l~ 
~'~ .. _ .. 
q 

~ 

:-Ii 
:;:: 

:~I. 

'.J::-

1-·-
:'::~ 

\ 
'\ 
\ 1·1 

~\ \\\ 
\ \ 

\ 

- \ 

~ 

d· 
} !~ 
i 



, ' 

" 

': ;'\" 
,. ,~I'-_,," 

·1r~~· .. 

., • 
~, :.-'" 

" "< ''-:'A. 

, 
" .~ 

-/ 

.,' "..-;;,: .. ;~ : 
-If-

.f ::.:~. ;"., 

.".., .... 
'~;, 1(j :.'tt _ ~ l1 '4'ii!. I 

,f!J""'~ \J ~~.." 
..... ~> .•.. i.,.' . 

~:.:1 ,ft,) 

.~.,,,,, .,' ';i 
:" ~ ,', , 
,~"'~ 
., ..... #, . 
~~tl ", f· 

'~:> .. -l~~';';' 
f :~1'" 

~;-:;~: ~ 
lE~" tit .<' 

#0 /~." ~ 
,-,,;1 t: ~ 

" 

" 

.. 

EXHIBIT B 

- , - ~,~. 
, ~ .. ~., 

' .. ~ ". 
.,' .,', , , .' 

.'-..... , .' .. 't ..... 
.. j<~~, '~ 

~:' . .; 
:;-, , 

::.':< " .. 
..!!!!!!. , 

II ----- .. _-------- , 

, 

RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM I 
This page is not satisfactory for photographic recordation due to carbon or j 
photocopy, discolored paper, etc. All block-outs, additions and changes . 

were presented at time instrument was filed and recorded 

1,,', 

ttl 
X • 
0' 



5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10, 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14, 

15. 

16. 

17. 

EXHIBIT "c" 

KELLY R. KALUZA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
CODSuI1Ing Eogiu .... & Surveyon 

EQgUlf:l!rillg Firm No. '-1339 
3014 Aveout I. Rosnberg, Texas 77471 
(281) 341.0808 • FAX (281) 341-6333 

May17,2Qll 
Estimated CODStructiOD Cost Estimate fQr 

65 Acre lDdutrial Site Storm Sewer Outfall 
City of Rosenberg. Fort Bend Conaty. Texas 

Yard -

Trenebingand Shoring· ~ 
32SLinearFeet@$15 .• 0.mearF= 

12" Thick Stabilized Black 
275 Square Yards@ 5.00 an!; 

$ 131,750.00 

5 75,000.00 

$ 8,500,00 

5 6,200.00 

$ 25,000,00 

S 29,150.00 

$ 16,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 4,875.00 

$ 17,875.00 

250 Square Yards@$30.00 uare = 5 7,500.00 
2" Th;ck Hot M"IX Hot Laid Asp '0 eon@ 
Stonn Water Pollution Prevention Plan - 0 

1 Lump Sum@$15,ooo,00· $ 15,000.00 

Solid Sod Se Augustine Gniss· @ 
1,000 Square Yards@S3S0ISquareYan!= 3, 00.00 

Hydromulch Seeding -
3,500 Square Yard,@SO.50/SquareYard= $ 

Traffic Control, Signage, Etc-
1 Lump Sum@$15,OOO.00· 

Contractor Mobilization-
1 L ... p Sum@$25,ooO,00= 

Provide Bonds. Insurance & Miscellaneous-
1 Lump Sum@512,ooO,00-

Sub-Total-
10% CoatmgeDeics'" 

Total Estimated CoDStnletiOD Cost = S 437.000.00 



Project Participation Cost Formula 

(Project CostlTotal Acreage Impacted by Project) x Owner's Acreage 

($437,000- $250,000)/54 = $3,463 x Owner's Acreage 

t will consist of Project Cost plus annual interest accrued from the date 
roceeds and at the rate the City received at the time of sale of the bonds. 



I 
/;~ 

~~ 
~~ 

~If 

I 
~ 

SCOTT LEAGUE. ABSTRACT 83 

1 

I 
1 
I 
1 
f 
1 

s CITY OF ROSENBERG 
,r4,re 

~/G'~'-'4Y J6" 

Q.RR.F,St:l: 

N .... WI7 ... ' 2&5.18' I. _1..._\ ~02~~~7.·.0J' I ~~--_. __ ....... -=!..L----. \~ .. - ~ 
I 5 a 

-8~~i7-E.-

TRAcr "B~ 
CAl..LED 7:181 At. 

c..C.t. NQ,.200414ml 
0. P.R.F.BL-T. 

Scar..E: I'". Ifl 

CALLm O.2~9 ~~_ 
• For nc.,.,.. .... :. :;;::=-_ -'ilw 
-tilj'=~--' -" Mil.~" 

. ·Oi1j,:~~~lda.:iIL_"li1i: ._. 

, • ...., CdtlCy ~.,........, _1II*It-. Ibli 
~. iaidi:t - I16WfIlioa. and iIIa& .wi ...... . • ftIJ me.: • .r 

=~~~~JtlJa% 
ce....,tb .... "Iio ~ ~ .... ,£rat" 'In:';' SO;~ir lit 

, ~~-;~8Id-$toI:IB:2IkIiII 
L~O.20.)2 ~:a'~ia.CiiiiiJi:IiiiiX·.sup.:, 

citAAuE 

RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM 
This page is not satisfactory for photographic recordation due to carbon or 
photo copy, discolored paper, etc. All block·outs, additions and changes 

were presented at time-instrument was flied and recorded. 

- c;.auEI> 17.~Z AC. ~ -~ VOL..2 PG,$96 
~!! o .• .l!I!.C.T. ~. 4: . 
of.'i "--z~ ___ 

;: ClIIrleS'A. ~ o.t; 4· .. '0. 
_1Il ~l'ioi:sSiohIIUod SuMYO' 

Ole. ~cus~No.2S06 

'" ~ 
~ 
~ 
:;: 
1:i 



CHARLIE KALKOMEY SURVEYING, INC. 
ISll MONS AVENUE 

ROSENBERG, TEXAS 77471 
281 342·21)33 

0.206 ACRE TRACT OF LAND IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, 
Qtr'{..fl~·OSENBl!RG, FORT BEND COUN1Y, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF THAT 

CqJrr;~'t:A,T4JW 5.00 CRE TRACT DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED IN COUNTY 
0.2 7, AND THAT CERTAIN CALLED 7.781 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 

~~R$~riRECORDED IN COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2004141711, 
BI S, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE 

.(.;ItLAI(,WI' RIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS, WITH ALL 
M,....,,iITl"Ib! THE EAST LINE OF SAID CALLED 5.00 ACRE TRACT, SAME 

o A CERTAIN ADJOINING CALLED 17.852 ACRE TRACT 
C ~~MB 2131, PAGE 896, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT 

Itu~~ ~n(CALLEDNORTH). 

BEGINNING at a 2 . d at the northeast comer of said called 5.00 acre tract for the 

northeast comer and p:a:fi~~~~~~' herein described 0.206 acre tract, said point being the 
southeast comer of a .161 acre tract described in deed recorded in Volume 
1900, Page 1519, Official C unty, 

nels est (called North 86 degrees 24 minutes 52 
5.00 acre tract, 217.04 rcct (called 217.04 feet) to 

'bed tract, . pmnt being a re-entry comer to the 

THENCE North 86 del!""" 59 minutes 17 seconds~!lI, . fee to. point in the west lin. of tho 
aforementioned caned 7.781 acre tract fur the n west er the orein described 0.206 acre tract, 
said point being an east line of a CenterPoint ergy uslo S' ; 

THENCE South 00 degrees 11 minutes 19 s Wes uth 00 degrees 11 minutes 19 
sooonds West) along the west line of sald called 7. 15.0 feot to a point for the upper 
southwest corner of the herein described tract; /J 
THENCE South 86 degrees 59 minutes 17 seconds 25~1~ !l1Al"'-'I!' 
south line of the herein described tract; 

THENCE Sooth 86 degrees 24 minutes 52 seconds Bas~ 202.48 
the herein d=1Jed traCt; 

THENCE South along a line being 15.00 feot west of and parallel to the r 
acre tract, 128.90 feet to a point for tit. lower southwest comer of the here' des 'bClrIJ1lC1L;/ 

EXHIBIT "8" (2 OF 3) 



, . 

leld Notes - 0.206 Acre Tract (cont'd) PagoZ 

,-!!~~!DN,orth North) along the east lin. of said called 5.00 acre tract, same being the west 
~r5JJi~i6lli;d-.l~·,oining called 17.7852 acre tract, at 20.12 feet pas. the lower northwest 

Forre 
same dB 

tract, and continuing for a total distance of 141.33 feet to the Place of 
contai.~~~ acre ofland, mOre Or less . 

. ~ ~""'--'~,..-~ .. -. 
Texas Registration Number 2506 
April 28, 2006 

Job Number 50906·301 
Revised September 21, 2006 

EXHIBIT "B" (3 OF 3) 



FILED AND RECORDED 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS 

c;Ik~~ 
2012 Mar 09 12:56 PM 2012025140 

VGI $59.00 

Dianne Wilson COUNTY CLERK 

FT BEND COUNTY TE~AS 



February 10, 2012 

Mr. Don D'Acquisto 
9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

Re: Drainage Agreement between the City of Rosenberg and ZED Partners, 
Ltd. 

Dear Mr. D'Acquisto: 

Enclosed is an executed original of the Drainage Agreement between the City of 
Rosenberg and ZED Partners, Ltd. 

This agreement was approved by the City Council of the City of Rosenberg on 
February 7, 2012. 

Sincerely, 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

cc: Matt Fielder, Economic Development Director 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY 
2110 Fourth Street' P.O. Box 32*Rosenberg, TX 77471-0032*832.595.3340*Fax 832.595.3333 



February 15, 2012 

Mr. Don D'Acquisto 
9219 Katy Freeway, Suite 120 
Houston, Texas 77024 

Re: Drainage Agreement between the City of Rosenberg and ZED Partners, 
Ltd. 

Dear Mr. D'Acquisto: 

Enclosed is an executed original of the Drainage Agreement between the City of 
Rosenberg and ZED Partners, Ltd. This agreement was approved by the City 
Council of the City of Rosenberg on February 7,2012. 

I added page 5 for the Notary Public jurat since the document will be recorded at 
the Fort Bend County Clerk's office. Please have page 5 notarized for Mr. 
deZevalios before recording. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me. Thank you for your 
assistance with this matter. 

Sincerely, 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 

JJM~~ 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC 
City Secretary 

cc: Matt Fielder, Economic Development Director 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY 
2110 Fourth Street"P.O. Box 32*Rosenberg, TX 77471-0032*832.595.3340*Fax 832.595.3333 



johnm
Rectangle

johnm
Callout
Proposed Development 1.468 Acre Tract 

johnm
Callout
SH 36

johnm
Callout
Purina Feed Mill

johnm
Callout
Benedettini



sherrin
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

14 
Ordinance No. 2015-06 - Consent for MUD No. 144 Unlimited Tax Bonds, 
Series 2015 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Ordinance No. 2015-06, an Ordinance granting consent to Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 144 for the sale and issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not 
to exceed $3,400,000.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] ETJ 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  144 (Summer Lakes, 

Waterford Park PUD) 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-06 
2. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 07-18-06  
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-13-05 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-06-03 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
Charles A. Kalkomey, P.E. 
City Engineer 

 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney   ST/ks  
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Attached for your consideration is Ordinance No. 2015-06 granting the City’s consent to Fort Bend Municipal 
Utility District No. 144 to sell and issue bonds, Series 2015 in an amount not to exceed $3,400,000.00. 
 
On May 06, 2003, Starwood Development, LLC, submitted a petition to the City to create a Municipal Utility 
District that included approximately 358.48 acres located primarily within the Corporate Limits of the City, with 
approximately 35.46 acres lying outside the City and outside the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the City of 
Rosenberg, to be known as Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144.  Accordingly, the Petition for 
Consent and associated Ordinance No. 2003-21 were approved by City Council at that time. Subsequently, City 
Council approved Ordinance No. 2005-32 on December 13, 2005, expanding the District’s territory by 173.34 
acres, approved Ordinance No. 2006-18 on July 18, 2006, expanding the District’s territory by an additional 
1.5369 acres, and approved Ordinance No. 2010-14 on June 1, 2010, again expanding the District’s territory by 
an additional 6.00 acres.  The District is located south of Reading Road and east of FM Highway 2977. 
 
Following is a list of previous Unlimited Tax Bond Sales and Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN) that have been 
previously approved by City Council: 

 Ordinance No. 2006-39 - City Council approved the District’s first bond sale in the amount of $2,815,000 
on December 05, 2006.  

 Ordinance No. 2007-48 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,650,000 on 
October 16, 2007. The BAN was subsequently repaid out of the bond sale authorized under Ordinance 



No. 2008-21.  
 Ordinance No. 2008-21 - City Council approved the District’s second bond sale in the amount of 

$3,030,000 on October 07, 2008.  
 Ordinance No. 2012-38 - City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $1,301,500 on 

November 06, 2012. The BAN approved by City Council under Ordinance No. 2012-38 was 
subsequently repaid out of the Series 2013 bond sale under Ordinance No. 2013-24. 

 Ordinance No. 2013-24 – City Council approved the District’s third bond sale in the amount of 
$2,695,000 on May 07, 2013.   

 Ordinance No, 2014-27 – City Council approved the District’s BAN in the amount of $2,000,000 on June 
17, 2014. The BAN is anticipated to be repaid out of this, the District’s fourth bond sale. 

 
Much of the submission documentation provided by MUD No. 144 for this proposed sale, such as the TCEQ 
application, the Bond Order authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 144, the Preliminary Official 
Statement/Notice of Sale, Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Bonds by MUD No. 144, Cash Flow Analysis, 
Debt Fund Schedule, Summary of Costs, along with additional minute excerpts and related Ordinances are 
available for review in the City Secretary’s Office. 
 
Staff has reviewed the documentation and found it to be in compliance with applicable City ordinances.  Staff is 
recommending approval of Ordinance No. 2015-06, thus consenting to the sale of the Unlimited Tax Bonds, 
Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,400,000.00. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-06 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, GRANTING CONSENT TO THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO.144 FOR THE SALE AND 
ISSUANCE OF UNLIMITED TAX BONDS, SERIES 2015, IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $3,400,000. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”) consented to the creation of the 

Fort Bend County Municipal District No. 144 (the “District”) by Ordinance No. 2003-21 passed 

and approved on May 06, 2003, consented to the annexation of territory into the District by 

Ordinance No. 2005-32, passed and approved on December 13, 2005, consented to the 

annexation of territory into the District by Ordinance No. 2006-10, passed an approved on May 

2, 2006, consented to the annexation of territory into the District by Ordinance No. 2006-17, 

passed an approved on July 18, 2006, and consented to the annexation of territory into the 

District by Ordinance No. 2010-14, passed and approved on June 1, 2010 (collectively known 

as the “Consent Ordinance”); and, 

WHEREAS, the District was created in accordance with the provisions of Article V of 

Chapter 29 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”); and 

 WHEREAS,  a portion of the land within the District is within the corporate limits of the 

City and a portion of the land, approximately 35.46 acres, is outside the City’s corporate limits 

and is not within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and, 

 WHEREAS, the District has requested the City’s consent to the District’s sale and 

issuance of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,400,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has reviewed the District’s request for the sale 

and issuance of such Bonds and the documentation and certifications submitted by the District 

in support thereof; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the sale and issuance of such Bonds 

by the District is in accordance with the Consent Ordinance, the Water Supply and Wastewater 

Services Contract entered into by and between the City and the District, including all 



 2 

amendments and addendums thereto, and the terms and conditions set forth in Chapter 29 of 

the City Code of Ordinances; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

 Section 1. The facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are 

hereby found to be true and correct. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves and consents to the sale and issuance 

of Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, in an amount not to exceed $3,400,000, by the Fort Bend 

County Municipal Utility District No. 144.  Such approval is based on the certifications, 

representations, and conditions set forth in the District’s request for approval of the sale and 

issuance of such Bonds, and the terms and provisions of the Consent Ordinance, the Water 

Supply and Wastewater Services Contracts entered into by and between the City and District, 

including all amendments and addendums thereto, and the applicable provisions set forth in 

Chapter 29 of the City Code of Ordinances. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ______ “ayes” in favor and _______ “noes” 

against on this first and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 of the 

Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ______ day of ____________ 2015. 

 

______________________________ 

              Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Scott Tschirhart, CITY ATTORNEY 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 
 









CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

February 17, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

15 Resolution No. R-1922 – Main Street Advisory Board Bylaws 

ITEM/MOTION 

 
Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1922, a Resolution regarding adoption of the Main Street 
Advisory Board Bylaws. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[X] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1922 
2. Main Street Advisory Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-22-15  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services 
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services   
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl 
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
  
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Resolution No. R-1922 authorizes the approval and adoption of the Main Street Advisory Board bylaws, 
attached as Exhibit “A”. The Rosenberg Main Street Advisory Board approved the bylaws at the January 
22, 2015 Main Street Advisory Board Meeting. The bylaws were created with input and guidance from the 
Texas Historic Commission – Main Street Program.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1922 as presented. 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1922 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, REGARDING ADOPTION OF THE MAIN 
STREET ADVISORY BOARD BYLAWS. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg’s Historic Downtown District has been 

accepted into the Texas Historical Commission - Texas Main Street Program (Program); 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Program shall be administered by a Main Street Advisory Board 

of Directors (Board); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board’s purpose is to facilitate revitalization, preservation, and 

encourage economic activity in the Rosenberg Main Street District; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board shall operate within the provisions of the Program Bylaws, 

as approved by City Council; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS: 

 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby approves the 

Bylaws submitted by the Main Street Advisory Board. 

 Section 2. A copy of such Bylaws is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary    Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



   

Page 1 of 4 

ROSENBERG MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD BY-LAWS 
  
 
ARTICLE I.  NAME AND PURPOSE 
 

Section 1.1 Name.   
The Rosenberg Main Street Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as “Board”) was established by 
the City of Rosenberg (hereinafter referred to as “City Council”) on December 16, 2014, with the 
adoption of Resolution No. R-1891. 
 
Section 1.2  Purpose.    
The Board shall provide guidance for the Rosenberg Main Street Program, working cooperatively 
with the City of Rosenberg, the Main Street Manager, and committees designated by the Board. 

 
ARTICLE II.  MEMBERSHIP 
 

Section 2.1  Number of Members.   
The Board shall consist of no fewer than nine (9) members and no more than eleven (11) members. 
 
Section 2.2  Selection of Board Members.   
Members shall be appointed by the City Council.  Board Members serve at the discretion of the City 
Council and may be removed at any time. 
 
Board Profile Goals: In making selections of Board members, the City Council will make a good faith 
effort to include a mix of the following: 
 

1. Owners of Commercial Business within the Main Street District 
2. Owners of Retail Businesses within the Main Street District 
3. Owners of Property within the Main Street District 
4. Representatives of Non-Profit Associations within the Main Street District 
5. Banker 
6. Commercial Realtor 
7. Architect/Designer 
8. Historical Organization Leaders 
9. Interested Citizen 

 
Section 2.3  Term of Office.   
The term of office shall be two (2) years. All terms shall begin in July.  
 
Section 2.4  Initial Term of Office. 
Of the nine (9) initial board members appointed on December, 16, 2014, five (5) shall have terms 
ending in June 2016, and four (4) shall terms ending in June 2017.  The initial term length shall be 
drawn by lot and thereafter shall conform with the term lengths as referenced in Section 2.3 above. 
 
Section 2.5  Term Limits. 
No more Board members shall serve more than two (2) consecutive full-terms.  
 
Section 2.6  Vacancies.   
If for any reason a Board Member’s position becomes vacant, the City Council shall appoint a 
replacement. 
 
Section 2.7  Compensation  

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1922



   

Page 2 of 4 

Members of the Board serve without compensation.   
 
Section 2.8  Ex-Officio Members.   
The Board shall include as ex-officio non-voting Members the Main Street Manager of Rosenberg 
Main Street Program; the Economic Development Director; a City Council Representative and other 
ex-officio Members to be determined or designated by the Board or City Council as needed. The 
Board Chairman shall serve as an ex-officio Member for one (1) year after their term is over. 

 
ARTICLE III.  OFFICERS 
 

Section 3.1 Officers.   
Officers shall be Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Treasurer.  The Board reserves the option to appoint 
a Secretary. 
 
Section 3.2  Election of Officers.   
Officers shall be elected annually in July from the Membership of the Board by a majority vote of the 
Board. 
 
Section 3.3  Term of Office.   
Officers serve for a term of one (1) year and may be re-elected annually. In the event of vacancy, the 
office shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the Board in an expedient manner. 
 
Section 3.4  Duties of Officers.   
The Chairman presides at all meetings and performs all other duties pertaining to the office, including 
voting.  The Vice Chairman in the absence of the Chairman performs all duties of the Chairman.  The 
Treasurer shall present a monthly report of the financial position of the Main Street Program. Minutes 
and other documents shall be filed with the City Secretary and the Main Street Manager.   

 
ARTICLE IV.  MEETINGS 
 

Section 4.1  Time and Date of Regular Meeting.   
The Board shall meet monthly or as needed at such time and place or places as the Board may, from 
time to time, determine.   
 
Section 4.2  Special Meetings.   
Special meetings may be called by the Chairman, Main Street Manager, or by one-fourth (1/4) of 
Board Members. 
 
Section 4.3  Quorum.   
A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Board Members and shall be required for the Board to 
convene a meeting as well as to conduct business.  No business meeting may be convened, nor 
business conducted, without a quorum. 
 
Section 4.4  Attendance.   
Three (3) consecutive unexcused absences may result in a referral to the City Council which may at 
its discretion, remove, or otherwise censure the member. 
 
Section 4.5  Voting.   
Board Members shall vote on all items, except on matters involving direct personal interests or 
matters, which would create an appearance of impropriety.  In these instances, the Member shall 
abstain.  Any Board Member excused from voting for these reasons shall announce at the 



   

Page 3 of 4 

commencement of consideration of the matter and shall refrain from any discussion or debate on the 
matter. All Board actions shall be approved by a majority of the voting members present.  
 
Section 4.6  Open Meetings Act.   
All Board meetings and deliberations shall be open to the public and shall be conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
Section 4.7  Conduct of Meeting.   
Board meetings will be conducted in accordance with City Council policy, these by-laws, and 
Robert’s Rules of Order. 
 
Section 4.8  Call to Order.   
Board meetings will be called to order by the Chairman, or if absent, the Vice Chairman.  In the 
absence of both, the meeting shall be called to order by the Treasurer, and a temporary Chairman 
shall be elected to preside over the meeting. 

 
ARTICLE V.  MEETING PROCEDURES AND POLICIES 
 

Section 5.1  Agenda Items.   
Items may be placed on the agenda by the Chairman or at the request of any Board Member or the 
Main Street Manager.   
 
Section 5.2  Citizen Participation.   
In accordance with City Council policy, citizens are encouraged to sign up at Board meetings to speak 
on any item on the agenda.  Sign-up sheets will be available and should be submitted to the Chairman 
prior to the start of the meeting.   
 
Section 5.3  Reports to Council.   
At quarterly intervals, the City Council shall meet with the Board for the purpose of establishing 
specific tasks for the Board to undertake. Upon request, the Board shall report to the City Council. 
 
Section 5.4  Expenditure of Funds.   
Expenditure of non-budgeted funds designated for use by the Rosenberg Main Street Program, the 
Board, and/or its committees must be approved by City Council.   

 
ARTICLE VI.  COMMITTEES 
 

Section 6.1  Committees.   
The Board shall designate four (4) standing committees:  Design, Promotion, Economic 
Restructuring, and Organization.  Each committee shall include at least one (1) Advisory Board 
member who serves as the Chair of the Committee.   
 
Section 6.2  Selection Committee Members.   
Members shall be approved by the Board.  Committee members serve at the discretion of the Board 
and may be removed at any time. 
 
Section 6.3  Relationship to Board.   
Committees shall secure Board approval for activities, programs, and projects. 

 
ARTICLE VII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

Section 7.1 Approval.   



   

Page 4 of 4 

These by-laws shall be enacted upon adoption by the Board and subsequent approval by the City 
Council. 
 
Section 7.2  Amendments.   
These by-laws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board and the subsequent approval by the 
City Council. 
 
Section 7.3  Review.   
These by-laws should be considered for review every 2 years. 

 
 
 



DRAFT

ORGANIZATIONAL ROSENBERG MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD MEETING MINUTES – January 16, 2015 1 

ORGANIZATIONAL ROSENBERG MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
On this the 22nd day of January 2015, the Rosenberg Main Street Advisory Board of the City of 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met in an Organizational Session, at Another Time Soda Fountain 
located at 800 3rd Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Carolyn Watson 
Janice Knight 
Janice Vyoral 
Jennifer Hartmann 
Jimmie Pena 
Juanita Vazquez 
Lupe Uresti 
Marcia Vogelsang 
Michael Mercado 
Renee Butler 
 
CITY OF ROSENGERG STAFF PRESENT 
Randall Malik, Economic Development Director 
 
GUESTS PRESENT 
Debra Drescher, State Coordinator for the Texas Main Street Program 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Economic Development Director, Randall Malik, called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. 
 

1. REVIEW AND DISCUSS POTENTIAL MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD BYLAWS, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY. 

 
       Key discussion: 

 The Board read and discussed the bylaws and made some suggestions. 
Action taken: 
Renee Butler moved, and Janice Knight seconded a motion to accept the bylaws for the Main Street   
Advisory Board as discussed. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
2. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APOINTMENT OF MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD 

OFFICERS. 
 

Action taken: 
Janice Knight moved and Jennifer Hartmann seconded a motion to appoint Renee Butler as 
Chairperson of the Main Street Advisory Board. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
Renee Butler moved and Janice Knight seconded a motion to appoint Lupe Uresti as Vice 
Chairperson of the Main Street Advisory Board. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 
 
Renee Butler moved and Janice Vyoral seconded a motion to appoint Carolyn Watson as Treasurer 
of the Main Street Advisory Board. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON APPOINTMENT OF MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD 

SUBCOMMITTEE OFFICERS. 
 

cynthias
Rectangle



 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
February 17, 2015 

 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

16 
Resolution No. R-1923 - Traffic Calming Speed Hump Installation and 
Removal Policy and Procedures  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1923, a Resolution approving and adopting a Traffic 
Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedure.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1923 
2. Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedures – Redlined 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-27-15 
4. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-18-14 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-27-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer  
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Based on direction from City Council provided during the January 27, 2015 Workshop, staff has integrated City 
Council’s comments and recommendations into the policies and procedures regarding installation and removal 
of speed humps. The policy includes a step-by-step procedure that defines the process beginning with the initial 
request from a citizen through the final determination. Key points of the policy include: 

 Speed hump installation request process 
 Criteria to determine if a street is eligible for consideration of speed hump installation 
 Notification/evidence of support criteria for property owners along segments of streets under 

consideration 
 Speed hump location criteria 
 Funding criteria 
 Speed hump removal request process 
 Design  standards, construction and maintenance criteria 
 Standardized forms 

 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1923 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1923 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROVING AND ADOPTING A TRAFFIC 
CALMING SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL POLICY 
AND PROCEDURE.  
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it necessary and proper and in the best 
interest of the City and its employees to adopt a Traffic Calming Speed Hump 
Installation and Removal Policy and Procedure (Policy); and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Policy seeks to provide the City with a traffic management tool 

with the intention of slowing down or reducing the speed of motor-vehicle traffic as well 
as to improve safety for Rosenberg citizens in residential neighborhoods and on certain 
City streets;  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby adopts the Traffic 

Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedure attached hereto 

as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 



 

 

 

City of Rosenberg 

 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

For 

Traffic Calming 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL 

 

EFFECTIVE ____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1923



 

 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

For 
SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL 

EFFECTIVE _____________________ 

 
Table of Contents 

 
Section                     Page Number 
 

I. Authority and Scope                  2 
 
II. Installation of Speed Humps by Citizen Request            2 

A. Request Process                  2 
B. Notification/Evidence of Support              2 
C. Eligibility                    3 
D. Diversion Issue                  4 
E. Speed Hump Location                4 
F. Funding Criteria                  5 
G. Cost Responsibility                  6 

 
III. Removal of Speed Humps by Maintenance or Construction Activities      7 

 
IV. Removal of Speed Humps by Citizen Request            7 

A. Request Process                  7 
B. Eligibility                    8 
C. Notification/Evidence of Support Applications          8 
D. Removal Determination                8 
E. Funding Criteria                  9 
F. Cost Responsibility                  9 

 
V. Design Standards, Construction, and Maintenance          9 
 
Appendix A – Application Packet for Requesting the Installation of Speed Humps    A ‐1 
 
Appendix B – Recount Policy                B ‐1 
 
Appendix C – Placement of Speed Hump Warning Signs Policy        C ‐ 1 
 
Appendix D‐ Application Packet for Requesting the Removal of Speed Humps    D ‐1 
 
Appendix E – Definitions                  E ‐1 
 
Appendix F – Speed Hump Installation Notification/Evidence of Support Application    F ‐1 
 
Appendix G – Speed Hump Removal Notification/Evidence of Support Application    G ‐1 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

2 

 

I.  Authority and Scope 
 
A. The City Manager, or his/her designated representative issues and administrates this policy. 
 
B. This  policy  is  effective  immediately  and  retroactively  to  all  currently  active  speed  hump 

requests. 
 
C. The Rosenberg City Council  retains  the authority  to  install or  remove  speed humps  for  cause 

independent of this policy. 
 

II.  Installation of Speed Humps by Citizen Request 
 

A. Request Process 
 

1. The  initial  request  for  the  installation  of  speed  humps must  originate  from  a  resident, 
property owner, business, school, homeowner’s association, or other entity whose property 
abuts  the  requested  street  segment. The  requestor must be willing  to act as  the primary 
contact and take responsibility for notification and the compilation of evidence of support 
for  their  requested  street  should  it  be  determined  eligible.  A written  request  should  be 
submitted to: 

 
City of Rosenberg 
City Manager 
Speed Hump Program 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
2. The  request  should  identify  the  street  and  blocks  where  the  applicant(s)  desires  speed 

humps,  and  the name,  address, phone number  and  e‐mail  address  for  a  contact  person. 
Submitted segments may be divided or otherwise revised at the sole determination of the 
City Manager. 

 
3. See Appendix A for a copy of the application packet for requesting the installation of speed 

humps. 
 

B. Notification/Evidence of Support 
 

1.   After receipt of the Request for Study, the City Manager will define the approximate speed 
hump location(s) on a map, which will be provided to the applicant(s) with an application of 
notification on which to gather evidence of support. Notification/evidence of support must 
be submitted on forms produced by the City Manager or exact duplicates of  it. Documents 
that do not  include placement  information  (map  showing approximate  locations of  speed 
humps) will not be accepted as valid under any circumstances. 

   
2.  The application area will be determined by the City Manager.   The City Manager may take 

into account a number of factors, including but not limited to: 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

3 

 

 
a. Properties facing or abutting the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to 

be located. 
b. Properties that must use the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be 

located as an access/egress route. 
c. Properties that are  in close proximity to the street segment on which a speed hump  is 

proposed to be located. 
d. Other  traffic‐related  issues  that  the  installation of  speed humps may have a direct or 

indirect impact. 
        
3.  Notification/evidence of support applications must be completed and returned to  the City 

Manager  by  the  established  deadline  for  the  segment  to  be  considered  in  the  ranking 
process. There must be at least 75% of the property owners and residents in support of the 
installation  request  in  order  to  proceed  with  the  review  process.  Requests  without 
applications will be considered incomplete. 

 
4.   Each property  identified by  the City Manager as  lying within  the application area must be 

represented on the application by signature. A statement of exception must be submitted 
by  the  applicant(s)  explaining  the  absence of  any  property not  so  represented. Requests 
that do not account for all properties will be considered incomplete. 

 
5.   Property managers or property owner signature may be considered as approval for all units 

of multi‐family properties of  ten or more units. The manager or property owner must be 
properly identified on the application form. 

 
6.  Any person who wishes to alter their indication of support on the application form after its 

submittal must do so by  individual  letter of request to the City Manager. No such request 
will affect funding that has already been awarded. 

 
7.  A complete listing of all active requests may be posted on the City’s web site. 
 

C.   Eligibility  
 

1. The  Public  Works  Director  will  conduct  the  necessary  traffic  engineering  studies.  A 
determination of  the  street’s eligibility  for  the  speed hump  installation will be made  in a 
timely manner, based on the following policy criteria: 

 
a.  The street may not be classified as an Arterial or a Collector. 
b.  The street may not be designated Primary Emergency Response Route. 
c.  There may be no more than one moving lane of traffic in each direction. 
d.  The street must have a speed limit of 30 mph or less. 
e.  The street must be paved prior to construction of the speed humps. 
f.  The sum of traffic volumes for both directions must be less than 5,000 vehicles per day 

and more than 500 vehicles per day. 
g.  The measured 85th percentile speed must exceed the prima facie speed limit by 5 miles 

per hour or more  in a 24‐hour  study period OR  there must be  two or more  reported 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

4 

 

speed‐related  accidents within  the  street  segment  during  the  last  twelve months  of 
recorded data. 

 
2. Other factors such as, but not  limited to, alignment, grades, and sight distances may affect 

consideration for eligibility. 
 
3. If  the  street  is  determined  not  to  be  eligible  for  speed  humps,  the  applicant(s) will  be 

notified in writing of the reason for ineligibility. 
 
4. Requests for recounts will be considered following the adopted policy  located  in Appendix 

B. Approved recounts will occur as soon as possible and preferably within the active request 
round, unless circumstances indicate otherwise. 

 
5. A request for enforcement of the speed  limit will be sent to Rosenberg Police Department 

for those segments that are ineligible for consideration for speed humps but where the 85th 
percentile speed exceeds the speed limit. This referral will include a copy of the traffic study 
indicating the speed and volume profiles for the segment on an hourly basis. 
 

D. Diversion Issue 
 
1.  In the preliminary studies of  land use and application area, probable shifts  in traffic routes 

will be  identified.  In  these areas, prior  to  the construction of  speed humps along a  street 
segment, traffic studies will be conducted along adjacent alternate routes to provide base 
data to document any occurrence of traffic shifts. 

 
2.   If  the  adjacent  alternate  route  is  requested  to be  considered  for  speed humps  at  a  later 

date, it will be considered as all other requested segments are considered. The results of the 
first  and  second  study  will  be  compared.  If  the  segment  is  eligible  for  speed  hump 
consideration and any  increases  in either  traffic  speeds or volumes are  shown, additional 
consideration  for  those  increases will  be  given  in  the  funding  process.  Any  decreases  in 
volume or speed will not penalize the segment’s consideration for funding. 

 
E.     Speed Hump Location 

 
1.  The Public Works Director will determine the final location of all speed humps according to 

the guidelines in these Policies and Procedures and in accordance with current engineering 
principles. 
   
a.  Speed  humps will  generally  be  placed  approximately  300  to  500  feet  apart.    Other 

spacing may be used based upon engineering judgment. 
b.  A speed hump shall not be located in front of a driveway or within an intersection. 
c.  Speed humps should generally not be located within 200 feet of a traffic signal or STOP 

sign, or within 50 feet of an uncontrolled intersection. 
d.  Speed humps should not be  located over, or contain manholes, water valves or other 

subsurface utilities access features. 
e.  Speed humps should not be located adjacent to fire hydrants. 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

5 

 

f.  For humps located near drainage inlets, the hump should be placed just downstream of 
the inlet. If this is not feasible, special treatment may be considered for drainage. 

g.  To  improve  nighttime  visibility,  coordinating  hump  location with  existing  or  planned 
street lighting should be considered. 

h.  Preferences of requesters or property owners adjacent to speed hump locations will not 
be considered unless unique or special circumstances exist that warrant relocation. The 
City Manager will consider these circumstances on a case‐by‐case basis. 

   
2.   Traffic  control  consisting  of  signs  and  markings  shall  be  installed  in  accordance  with 

Appendix C to advise roadway users of the presence of speed humps. 
 

3.  Any  relocation of constructed  speed humps at  citizen’s  request must be approved by  the 
City Manager and relocated at the requesting citizen’s cost unless the City Manager deems 
that  a public purpose  is  fulfilled  by  the  removal.  The  requester must  secure  evidence of 
support by properties adjacent to both the existing, or losing, location and the proposed, or 
gaining, location. 

 
F.    Funding Criteria 

 
1.  Funds  for  speed hump  installation will be determined by prorating  total available  funding 

between  number  of  humps  eligible  for  installation  and  number  of  humps  eligible  for 
removal. 

 
2.  A street segment’s ranking score is determined by summing the following factors. 

   
a.  Average Daily Traffic  Factor – The  total number of  vehicles  traveling on  the  roadway 

where speed humps are desired will be one basis of point assignment. These vehicular 
volume numbers will be based on traffic counts taken by the Public Works Director. A 
point value is obtained by dividing the total number of vehicles by 100. If the segment of 
road exceeds 1,000 feet, the average of multiple counts shall be used. 

    Example: 1,500 total vehicles on the roadway 
    1,500/100 = 15.0 points 
b.  Speeding Factor – Equals the percentage of vehicles  in a 24‐hour period exceeding the 

speed limit by 5 miles per hour or more. 
c.  Automobile  Accident  Factor  –  Equals  one  point  for  each  reported  speeding‐related 

accident  (except auto/pedestrian or auto/bicycle) occurring within the segment during 
the most  recent 12‐month period  for which  accident  records  are  available. Accidents 
that occur at the intersection of the requested street and designated thoroughfares and 
collectors or at signalized intersections are not counted. 

d.  Auto/Pedestrian  or  Auto/Bicycle  Accident  Factor  –  Equals  5  points  for  each  reported 
auto/pedestrian or auto/bicycle occurring within  the  segment during  the most  recent 
12‐month period  for which accident  records are available. Accidents  that occur at  the 
intersection of the requested street and designated thoroughfares and collectors or at 
signalized intersections are not counted. 

e.  CD  Factor  –  Three  points  if  the  segment  is  within  a  neighborhood  targeted  for 
revitalization by the Community Development Division and eligible to receive CDBG and 
Home funds. 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

6 

 

f.  Institution  Factor  –  Equal  to  five points per  institution. An  institution  is  considered  a 
school or park within 1,000 ft of the segment. 

g.  Absence  of  Sidewalks  Factor  –  Equal  to  five  points  if  no  sidewalks  exist  within  the 
segment or portions of the segment. A segment or portion of a segment with a sidewalk 
on at least one side of the street is considered to have sidewalks. 

 
3.   The  street  segment with  the  higher  ranking  score will  be  considered  to  have  the  higher 

priority. The  street with  the earliest  application date will have  the higher priority  among 
streets with the same ranking score. 

 
G.     Cost Responsibility 

   
1. The City will be responsible for all costs associated with design and installation of the funded 

speed humps.  
 
2. A street that does not receive speed hump  installation funding approval will automatically 

be  considered  in  the  following  cycles,  for  a maximum  of  two  (2)  additional  years  (five 
funding  cycles). After  the  two year  time period,  the  request expires.  Incomplete  requests 
that  later become  complete within  the  two year  limit will not  receive additional  time  for 
funding consideration. A new written request may be submitted subject to the policies and 
procedures  in  effect  at  the  time  of  request.  Each  request  requires  a  separate  and 
independent evidence of support application. 

 
3. These procedures do not preclude the City Manager from completing any eligible requests 

out  of  ranking  order  under  certain  circumstances.  These  include,  but  are  not  limited  to, 
alternative  funds  becoming  available  or  complementing  projects,  maintenance  projects 
and/or capital improvement projects initiated during the year. 

 
4.  Private Funding 

 
a. Once a street  is determined to be eligible for speed hump  installation, but not funded 

under  the  designated  annual  budget,  installation  may  be  expedited  by  voluntary 
payment of all costs.  Street segments must present a notification/ evidence of support 
application exhibiting a 75% or greater support factor. 

b.  Requests  for  a  private  funding  estimate  of  cost must  be made  in writing  to  the  City 
Manager. 

c.  Voluntary payments must be submitted in one payment for the full cost of installation, 
according  to  the  cost  statement  provided  to  the  applicant(s).  Only  certified  checks, 
cashier’s  checks,  or  money  orders  made  payable  to  the  City  of  Rosenberg  will  be 
accepted. No partial payments will be accepted. 

d.  Upon receipt of payment of the cost, the humps will be installed no later than the next 
fiscal year as scheduling permits. 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

7 

 

III.  Removal of Speed Humps by Maintenance or Construction Activities 
 

A.  Any speed hump that is fully removed during the course of publicly funded construction  or 
maintenance  activities  shall  be  reinstalled  upon  completion  of  that  activity  at  City  expense 
during  the  next  available  funding  cycle  utilizing  available  funds  allocated  for  installation  and 
removal of speed humps. 

 
B.  Speed  humps  that  are  partially  removed  or  damaged  during  the  course  of  publicly  funded 

construction or maintenance activities shall be repaired or reconstructed to original conditions 
upon completion of those activities at City expense by the forces conducting those activities.  

 
C.  Any  speed hump  that  is  fully or partially  removed or damaged during  the  course of privately 

funded maintenance or construction shall be reinstalled upon completed of  those activities at 
the expense of the private constructor. 

 
D.  The  replacement  of  speed  humps  completely  removed  through  the  above  actions  is  not 

automatic,  but  contingent  upon  a  finding  by  the  City  Manager  that  the  street  meets  the 
eligibility requirements in Section II.C.1.a through II.C.1.g. 

 
IV.  Removal of Speed Humps by Citizen Request 
 

A.  Request Process 
 

1.   Citizens may request that a street segment be reviewed for the possible removal of some or 
all  of  the  existing  speed  humps.  The  City  Manager  must  receive  removal  requests  by 
currently published biannual deadlines. Written  requests  for  reviewing street segments  to 
consider removal of speed humps should be submitted to: 

 
City of Rosenberg 
City Manager 
Speed Hump Program 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
2.   Each request must include a name, address, phone number and e‐mail address of a resident 

or business representative from the affected area who agrees to be the contact person. The 
contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible for gathering signatures 
on the request for review application. See Appendix D for a copy of the application packet 
for requesting the removal of speed humps. An application form can also be obtained from 
the  City  Manager.  Each  contact  person  must  acknowledge  designation  by  signing  the 
request. 

 
3.  The  request  for  reviewing  street  segments  to  consider  removal  of  speed  humps  must 

originate from a resident and/or a business, school, or other entity whose property is within 
the affected area. The affected area will be determined by the City Manager and will include 
primarily those properties facing or abutting the street segment on which speed humps are 
located. A property will be  considered part of  the affected area only  if  the access/egress 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

8 

 

route  requires  traveling  over  existing  speed  humps  which  are  being  requested  to  be 
removed. 
 

B.  Eligibility 
 

1.  Upon written request, the City Manager will determine eligibility for removal consideration 
by these factors. 

 
a.  The request must not be a duplicate request. 
b.  The removal segment must correspond with the installation segment. 
c.  The  speed humps have been  in place  for  at  least one  year OR  at  least one  year has 

elapsed since any previous speed hump removal occurred. 
 
C.  Notification/Evidence of Support 

 
1.   Following the determination of eligibility for a segment to be considered for hump removal, 

a map of the affected area will be developed and sent to the requester. Also included will be 
an application form that will be used to document support for the review of the segment for 
possible removal of speed humps. All properties within the affected area must be accounted 
for, either by signature and  indication of preference (in favor of review, oppose review, go 
with majority) or by written statement by the requester  indicating why a specific property 
was not represented. There must be at least 75% evidence of support from property owners 
and residents for review to further the process. 

 
2.  Requests with  either  no  application  or with  an  application  that  does  not  account  for  all 

properties will be considered incomplete and will not further the process. The City Manager 
must  receive  speed  hump  removal  review  applications  by  currently  published  biannual 
deadlines. 

 
D. Removal Determination 

 
1.   At the City Manager’s discretion, depending on the  length of the segment and the number 

of humps present, removal of speed humps along a segment may be considered in multiple 
phases. For all phases, an engineering review will be performed to determine which, if any, 
of the speed humps are to be removed. 

 
2.  The  removal  application  process  does  not  invite  nor  accept  recommendations  from 

requesters  regarding  which  speed  humps  should  or  should  not  be  removed.  Based  on 
engineering judgment, the results of the review process may recommend removal of none, 
some, or all of the speed humps. Factors that are considered for review may include, but are 
not limited to: 

 
a.  Existing speed hump locations and spacing 
b.  STOP/YIELD signs or traffic signals along the segment 
c.  Historical and existing traffic speed and volume information 
d.  Accident history 
e.  Presence or absence of sidewalks, schools and parks 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

9 

 

 
3.  If speed studies conducted along the requested segment or portions of the segment reveal 

the 85th percentile speed  is greater than or equal to three miles per hour over the posted 
speed limit, then no hump removal will occur along the segment or portion of the segment 
represented by the study. 

 
4. Following the removal of any speed humps, the segment may be reconsidered for additional 

hump removal after one year. A new request must be submitted to have a segment receive 
consideration  for  additional  removal.  Each  phase  is  subject  to  the  same  requirements, 
policies,  and  procedures  in  effect  at  the  time  of  the  request,  and  requires  separate  and 
independent applications. 

 
E.  Funding Criteria 

 
1. Funds  for  speed  hump  removal  will  be  determined  by  prorating  total  available  funding 

between  number  of  humps  eligible  for  installation  and  number  of  humps  eligible  for 
removal. 

 
2.  Selection of humps funded for removal will be on a first come basis, based on the date of 

receipt of the completed application. 
 

F.  Cost Responsibility 
 

1.   The  City  is  responsible  for  all  costs  associated with  removal  of  speed  humps  under  this 
process. Removal will occur during the regularly scheduled speed hump construction cycles. 
Private funding of approved removal is possible with 75% support for review. 

 
2.  If a  request  for  removal  is denied,  the  segment may not be  reconsidered  for at  least  two 

years unless  there  is a  substantial  change  in  conditions.  If any  request  for  removal  is not 
funded  after  five  funding  cycles,  the  request  expires.  Subsequent  requests  to  consider 
removal  will  follow  the  defined  process  for  removal  in  effect  at  the  same  time  of  the 
request. Each request requires separate and independent applications. 

 
V.  Design Standards, Construction, and Maintenance 
 

A.  The Public Works Director shall prepare and maintain current design standards and installation 
and removal procedures for speed humps in accordance with this policy. 

 
B.  Design and construction or removal of the speed humps and associated pavement markings and 

signs will be the responsibility of the Public Works Director. 
 
C. The City Public Works Department will maintain the speed humps and all related features. 

 



Appendix A 
 

A‐ 1 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program 
                  2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595‐3310 Fax (832) 595‐3311 
 
 

General Description 
 
The speed hump is a gentle rise and fall of pavement surface placed in the roadway to reduce the speed 
of vehicles. Speed humps have proven to be successful in reducing speed while allowing safe operation 
of the vehicle. 
 
The following is a summary of the process for speed hump allocation and installation. 
 

Step One: Request for Study 
 
A request can be made by either a neighborhood or business association, by a single resident or a group 
of  residents,  property  owner,  or  by  a  business  located  on  the  street  requesting  speed  humps.  Each 
request must include a name, address and phone number of a resident from the requested street who 
agrees to be the contact person. The contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible 
for gathering evidence of  support. Each contact person must acknowledge designation by  signing  the 
request. Written requests should be submitted to the City Manager at the above address. An application 
form  can  be  obtained  from  the  City Manager. A  request may  not  automatically  be withdrawn  from 
consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
The request must be for a specific street segment and should include at least the following information: 
 

 The requested street name 

 The boundary of the street segment 

 Name of contact person 

 Address of contact person 

 Daytime phone number and cell phone number of contact person 

 E‐mail address of contact person 

 Signature of contact person 
 
Do not  submit applications or other evidence of  support with your  request. Applications or  letters of 
support  gathered  without  the  preliminary  placement  maps  will  not  be  accepted.  Requests  will  be 
evaluated on a biannual schedule  (page A‐3), however  the schedule and process do not preclude  the 
City Manager from  installing warranted speed humps when and where  it  is deemed necessary outside 
the procedures of this program. 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix A 
 

A‐ 2 

 

 

Step Two: Level of Support 
 
After receipt of the Request for Study, the City Manager will provide preliminary placement maps to the 
contact person. The contact person is encouraged to gather and present support from the community in 
the form of applications from residents, property owners, or businesses facing or having lot frontage on 
the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be located. There must be at least 75% of the 
property owners and residents within the application area in support of the installation request. 
 
Applications  or  letters  of  support  gathered  without  the  preliminary  placement  maps  will  not  be 
considered. 
 
Submission of  the required community support documentation does not guarantee the request will 
meet the established eligibility criteria, nor does it guarantee the request will ultimately be approved, 
funded, or speed humps installed.  
 

Step Three: Eligibility 
 
In order for a request to qualify for consideration, the street must meet criteria set by the City Manager. 
It  is the responsibility of the Public Works Director to conduct traffic studies to determine  if the street 
segment meets the following criteria: 
 

 The street may not be classified as an Arterial or a Collector. 

 The street may not be designated Primary Emergency Response Route. 

 There must be no more than one moving lane of traffic in each direction. 

 The street must have a speed limit of 30 mph or less. 

 The street must be paved prior to construction of the speed humps. 

 The  sum of  traffic  volumes  for both directions must be  less  than 5,000  vehicles per day  and 
more than 500 vehicles per day. 

 The measured 85th percentile speed must exceed the prima facie speed limit by 5 miles per hour 
or more  in a 24‐hour  study OR  there must be  two or more  reported  speed  related accidents 
within the street segment during the last twelve months of recorded data. 

 
Other factors such as, but not limited to, alignments, grades and sight distances may also be evaluated. 
 
Only  those  requests  meeting  all  the  eligibility  requirements  will  proceed.  If  a  request  is  denied, 
applicants will not be able  to  reapply  to  the  speed hump program  for  the  following  two years unless 
there is considerable change in conditions. 
 
All traffic counts will be scheduled during regular commuter periods unless a specific weekend problem 
is noted in the request. 
 

Step Four: Speed Hump Location 
 
It is the responsibility of the Public Works Director to determine the final location of all speed humps in 
accordance with current engineering principles, however: 



Appendix A 
 

A‐ 3 

 

 

 Speed humps will usually be placed between 300 feet to 500 feet apart. 

 A speed hump shall not be located in front of a driveway or within an intersection. 

 Speed humps should not be  located within 200 feet of a traffic signal or a STOP sign, or within 
50 feet of an uncontrolled intersection. 

 
Step Five: Prioritization 
 
The Public Works Director will prioritize requests according to the following ranking criteria: 
 

 Average Daily Traffic 

 Speeding 

 Automobile Accident 

 Auto/Pedestrian or Auto/Bicycle Accident 

 Community Development 

 Institution 

 Absence of Sidewalks 
 

Step Six: Funding 
 
An annual budget will be established for construction of approved projects. Projects will be scheduled 
for construction by priority ranking as funding permits within the established budget. 
 
Projects  may  be  completed,  out  of  ranking  order,  if  alternative  funds  become  available  or  if 
complementing maintenance and/or capital improvement projects are initiated during the year. 
 
Approved projects that do not receive funding in the current year will be automatically considered for 2 
additional years. All projects will be re‐prioritized by ranking on a biannual basis. 
 
An eligible project may be expedited  if the applicants choose to pay for 100% of the estimated cost of 
the  installation.  Expedited  projects  will  be  constructed  no  later  than  the  next  fiscal  year  following 
deposit of funding. 



Appendix A 
 

A‐ 4 

 

 
 

Speed Hump Program Schedule 
 
Process Step                    Round “A”        Round “B” 

Deadline for request submission April 1 October 1

Planning and eligibility determinations 
completed by City Manager, Preliminary 
placement maps and application forms 
prepared by City Manager 

June 1 December 1

Final date to submit evidence of support August 1 February 1

Ranking of eligible requests for City 
funding 

September 1 March 1

Construction begins on approved projects October April 



 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program 
                  2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595‐3310 Fax (832) 595‐3311 
 

For policy Effective ____________ 

Request for Speed Hump Study 
The following is a request for a speed hump study. Please feel free to submit this form as a formal request. Each 
request must  contain  the  completed  information  as  indicated  in  both  Part  A  and  Part  B.  The  request will  be 
processed according to the procedures detailed in the Speed Hump Program Policies and Procedures. 
 
A. Street Study Information 
Each request must provide the name of the street on which a study is requested, and the boundaries of the street 
segment. Traffic studies will be conducted only within the boundaries  indicated. Please use streets for boundary 
limits, not block ranges. 
  Requested Street:              
 
 
  From:                 
   
 
  To:                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Contact Person Information 
Each request must provide a contact person who lives on the requested street within the study area boundary. The 
contact  person  will  receive  all  correspondence  and  be  responsible  for  gathering  evidence  of  support  when 
requested. 
 
Name:                     
 
Address:                  
 
 
City:          Zip Code:              Daytime Ph #:      
     
 
 
Cell Ph#:                                                                                      E‐Mail Address:  
 
I agree  to be  the  contact person  for  the above  request.  I understand  that a  request may not automatically be 
withdrawn from consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
Signature of Applicant:                   Date:    

 
 
 

A‐5 



Appendix B 

B ‐ 1 

 

 
Recount Policy 

 
I.  Traffic count data that is reviewed and believed to be questionable or invalid by the public works staff 

for any of the reasons listed below will be scheduled for a recount. This recount will occur as soon as 
possible and preferably within the current funding round, unless circumstances indicate otherwise. 

 
II.  Segments that have been determined  ineligible due to traffic data may be re‐evaluated upon written 

request, by conducting another  traffic  survey. Those  segments  receiving approval  to be  reevaluated 
will  be  reassigned  from  their  original  application  cycle  to  the  next  available  application  cycle.  The 
reassigned requests will conform to the policies and procedures in effect for that funding cycle. 

 
III.  Citizen  initiated  requests  for  recounts must  be  submitted  in  writing.  These  letters  should  clearly 

express  specific  reasons  why  the  original  count  should  be  considered  invalid.  If  approved,  these 
recounts will be scheduled during the following funding round. 

 
IV.  If  it  is  determined  through  engineering  judgment  that  the  original  count  did  not  represent  normal 

conditions and the recount does represent normal conditions, then the data gathered by the recount 
will be used to evaluate the need for speed humps. 

 
  A.  The following presents some of the valid reasons to authorize a recount: 
 

1.  Incomplete or missing data. 
2.  Unusually high or low 85th percentile speeds. 
3.  Failure or malfunction of the counting equipment. 
4.  Relatively  large proportions of  large vehicles (trucks, buses, etc.) to passenger cars  in 

the data. 
5.  Relatively high percentages of “unknown” or “other” vehicle classifications in the data. 
6.  Counter  deployed  at  times  and/or  locations  other  than  those  specified  by  the 

requestor. 
7.  Counter deployed during non‐school times at locations influence by school traffic. 
8.  Vandalism or deliberate influence. (This aspect is discussed in more detail below). 
9.  Other similar considerations. 

 
B.  The  following  reasons  require  additional  records  or  field  research  before  a  recount  can  be 

authorized: 
 

1.   Counter deployed at a location typically bypassed by a significant portion of traffic. 
2.  Counter deployed relatively close to a traffic control device (STOP sign, traffic signals, 

etc.) a horizontal or vertical curve, or other physical feature that could be reasonably 
expected to influence motorists’ behavior on the subject street segment. 

3.  Construction  or  maintenance  activities  occurring  in  the  vicinity  of  the  deployed 
counter  that can be  reasonably expected  to  influence  travel patterns on  the  subject 
street segment. 

4.  Counter deployed during a special even that can be reasonably expected to influence 
travel patterns on the subject street segment. 

5.  Counters deployed at or near  school bus  stops,  commercial  loading  zones,  frequent 
on‐street  parking  locations,  and  other  similar  locations  that  can  be  reasonably 



Appendix B 

B ‐ 2 

 

expected to influence travel patterns and/or motorists’ behavior on the subject street 
segment. 

6.  Speed  humps  or  other  mitigation  devices  installed  on  adjacent  streets  after  the 
original  study  that  can  be  reasonably  expected  to  influence  travel  patterns  on  the 
subject street segment. 

7.  Physical modification  of  the  roadways  (reconstruction,  overlays,  traffic  signals,  etc.) 
changes  in  land use  (apartments,  shopping  centers,  theaters, etc.) and other  similar 
factors  that  can be  reasonably expected  to  influence  travel patterns on  the  subject 
street segment. 

    8.  Other similar considerations.  
 
  C.  The following are generally considered invalid reasons to authorize a recount: 
 

1. Fear of accidents or incidents occurring. 
2. Recent accidents or  incidents that are not part of a discernible patter of occurrence.  

Only those accidents or  incidents reported to Rosenberg Police Department or other 
comparable public agency will be considered in determining if a trend exists. 

3. Unspecified doubt in the validity of the study. 
4. Requests  for  recounts  to  be  conducted  during  a  specified  time  period  that  can 

reasonably be considered part of a special event. 
5. Unsupported  allegations  of  traffic  patterns  being  deliberately  and  significantly 

influenced by individuals or groups. 
6. Other similar considerations. 

 
V.  Traffic  count  locations  that  are  vandalized  (tubes  disconnected or  cut,  counter damaged or  stolen, 

etc.) or deliberately  influenced  (vehicles parked on or near tubes, multiple passes across tubes, etc.) 
will be recounted in the following manner: 

 
A.  A first recount will occur automatically. Consideration will be given to moving the counter to a 

more secure location. 
 

B.  If the counter is vandalized or deliberately influenced during the first recount, the study will be 
suspended and  the  requester  contacted and  informed of  the adverse occurrence. A  second 
recount will be authorized only if assurances are secured from the requester that a resident of 
the street segment will closely monitor  the counter.  If no assurances are  received,  then  the 
request is considered ineligible and may not be reconsidered for two years. 

 
C.  If  the  counter  is  vandalized  or  deliberately  influenced  during  the  second  recount,  then  the 

request is considered ineligible and may not be reconsidered for two years. 
 
 

 
 
 



Appendix C 
 

C ‐ 1 

 

 
PLACEMENT OF SPEED HUMP WARNING SIGNS POLICY 

 
 
I.  Speed hump warning signs shall be required to warn motorists of the presence of speed humps 

along a street segment. However, due to aesthetic consideration of the neighborhoods in which 
they are erected, the number of signs installed shall be minimized where possible. 

 
II.  The general design, layout, and placement of the speed hump warning sign assemblies shall be 

in  conformance with  the  Texas Manual  on Uniform  Traffic  Control Devices  (TMUTCD),  latest 
version. 

 
III.  The following guidelines shall be considered when locating and installing these signs. 
 

A.  A speed hump warning sign shall be installed in advance of the first speed hump in the 
segment  for  each  direction  of  travel.  No  other  speed  hump  warning  signs may  be 
required for motorists traveling along the segment provided adequate warning is given 
to motorists prior to their entering the segment. 

 
B.  The installation of speed hump warning signs at or in advance of each speed hump along 

the subject segment shall not be required other than as described herein. 
 

C.  If  a new  segment of  speed humps  is  installed  abutting  an  existing  segment,  the  two 
segments may be considered as one segment and signed as a single segment. Existing 
signs may be removed so as to incorporate the two segments into a single segment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix D 
 

D ‐ 1 

 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program ‐ 
REMOVAL 

                2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   
Phone (832) 595‐3310 Fax (832) 595‐3311 

   

General Description 
 
The speed hump is a gentle rise and fall of pavement surface placed in the roadway to reduce the speed 
of vehicles. Speed humps have proven to be successful in reducing speed while allowing safe operation 
of  the  vehicle. However,  citizens who believe  the humps  are not  required  along  a  street  for  various 
reasons may request the humps be considered for removal. The following  is a summary of the process 
for speed hump removal. 
 

Step One: Request for a Removal Study 
 
A request can be made by either a neighborhood or business association, by a single resident or a group 
of residents, or by a business located on the street requesting speed humps. Each request must include 
a  name,  address  and  phone  number  of  a  resident  from  the  requested  street who  agrees  to  be  the 
contact person.  The  contact person will  receive  all  correspondence  and be  responsible  for  gathering 
evidence of support. Each contact person must acknowledge designation by signing the request. Written 
requests  should be  submitted  to  the City Manager at  the above address. An application  form can be 
obtained  from  the City Manager. A  request may not  automatically be withdrawn  from  consideration 
once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for removal of speed humps. 
 
The request must be for a specific street segment and should include at least the following information: 
 

 The requested street name 

 The boundary of the street segment 

 Name of contact person 

 Address of contact person 

 Daytime phone number and cell phone number of contact person 

 E‐mail address of contact person 

 Signature of contact person 
 
Do not  submit applications or other evidence of  support with your  request. Applications or  letters of 
support gathered prior to the eligibility determinations without the preliminary placement maps will not 
be accepted. Requests will be evaluated on a biannual schedule (page D‐3), however the schedule and 
process do not preclude the City Manager from removing speed humps when and where  it  is deemed 
necessary outside the procedure of this program. 
 
 
 



Appendix D 
 

D ‐ 2 

 

 
 
 

Step Two: Eligibility 
 
In order for a request to qualify for consideration, the street must meet criteria set by the Public Works 
Director: 

 The request must not be a duplicate request. 

 The removal segment must correspond with the installation segment. 

 The speed humps must have been in place for at least one year. 
 
Only  those  requests  meeting  all  the  eligibility  requirements  will  proceed.  If  a  request  is  denied, 
applicants will not be able to reapply to the Speed Hump Removal Program for the following two years 
unless there is considerable change in conditions. 
 
All traffic counts will be scheduled during regular commuter periods unless a specific weekend problem 
is noted in the request. 

 
Step Three: Level of Support 
 
If  the  City Manager  determines  the  speed  humps  along  a  street  segment  to  be  eligible  for  removal 
consideration, the City Manager will provide existing  location maps to the contact person. The contact 
person  is encouraged to gather and present support from the community  in the form of application(s) 
(which  are  provided  by  the  City Manager)  from  residents,  property  owners,  or  businesses  facing  or 
having lot frontage on the street segment where speed humps are being considered for removal. There 
must be at  least 75% evidence of  support  for  review  to  further  the process. Requests with either no 
application or with an application that does not account for all properties will be considered incomplete 
and will not further in the process. 
 
Applications or  letters of support gathered prior  to  the  removal eligibility determinations without  the 
existing location maps will not be considered. 

 
Step Four: Removal Consideration Factors 
 
The removal application process does not invite nor accept recommendations from requestors regarding 
which speed humps should or should not be removed. Based on engineering  judgment,  the results of 
the review process may recommend removal of none, some, or all of the speed humps. Factors that are 
considered for review may include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Existing speed hump locations and spacing 

 STOP/YIELD signs or traffic signals along the segment 

 Historical and existing traffic speed and volume information 

 Accident History 

 Presence or absence of sidewalks, schools and parks 
 



Appendix D 
 

D ‐ 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Step Five: Funding 
 
Funds for speed hump removal will be determined by prorating total available funding between number 
of humps eligible for installation and number of humps eligible for removal. Selection of humps funded 
for  removal will be on a  first come basis, based on  the date of  receipt of  the completed application. 
Removal will occur during  the regularly scheduled speed hump construction cycles. Private  funding of 
approved removal is possible with 75% support for review. 
 

Speed Hump Removal Program Schedule 
 

Process Step            Round “A”    Round “B” 

Deadline for removal request submission April 1 October 1

Planning and eligibility determinations 
completed by City Manager, Application area 
maps and application forms prepared by City 
Manager 

May 1 November 1

Final date to submit evidence of support July 1 January 1

Ranking of eligible requests for City Funding September 1  March 1

Construction begins on approved projects October April

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program ‐ REMOVAL 
              2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595‐3310 Fax (832) 595‐3311 
     

For policy effective ____________ 

Request for Removal Study 
 
This is a request for removing speed humps. Please feel free to submit this form as a formal request. Each request 
must  contain  the  completed  information as  indicated  in both Part A and Part B. The  request will be processed 
according to the procedures detailed in the Speed Hump Program Policies and Procedures. 
 
A. Street Study Information 
Each request must provide the name of the street on which a study is requested, and the boundaries of the street 
segment. Traffic studies will be conducted only within the boundaries  indicated. Please use streets for boundary 
limits, not block ranges. 
  Requested Street:              
 
 
  From:                 
   
 
  To:                 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Contact Person Information 
Each request must provide a contact person who lives on the requested street within the study area boundary. The 
contact  person  will  receive  all  correspondence  and  be  responsible  for  gathering  evidence  of  support  when 
requested. 
 
Name:                     
 
Address:                  
 
 
City:          Zip Code:              Daytime Ph #:      
     
 
 
Cell Ph#:                                                                                      E‐Mail Address:  
 
I agree to be the contact person for the above request. I understand that a request may not automatically be 
withdrawn from consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
Signature of Applicant:                   Date:    

 
 
 
 

D‐4 



Appendix E 
 

E ‐ 1 

 

 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
City Engineer: the City Engineer or designated representatives. 
 
City Manager: the City Manager or designated representatives. 
 
Institution: a park or  school  that  could  reasonably be anticipated  to generate volumes of pedestrian 
traffic. 
 
Arterial or Collector: any street designated respectively as an Arterial or Collector on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Primary Emergency Response Route: any street segment designated by Rosenberg Police Department 
or Rosenberg Fire Department as an emergency access route. 
 
Public Works Director: the Public Works Director or designated representatives. 
 
Residential:  any  single  family  residence,  townhouse,  duplex,  triplex,  quadruplex,  condominium,  or 
apartment complex or any other structures used as dwelling units. 
 
Speed Hump:  a  geometric  design  feature  of  a  roadway,  consisting  of  a  raised  area  in  the  roadway 
pavement surface extending transversely across the travel way, whose primary purpose is to reduce the 
speed of  vehicles  traveling  along  that  roadway.  The base of  the hump  varies  in width  and  gradually 
slopes to a maximum height of approximately 3 to 4 inches. Speed Cushions and Speed Tables may also 
be utilized for this purpose. 
 
Speed Criteria: the speed which is 5 miles per hour (mph) over the posted or prima facie speed limit for 
a given street. 
 
85th percentile speed: the measured speed at or below which 85% of vehicles are traveling. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix F 
 

F ‐ 1 

 

 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION  
NOTIFICATION/EVIDENCE OF SUPPORT APPLICATION 

 
We, the undersigned homeowners, residents, business owners, or property owners of ____________________________________________ Subdivision, located 
___________________________________________ request that the City of Rosenberg install speed humps in our subdivision, at locations approved by the City 
Manager. We understand  that  this application only represents our desire  for speed humps and does not warrant or guarantee  their  installation.  It  is  further 
understood that all in the affected area as defined by the City Manager must complete this form, by affixing the date, their address, whether renter or owner, 
name, signature, and whether support installation or not on the list below. All submitted names are subject to verification. 
 
Speed humps will more than likely cause: modification in traffic speeds and volumes; increased levels of noise at the hump locations; aesthetic changes to 
the subdivision streets due to the speed humps, and the associated signs and pavement markings; and impacts on street maintenance and emergency vehicle 
response times. 
 
Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date  Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation 
Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

 



Appendix F 
 

F ‐ 2 

 

Notification/Evidence of Support Application 
 

Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date  Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation
Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

 
DO NOT SIGN this APPLICATION if you have NOT READ the front page of this APPLICATION. 
 
Please do not use any other form. This sheet may be reproduced if necessary.  



Appendix G 
 

G ‐ 1 

 

 

SPEED HUMP REMOVAL 
NOTIFICATION/EVIDENCE OF SUPPORT APPLICATION 

 
We, the undersigned homeowners, residents, business owners, or property owners of ____________________________________________ Subdivision, located 
__________________________________________ request that the City of Rosenberg remove speed humps in our subdivision, at locations approved by the City 
Manager. We understand that this application only represents our desire for removal of speed humps and does not warrant or guarantee their removal.  It  is 
further understood that all in the affected area as defined by the City Manager must complete this form, by affixing the date, their address, whether renter or 
owner, name, signature, and whether support removal or not on the list below. All submitted names are subject to verification. 
 
Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date  Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation
Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

 



Appendix G 
 

G ‐ 2 

 

Notification/Evidence of Support Application 
 

Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date  Address 

Renter 
or 

Owenr 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Removal 
Support 
Yes 

Removal 
Support 

No 

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

   
 

         

 
DO NOT SIGN this APPLICATION if you have NOT READ the front page of this APPLICATION. 
 
Please do not use any other form. This sheet may be reproduced if necessary. 

 



 

 

 

City of Rosenberg 

 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

For 

Traffic Calming 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL 

 

EFFECTIVE ____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

For 
SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL 

EFFECTIVE _____________________ 

 
Table of Contents 

 
Section           Page Number 
 

I. Authority and Scope         2 
 
II. Installation of Speed Humps by Citizen Request      2 

A. Request Process         2 
B. Notification/Evidence of SupportEligibility       

   2 
C. EligibilityDiversion Issue         

  23 
D. Diversion IssueNotification/Evidence of Support      

  43 
E. Speed Hump Location        4 
F. Funding Criteria         5 
G. Cost Responsibility         6 

 
III. Removal of Speed Humps by Maintenance or Construction Activities   76 

 
IV. Removal of Speed Humps by Citizen Request      7 

A. Request Process         7 
B. Eligibility          87 
C. Notification/Evidence of Support PetitionApplications     

 8 
D. Removal Determination        8 
E. Funding Criteria         9 
F. Cost Responsibility         9 

 
V. Design Standards, Construction, and Maintenance     9 
 
Appendix A – Application Packet for Requesting the Installation of Speed Humps  A -1 
 
Appendix B – Recount Policy        B -1 
 
Appendix C – Placement of Speed Hump Warning Signs Policy    C - 1 
 
Appendix D- Application Packet for Requesting the Removal of Speed Humps  D -1 
 
Appendix E – Definitions         E -1 
 



 

 

 

Appendix F – Speed Hump Installation Notification/Evidence of Support PetitionApplication 
 F -1 
 
Appendix G – Speed Hump Removal Notification/Evidence of Support PetitionApplication 
 G -1 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

3 

 

I. Authority and Scope 
 
A. The City Manager, or his/her designated representative issues and administrates this policy. 
 
B. This policy is effective immediately and retroactively to all currently active speed hump 

requests. 
 
C. The Rosenberg City Council retains the authority to install or remove speed humps for cause 

independent of this policy. 
 

II. Installation of Speed Humps by Citizen Request 
 

A. Request Process 
 

1. The initial request for the installation of speed humps must originate from a resident, 
property owner, business, school, homeowner’s association, or other entity whose property 
abuts the requested street segment. The requestor must be willing to act as the primary 
contact and take responsibility for notification and the compilation of evidence of support 
for their requested street should it be determined eligible. A written request should be 
submitted to: 

 
City of Rosenberg 
City Manager 
Speed Hump Program 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
2. The request should identify the street and blocks where the applicant(s) desires speed 

humps, and the name, address, phone number and e-mail address for a contact person. 
Submitted segments may be divided or otherwise revised at the sole determination of the 
City Manager. 

 
3. See Appendix A for a copy of the application packet for requesting the installation of speed 

humps. 
 

B. Notification/Evidence of Support 
 

1.  After receipt of the Request for Study, If the street is determined to be eligible for 
consideration, the City Manager will define the approximate speed hump location(s) on a 
map, which will be provided to the applicant(s) with an application of notification on which 
to gather evidence of support. Notification/evidence of support must be submitted on 
forms produced by the City Manager or exact duplicates of it. Documents that do not 
include placement information (map showing approximate locations of speed humps) will 
not be accepted as valid under any circumstances. 

  



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

4 

 

2. The application area will be determined by the City Manager.  The City Manager may take 
into account a number of factors, including but not limited to: 

 
a. Properties facing or abutting the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to 

be located. 
b. Properties that must use the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be 

located as an access/egress route. 
c. Properties that are in close proximity to the street segment on which a speed hump is 

proposed to be located. 
d. Other traffic-related issues that the installation of speed humps may have a direct or 

indirect impact. 
       
3. Notification/evidence of support applications must be completed and returned to the City 

Manager by the established deadline for the segment to be considered in the ranking 
process. There must be at least 75% of the property owners and residents in support of the 
installation request in order to proceed with the review process. Requests without 
applications will be considered incomplete. 

 
4.  Each property identified by the City Manager as lying within the application area must be 

represented on the application by signature. A statement of exception must be submitted 
by the applicant(s) explaining the absence of any property not so represented. Requests 
that do not account for all properties will be considered incomplete. 

 
5.  Property managers or property landowner signature may be considered as approval for all 

units of multi-family properties of ten or more units. The manager or property landowner 
must be properly identified on the application form. 

 
6. Any person who wishes to alter their indication of support on the application form after its 

submittal must do so by individual letter of request to the City Manager. No such request 
will affect funding that has already been awarded. 

 
7. A complete listing of all active requests may be posted on the City’s web site. 
 

B.C.  Eligibility  
 

1. The Public Works Director will conduct the necessary traffic engineering studies. A 
determination of the street’s eligibility for the speed hump installation will be made in a 
timely manner, based on the following policy criteria: 

 
a. The street may not be classified as an Arterial or a Collector. 
b. The street may not be designated Primary Emergency Response Route. 
c. There may be no more than one moving lane of traffic in each direction. 
d. The street must have a speed limit of 30 mph or less. 
e. The street must be paved prior to construction of the speed humps. 
f. The sum of traffic volumes for both directions must be less than 5,000 vehicles per day 

and more than 500 vehicles per day. 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

5 

 

g. The measured 85th percentile speed must exceed the prima facie speed limit by 5 miles 
per hour or more in a 24-hour study period OR there must be twohree or more reported 
speed-related accidents within the street segment during the last twelve months of 
recorded data. 

 
2. Other factors such as, but not limited to, alignment, grades, and sight distances may affect 

consideration for eligibility. 
 
3. If the street is determined not to be eligible for speed humps, the applicant(s) will be 

notified in writing of the reason for ineligibility. 
 
4. Requests for recounts will be considered following the adopted policy located in Appendix 

B. Approved recounts will occur as soon as possible and preferably within the active request 
round, unless circumstances indicate otherwise. 

 
5. A request for enforcement of the speed limit will be sent to Rosenberg Police Department 

for those segments that are ineligible for consideration for speed humps but where the 85th 
percentile speed exceeds the speed limit. This referral will include a copy of the traffic study 
indicating the speed and volume profiles for the segment on an hourly basis. 
 

C.D. Diversion Issue 
 
1. In the preliminary studies of land use and petitionapplication area, probable shifts in traffic 

routes will be identified. In these areas, prior to the construction of speed humps along a 
street segment, traffic studies will be conducted along adjacent alternate routes to provide 
base data to document any occurrence of traffic shifts. 

 
2.  If the adjacent alternate route is requested to be considered for speed humps at a later 

date, it will be considered as all other requested segments are considered. The results of the 
first and second study will be compared. If the segment is eligible for speed hump 
consideration and any increases in either traffic speeds or volumes are shown, additional 
consideration for those increases will be given in the funding process. Any decreases in 
volume or speed will not penalize the segment’s consideration for funding. 

 
D. Notification/Evidence of Support 

 
1.  If the street is determined to be eligible for consideration, the City Manager will define the 

approximate speed hump location(s) on a map, which will be provided to the applicant(s) 
with a petition of notification on which to gather evidence of support. Notification/evidence 
of support must be submitted on forms produced by the City Manager or exact duplicates of 
it. Documents that do not include placement information will not be accepted as valid under 
any circumstances. 

  
2. The petition area will be determined by the City Manager. and will include primarily those 

properties facing or abutting the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be 
located. A property will be considered a part of the petition area if its access/egress route 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

6 

 

requires traveling over existing or proposed speed humps. The City Manager may take into 
account a number of factors, including but not limited to: 

 
 Properties facing or abutting the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to 

be located. 
 Properties that must use the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be 

located as an access/egress route. 
 Properties that are in close proximity to the street segment on which a speed hump is 

proposed to be located. 
 Other traffic-related issues that the installation of speed humps may have a direct or 

indirect impact. 
       
3. Notification/evidence of support petitionapplications must be completed and returned to 

the City Manager by the established deadline for the segment to be considered in the 
ranking process. There must be at least 75% of the landowners in support of the installation 
request in order to proceed with the review process. Requests without petitionapplications 
will be considered incomplete. 

 
4.  Each property identified by the City Manager as lying within the petition area must be 

represented on the petitionapplication by signature. A statement of exception must be 
submitted by the applicant(s) explaining the absence of any property not so represented. 
Requests that do not account for all properties will be considered incomplete. 

 
5.  Property managers or landowner signature may be considered as approval for all units of 

multi-family properties of ten or more units. The manager or landowner must be properly 
identified on the petition form. 

 
6. Any person who wishes to alter their indication of support on the petitionapplication form 

after its submittal must do so by individual letter of request to the City Manager. No such 
request will affect funding that has already been awarded. 

 
7. A complete listing of all active requests may be posted on the City’s web site. 

  
E.     Speed Hump Location 

 
1. The Public Works Director will determine the final location of all speed humps according to 

the guidelines in these Policies and Procedures and in accordance with current engineering 
principles. 
  
a. Speed humps will generally be placed approximately 300 to 500 feet apart.  Other 

spacing may be used based upon engineering judgment. 
b. A speed hump shall not be located in front of a driveway or within an intersection. 
c. Speed humps should generally not be located within 200 feet of a traffic signal or STOP 

sign, or within 50 feet of an uncontrolled intersection. 
d. Speed humps should not be located over, or contain manholes, water valves or other 

subsurface utilities access features. 
e. Speed humps should not be located adjacent to fire hydrants. 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

7 

 

f. For humps located near drainage inlets, the hump should be placed just downstream of 
the inlet. If this is not feasible, special treatment may be considered for drainage. 

g. To improve nighttime visibility, coordinating hump location with existing or planned 
street lighting should be considered. 

h. Preferences of requesters or property owners adjacent to speed hump locations will not 
be considered unless unique or special circumstances exist that warrant relocation. The 
City Manager will consider these circumstances on a case-by-case basis. 

  
2.  Traffic control consisting of signs and markings shall be installed in accordance with 

Appendix C to advise roadway users of the presence of speed humps. 
 

3. Any relocation of constructed speed humps at citizen’s request must be approved by the 
City Manager and relocated at the requesting citizen’s cost unless the City Manager deems 
that a public purpose is fulfilled by the removal. The requester must secure evidence of 
support by properties adjacent to both the existing, or losing, location and the proposed, or 
gaining, location. 

 
F.    Funding Criteria 

 
1. Funds for speed hump installation will be determined by prorating total available funding 

between number of humps eligible for installation and number of humps eligible for 
removal. 

 
2. A street segment’s ranking score is determined by summing the following factors. 

  
a. Average Daily Traffic Factor – The total number of vehicles traveling on the roadway 

where speed humps are desired will be one basis of point assignment. These vehicular 
volume numbers will be based on traffic counts taken by the Public Works Director. A 
point value is obtained by dividing the total number of vehicles by 100. If the segment of 
road exceeds 1,000 feet, the average of multiple counts shall be used. 

  Example: 1,500 total vehicles on the roadway 
  1,500/100 = 15.0 points 
b. Speeding Factor – Equals the percentage of vehicles in a 24-hour period exceeding the 

speed limit by 5 miles per hour or more. 
c. Automobile Accident Factor – Equals one point for each reported speeding-related 

accident (except auto/pedestrian or auto/bicycle) occurring within the segment during 
the most recent 12-month period for which accident records are available. Accidents 
that occur at the intersection of the requested street and designated thoroughfares and 
collectors or at signalized intersections are not counted. 

d. Auto/Pedestrian or Auto/Bicycle Accident Factor – Equals 5 points for each reported 
auto/pedestrian or auto/bicycle occurring within the segment during the most recent 
12-month period for which accident records are available. Accidents that occur at the 
intersection of the requested street and designated thoroughfares and collectors or at 
signalized intersections are not counted. 

e. CD Factor – Three points if the segment is within a neighborhood targeted for 
revitalization by the Community Development Division and eligible to receive CDBG and 
Home funds. 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

8 

 

f. Institution Factor – Equal to five points per institution. An institution is considered a 
school or park within 1,000 ft of the segment. 

g. Absence of Sidewalks Factor – Equal to five points if no sidewalks exist within the 
segment or portions of the segment. A segment or portion of a segment with a sidewalk 
on at least one side of the street is considered to have sidewalks. 

 
3.  The street segment with the higher ranking score will be considered to have the higher 

priority. The street with the earliest application date will have the higher priority among 
streets with the same ranking score. 

 
G.     Cost Responsibility 

  
1. The City will be responsible for all costs associated with design and installation of the funded 

speed humps.  
 
2. A street that does not receive speed hump installation funding approval will automatically 

be considered in the following cycles, for a maximum of two (2) additional years (five 
funding cycles). After the two year time period, the request expires. Incomplete requests 
that later become complete within the two year limit will not receive additional time for 
funding consideration. A new written request may be submitted subject to the policies and 
procedures in effect at the time of request. Each request requires a separate and 
independent evidence of support petitionapplication. 

 
3. These procedures do not preclude the City Manager from completing any eligible requests 

out of ranking order under certain circumstances. These include, but are not limited to, 
alternative funds becoming available or complementing projects, maintenance projects 
and/or capital improvement projects initiated during the year. 

 
4. Private Funding 

 
a. Once a street is determined to be eligible for speed hump installation, but not funded 

under the designated annual budget, installation may be expedited by voluntary 
payment of all costs.  Street segments must present a notification/ evidence of support 
petitionapplication exhibiting a 75% or greater support factor. 

b. Requests for a private funding estimate of cost must be made in writing to the City 
Manager. 

c. Voluntary payments must be submitted in one payment for the full cost of installation, 
according to the cost statement provided to the applicant(s). Only certified checks, 
cashier’s checks, or money orders made payable to the City of Rosenberg will be 
accepted. No partial payments will be accepted. 

d. Upon receipt of payment of the cost, the humps will be installed no later than the next 
fiscal year as scheduling permits. 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

9 

 

III. Removal of Speed Humps by Maintenance or Construction Activities 
 

A. Any speed hump that is fully removed during the course of publicly funded construction  or 
maintenance activities shall be reinstalled upon completion of that activity at City expense 
during the next available funding cycle utilizing available funds allocated for installation and 
removal of speed humps. 

 
B. Speed humps that are partially removed or damaged during the course of publicly funded 

construction or maintenance activities shall be repaired or reconstructed to original conditions 
upon completion of those activities at City expense by the forces conducting those activities.  

 
C. Any speed hump that is fully or partially removed or damaged during the course of privately 

funded maintenance or construction shall be reinstalled upon completed of those activities at 
the expense of the private constructor. 

 
D. The replacement of speed humps completely removed through the above actions is not 

automatic, but contingent upon a finding by the City Manager that the street meets the 
eligibility requirements in Section II.CB.1.a through II.CB.1.g. 

 
IV.  Removal of Speed Humps by Citizen Request 
 

A. Request Process 
 

1.  Citizens may request that a street segment be reviewed for the possible removal of some or 
all of the existing speed humps. The City Manager must receive removal requests by 
currently published biannual deadlines. Written requests for reviewing street segments to 
consider removal of speed humps should be submitted to: 

 
City of Rosenberg 
City Manager 
Speed Hump Program 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 
2.  Each request must include a name, address, phone number and e-mail address of a resident 

or business representative from the affected area who agrees to be the contact person. The 
contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible for gathering signatures 
on the request for review petitionapplication. See Appendix D for a copy of the application 
packet for requesting the removal of speed humps. An application form can also be 
obtained from the City Manager. Each contact person must acknowledge designation by 
signing the request. 

 
3. The request for reviewing street segments to consider removal of speed humps must 

originate from a resident and/or a business, school, or other entity whose property is within 
the affected area. The affected area will be determined by the City Manager and will include 
primarily those properties facing or abutting the street segment on which speed humps are 
located. A property will be considered part of the affected area only if the access/egress 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

10 

 

route requires traveling over existing speed humps which are being requested to be 
removed. 
 

B. Eligibility 
 

1. Upon written request, the City Manager will determine eligibility for removal consideration 
by these factors. 

 
a. The request must not be a duplicate request. 
b. The removal segment must correspond with the installation segment. 
c. The speed humps have been in place for at least one year OR at least one year has 

elapsed since any previous speed hump removal occurred. 
 
C. Notification/Evidence of Support 

 
1.  Following the determination of eligibility for a segment to be considered for hump removal, 

a map of the affected area will be developed and sent to the requester. Also included will be 
an petitionapplication form that will be used to document support for the review of the 
segment for possible removal of speed humps. All properties within the affected area must 
be accounted for, either by signature and indication of preference (in favor of review, 
oppose review, go with majority) or by written statement by the requester indicating why a 
specific property was not represented. There must be at least 75% evidence of support from 
property owners and residents for review to further the process. 

 
2. Requests with either no petitionapplication or with an petitionapplication that does not 

account for all properties will be considered incomplete and will not further the process. 
The City Manager must receive speed hump removal review petitionapplications by 
currently published biannual deadlines. 

 
D. Removal Determination 

 
1.  At the City Manager’s discretion, depending on the length of the segment and the number 

of humps present, removal of speed humps along a segment may be considered in multiple 
phases. For all phases, an engineering review will be performed to determine which, if any, 
of the speed humps are to be removed. 

 
2. The removal application process does not invite nor accept recommendations from 

requesters regarding which speed humps should or should not be removed. Based on 
engineering judgment, the results of the review process may recommend removal of none, 
some, or all of the speed humps. Factors that are considered for review may include, but are 
not limited to: 

 
a. Existing speed hump locations and spacing 
b. STOP/YIELD signs or traffic signals along the segment 
c. Historical and existing traffic speed and volume information 
d. Accident history 
e. Presence or absence of sidewalks, schools and parks 



City of Rosenberg 
Policies and Procedures for Speed Hump Installation and Removal 

EFFECTIVE _________________ 

 

11 

 

 
3. If speed studies conducted along the requested segment or portions of the segment reveal 

the 85th percentile speed is greater than or equal to three miles per hour over the posted 
speed limit, then no hump removal will occur along the segment or portion of the segment 
represented by the study. 

 
4. Following the removal of any speed humps, the segment may be reconsidered for additional 

hump removal after one year. A new request must be submitted to have a segment receive 
consideration for additional removal. Each phase is subject to the same requirements, 
policies, and procedures in effect at the time of the request, and requires separate and 
independent petitionapplications. 

 
E. Funding Criteria 

 
1. Funds for speed hump removal will be determined by prorating total available funding 

between number of humps eligible for installation and number of humps eligible for 
removal. 

 
2. Selection of humps funded for removal will be on a first come basis, based on the date of 

receipt of the completed petitionapplication. 
 

F. Cost Responsibility 
 

1.  The City is responsible for all costs associated with removal of speed humps under this 
process. Removal will occur during the regularly scheduled speed hump construction cycles. 
Private funding of approved removal is possible with 75% support for review. 

 
2. If a request for removal is denied, the segment may not be reconsidered for at least two 

years unless there is a substantial change in conditions. If any request for removal is not 
funded after five funding cycles, the request expires. Subsequent requests to consider 
removal will follow the defined process for removal in effect at the same time of the 
request. Each request requires separate and independent petitionapplications. 

 
V. Design Standards, Construction, and Maintenance 
 

A. The Public Works Director shall prepare and maintain current design standards and installation 
and removal procedures for speed humps in accordance with this policy. 

 
B. Design and construction or removal of the speed humps and associated pavement markings and 

signs will be the responsibility of the Public Works Director. 
 
D.C. The City Public Works Department will maintain the speed humps and all related 

features. 
 



Appendix A 
 

A- 1 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program 
         2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595-3310 Fax (832) 595-3311 
 
 

General Description 
 
The speed hump is a gentle rise and fall of pavement surface placed in the roadway to reduce the speed 
of vehicles. Speed humps have proven to be successful in reducing speed while allowing safe operation 
of the vehicle. 
 
The following is a summary of the process for speed hump allocation and installation. 
 

Step One: Request for Study 
 
A request can be made by either a neighborhood or business association, by a single resident or a group 
of residents, property owner, or by a business located on the street requesting speed humps. Each 
request must include a name, address and phone number of a resident from the requested street who 
agrees to be the contact person. The contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible 
for gathering evidence of support. Each contact person must acknowledge designation by signing the 
request. Written requests should be submitted to the City Manager at the above address. An application 
form can be obtained from the City Manager. A request may not automatically be withdrawn from 
consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
The request must be for a specific street segment and should include at least the following information: 
 

 The requested street name 

 The boundary of the street segment 

 Name of contact person 

 Address of contact person 

 Daytime phone number and cell phone number of contact person 

 E-mail address of contact person 

 Signature of contact person 
 
Do not submit petitionapplications or other evidence of support with your request. PetitionApplications 
or letters of support gathered prior to the eligibility determinations without the preliminary placement 
maps will not be accepted. Requests will be evaluated on a biannual schedule (page A-3), however the 
schedule and process do not preclude the City Manager from installing warranted speed humps when 
and where it is deemed necessary outside the procedures of this program. 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix A 
 

A- 2 

 

 

Step Two: Level of Support 
 
After receipt of the Request for Study, If the City Manager determines the street to be eligible, the City 
Manager will provide preliminary placement maps to the contact person. The contact person is 
encouraged to gather and present support from the community in the form of applications from 
residents, property owners, or businesses facing or having lot frontage on the street segment on which a 
speed hump is proposed to be located. There must be at least 75% of the property owners and residents 
within the application area in support of the installation request. 
 
Applications or letters of support gathered without the preliminary placement maps will not be 
considered. 
 
Submission of the required community support documentation does not guarantee the request will 
meet the established eligibility criteria, nor does it guarantee the request will ultimately be approved, 
funded, or speed humps installed.  
 

Step Threewo: Eligibility 
 
In order for a request to qualify for consideration, the street must meet criteria set by the City Manager. 
It is the responsibility of the Public Works Director to conduct traffic studies to determine if the street 
segment meets the following criteria: 
 

 The street may not be classified as an Arterial or a Collector. 

 The street may not be designated Primary Emergency Response Route. 

 There must be no more than one moving lane of traffic in each direction. 

 The street must have a speed limit of 30 mph or less. 

 The street must be paved prior to construction of the speed humps. 

 The sum of traffic volumes for both directions must be less than 5,000 vehicles per day and 
more than 500 vehicles per day. 

 The measured 85th percentile speed must exceed the prima facie speed limit by 5 miles per hour 
or more in a 24-hour study OR there must be twohree or more reported speed related accidents 
within the street segment during the last twelve months of recorded data. 

 
Other factors such as, but not limited to, alignments, grades and sight distances may also be evaluated. 
 
Only those requests meeting all the eligibility requirements will proceed. If a request is denied, 
applicants will not be able to reapply to the speed hump program for the following two years unless 
there is considerable change in conditions. 
 
All traffic counts will be scheduled during regular commuter periods unless a specific weekend problem 
is noted in the request. 
 

Step Three: Level of Support 
 



Appendix A 
 

A- 3 

 

If the City Manager determines the street to be eligible, the City Manager will provide preliminary 
placement maps to the contact person. The contact person is encouraged to gather and present support 
from the community in the form of petitions from residents, landowners or businesses facing or having 
lot frontage on the street segment on which a speed hump is proposed to be located. There must be at 
least 75% of the landowners within the petition area in support of the installation request. 
 
Petitions or letters of support gathered prior to the eligibility determinations without the preliminary 
placement maps will not be considered. 
 

Step Four: Speed Hump Location 
 
It is the responsibility of the Public Works Director to determine the final location of all speed humps in 
accordance with current engineering principles, however: 
 

 Speed humps will usually be placed between 300 feet to 500 feet apart. 

 A speed hump shall not be located in front of a driveway or within an intersection. 

 Speed humps should not be located within 200 feet of a traffic signal or a STOP sign, or within 
50 feet of an uncontrolled intersection. 

 
Step Five: Prioritization 
 
The Public Works Director will prioritize requests according to the following ranking criteria: 
 

 Average Daily Traffic 

 Speeding 

 Automobile Accident 

 Auto/Pedestrian or Auto/Bicycle Accident 

 Community Development 

 Institution 

 Absence of Sidewalks 
 

Step Six: Funding 
 
An annual budget will be established for construction of approved projects. Projects will be scheduled 
for construction by priority ranking as funding permits within the established budget. 
 
Projects may be completed, out of ranking order, if alternative funds become available or if 
complementing maintenance and/or capital improvement projects are initiated during the year. 
 
Approved projects that do not receive funding in the current year will be automatically considered for 2 
additional years. All projects will be re-prioritized by ranking on a biannual basis. 
 
An eligible project may be expedited if the applicants choose to pay for 100% of the estimated cost of 
the installation. Expedited projects will be constructed no later than the next fiscal year following 
deposit of funding. 



Appendix A 
 

A- 4 

 

 
 

Speed Hump Program Schedule 
 
Process Step                Round “A”      Round “B” 

Deadline for request submission April 1 October 1 

Planning and eligibility determinations 
completed by City Manager, Preliminary 
placement maps and petitionapplication 
forms prepared by City Manager 

June 1 December 1 

Final date to submit evidence of support August 1 February 1 

Ranking of eligible requests for City 
funding 

September 1 March 1 

Construction begins on approved projects October April 



 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program 
         2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595-3310 Fax (832) 595-3311 
 

For policy Effective ____________ 

Request for Speed Hump Study 
The following is a request for a speed hump study. Please feel free to submit this form as a formal request. Each 
request must contain the completed information as indicated in both Part A and Part B. The request will be 
processed according to the procedures detailed in the Speed Hump Program Policies and Procedures. 
 
A. Street Study Information 
Each request must provide the name of the street on which a study is requested, and the boundaries of the street 
segment. Traffic studies will be conducted only within the boundaries indicated. Please use streets for boundary 
limits, not block ranges. 
 Requested Street:        
 
 
 From:         
  
 
 To:         
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Contact Person Information 
Each request must provide a contact person who lives on the requested street within the study area boundary. The 
contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible for gathering evidence of support when 
requested. 
 
Name:           
 
Address:          
 
 
City:     Zip Code:            Daytime Ph #:    
   
 
 
Cell Ph#:                                                                                      E-Mail Address:  
 
I agree to be the contact person for the above request. I understand that a request may not automatically be 
withdrawn from consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
Signature of Applicant:          Date:   

 
 
 

A-54 



Appendix B 

B - 1 

 

 
Recount Policy 

 
I. Traffic count data that is reviewed and believed to be questionable or invalid by the public works staff 

for any of the reasons listed below will be scheduled for a recount. This recount will occur as soon as 
possible and preferably within the current funding round, unless circumstances indicate otherwise. 

 
II. Segments that have been determined ineligible due to traffic data may be re-evaluated upon written 

request, by conducting another traffic survey. Those segments receiving approval to be reevaluated 
will be reassigned from their original application cycle to the next available application cycle. The 
reassigned requests will conform to the policies and procedures in effect for that funding cycle. 

 
III. Citizen initiated requests for recounts must be submitted in writing. These letters should clearly 

express specific reasons why the original count should be considered invalid. If approved, these 
recounts will be scheduled during the following funding round. 

 
IV. If it is determined through engineering judgment that the original count did not represent normal 

conditions and the recount does represent normal conditions, then the data gathered by the recount 
will be used to evaluate the need for speed humps. 

 
 A. The following presents some of the valid reasons to authorize a recount: 
 

1. Incomplete or missing data. 
2. Unusually high or low 85th percentile speeds. 
3. Failure or malfunction of the counting equipment. 
4. Relatively large proportions of large vehicles (trucks, buses, etc.) to passenger cars in 

the data. 
5. Relatively high percentages of “unknown” or “other” vehicle classifications in the data. 
6. Counter deployed at times and/or locations other than those specified by the 

requestor. 
7. Counter deployed during non-school times at locations influence by school traffic. 
8. Vandalism or deliberate influence. (This aspect is discussed in more detail below). 
9. Other similar considerations. 

 
B. The following reasons require additional records or field research before a recount can be 

authorized: 
 

1.  Counter deployed at a location typically bypassed by a significant portion of traffic. 
2. Counter deployed relatively close to a traffic control device (STOP sign, traffic signals, 

etc.) a horizontal or vertical curve, or other physical feature that could be reasonably 
expected to influence motorists’ behavior on the subject street segment. 

3. Construction or maintenance activities occurring in the vicinity of the deployed 
counter that can be reasonably expected to influence travel patterns on the subject 
street segment. 

4. Counter deployed during a special even that can be reasonably expected to influence 
travel patterns on the subject street segment. 

5. Counters deployed at or near school bus stops, commercial loading zones, frequent 
on-street parking locations, and other similar locations that can be reasonably 



Appendix B 

B - 2 

 

expected to influence travel patterns and/or motorists’ behavior on the subject street 
segment. 

6. Speed humps or other mitigation devices installed on adjacent streets after the 
original study that can be reasonably expected to influence travel patterns on the 
subject street segment. 

7. Physical modification of the roadways (reconstruction, overlays, traffic signals, etc.) 
changes in land use (apartments, shopping centers, theaters, etc.) and other similar 
factors that can be reasonably expected to influence travel patterns on the subject 
street segment. 

  8. Other similar considerations.  
 
 C. The following are generally considered invalid reasons to authorize a recount: 
 

1. Fear of accidents or incidents occurring. 
2. Recent accidents or incidents that are not part of a discernible patter of occurrence.  

Only those accidents or incidents reported to Rosenberg Police Department or other 
comparable public agency will be considered in determining if a trend exists. 

3. Unspecified doubt in the validity of the study. 
4. Requests for recounts to be conducted during a specified time period that can 

reasonably be considered part of a special event. 
5. Unsupported allegations of traffic patterns being deliberately and significantly 

influenced by individuals or groups. 
6. Other similar considerations. 

 
V. Traffic count locations that are vandalized (tubes disconnected or cut, counter damaged or stolen, 

etc.) or deliberately influenced (vehicles parked on or near tubes, multiple passes across tubes, etc.) 
will be recounted in the following manner: 

 
A. A first recount will occur automatically. Consideration will be given to moving the counter to a 

more secure location. 
 

B. If the counter is vandalized or deliberately influenced during the first recount, the study will be 
suspended and the requester contacted and informed of the adverse occurrence. A second 
recount will be authorized only if assurances are secured from the requester that a resident of 
the street segment will closely monitor the counter. If no assurances are received, then the 
request is considered ineligible and may not be reconsidered for two years. 

 
C. If the counter is vandalized or deliberately influenced during the second recount, then the 

request is considered ineligible and may not be reconsidered for two years. 
 
 

 
 
 



Appendix C 
 

C - 1 

 

 
PLACEMENT OF SPEED HUMP WARNING SIGNS POLICY 

 
 
I. Speed hump warning signs shall be required to warn motorists of the presence of speed humps 

along a street segment. However, due to aesthetic consideration of the neighborhoods in which 
they are erected, the number of signs installed shall be minimized where possible. 

 
II. The general design, layout, and placement of the speed hump warning sign assemblies shall be 

in conformance with the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD), latest 
version. 

 
III. The following guidelines shall be considered when locating and installing these signs. 
 

A. A speed hump warning sign shall be installed in advance of the first speed hump in the 
segment for each direction of travel. No other speed hump warning signs mayshall be 
required for motorists traveling along the segment provided adequate warning is given 
to motorists prior to their entering the segment. 

 
B. The installation of speed hump warning signs at or in advance of each speed hump along 

the subject segment shall not be required other than as described herein. 
 

C. If a new segment of speed humps is installed abutting an existing segment, the two 
segments may be considered as one segment and signed as a single segment. Existing 
signs may be removed so as to incorporate the two segments into a single segment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix D 
 

D - 1 

 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program - 
REMOVAL 

        2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   
Phone (832) 595-3310 Fax (832) 595-3311 

  

General Description 
 
The speed hump is a gentle rise and fall of pavement surface placed in the roadway to reduce the speed 
of vehicles. Speed humps have proven to be successful in reducing speed while allowing safe operation 
of the vehicle. However, citizens who believe the humps are not required along a street for various 
reasons may request the humps be considered for removal. The following is a summary of the process 
for speed hump removal. 
 

Step One: Request for a Removal Study 
 
A request can be made by either a neighborhood or business association, by a single resident or a group 
of residents, or by a business located on the street requesting speed humps. Each request must include 
a name, address and phone number of a resident from the requested street who agrees to be the 
contact person. The contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible for gathering 
evidence of support. Each contact person must acknowledge designation by signing the request. Written 
requests should be submitted to the City Manager at the above address. An application form can be 
obtained from the City Manager. A request may not automatically be withdrawn from consideration 
once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for removal of speed humps. 
 
The request must be for a specific street segment and should include at least the following information: 
 

 The requested street name 

 The boundary of the street segment 

 Name of contact person 

 Address of contact person 

 Daytime phone number and cell phone number of contact person 

 E-mail address of contact person 

 Signature of contact person 
 
Do not submit petitionapplications or other evidence of support with your request. PetitionApplications 
or letters of support gathered prior to the eligibility determinations without the preliminary placement 
maps will not be accepted. Requests will be evaluated on a biannual schedule (page D-3), however the 
schedule and process do not preclude the City Manager from removing speed humps when and where it 
is deemed necessary outside the procedure of this program. 
 
 
 



Appendix D 
 

D - 2 

 

 
 
 

Step Two: Eligibility 
 
In order for a request to qualify for consideration, the street must meet criteria set by the Public Works 
Director: 

 The request must not be a duplicate request. 

 The removal segment must correspond with the installation segment. 

 The speed humps must have been in place for at least one year. 
 
Only those requests meeting all the eligibility requirements will proceed. If a request is denied, 
applicants will not be able to reapply to the Speed Hump Removal Program for the following two years 
unless there is considerable change in conditions. 
 
All traffic counts will be scheduled during regular commuter periods unless a specific weekend problem 
is noted in the request. 

 
Step Three: Level of Support 
 
If the City Manager determines the speed humps along a street segment to be eligible for removal 
consideration, the City Manager will provide existing location maps to the contact person. The contact 
person is encouraged to gather and present support from the community in the form of 
petitionapplication(s) (which are provided by the City Manager) from residents, property landowners, or 
businesses facing or having lot frontage on the street segment where speed humps are being considered 
for removal. There must be at least 75% evidence of support for review to further the process. Requests 
with either no petitionapplication or with an petitionapplication that does not account for all properties 
will be considered incomplete and will not further in the process. 
 
PetitionApplications or letters of support gathered prior to the removal eligibility determinations 
without the existing location maps will not be considered. 

 
Step Four: Removal Consideration Factors 
 
The removal application process does not invite nor accept recommendations from requestors regarding 
which speed humps should or should not be removed. Based on engineering judgment, the results of 
the review process may recommend removal of none, some, or all of the speed humps. Factors that are 
considered for review may include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Existing speed hump locations and spacing 

 STOP/YIELD signs or traffic signals along the segment 

 Historical and existing traffic speed and volume information 

 Accident History 

 Presence or absence of sidewalks, schools and parks 
 



Appendix D 
 

D - 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Step Five: Funding 
 
Funds for speed hump removal will be determined by prorating total available funding between number 
of humps eligible for installation and number of humps eligible for removal. Selection of humps funded 
for removal will be on a first come basis, based on the date of receipt of the completed 
petitionapplication. Removal will occur during the regularly scheduled speed hump construction cycles. 
Private funding of approved removal is possible with 75% support for review. 
 

Speed Hump Removal Program Schedule 
 

Process Step      Round “A”  Round “B” 

Deadline for removal request submission April 1 October 1 
Planning and eligibility determinations 
completed by City Manager, PetitionApplication 
area maps and petitionapplication forms 
prepared by City Manager 

May 1 November 1 

Final date to submit evidence of support July 1 January 1 

Ranking of eligible requests for City Funding September 1 March 1 
Construction begins on approved projects October April 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

City of Rosenberg 
 

Speed Hump Program - REMOVAL 
       2110 4th Street Rosenberg, TX 77471   

Phone (832) 595-3310 Fax (832) 595-3311 
   

For policy effective ____________ 

Request for Removal Study 
 
This is a request for removing speed humps. Please feel free to submit this form as a formal request. Each request 
must contain the completed information as indicated in both Part A and Part B. The request will be processed 
according to the procedures detailed in the Speed Hump Program Policies and Procedures. 
 
A. Street Study Information 
Each request must provide the name of the street on which a study is requested, and the boundaries of the street 
segment. Traffic studies will be conducted only within the boundaries indicated. Please use streets for boundary 
limits, not block ranges. 
 Requested Street:        
 
 
 From:         
  
 
 To:         
 
 
 
 
 
B. Contact Person Information 
Each request must provide a contact person who lives on the requested street within the study area boundary. The 
contact person will receive all correspondence and be responsible for gathering evidence of support when 
requested. 
 
Name:           
 
Address:          
 
 
City:     Zip Code:            Daytime Ph #:    
   
 
 
Cell Ph#:                                                                                      E-Mail Address:  
 
I agree to be the contact person for the above request. I understand that a request may not automatically be 
withdrawn from consideration once a traffic study determines the street to be eligible for speed humps. 
 
Signature of Applicant:          Date:   

 
 
 
 

D-4 



Appendix E 
 

E - 1 

 

 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
City Engineer: the City Engineer or designated representatives. 
 
City Manager: the City Manager or designated representatives. 
 
Institution: a park or school that could reasonably be anticipated to generate volumes of pedestrian 
traffic. 
 
Arterial or Collector: any street designated respectively as an Arterial or Collector on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Primary Emergency Response Route: any street segment designated by Rosenberg Police Department 
or Rosenberg Fire Department as an emergency access route. 
 
Public Works Director: the Public Works Director or designated representatives. 
 
Residential: any single family residence, townhouse, duplex, triplex, quadruplex, condominium, or 
apartment complex or any other structures used as dwelling units. 
 
Speed Hump: a geometric design feature of a roadway, consisting of a raised area in the roadway 
pavement surface extending transversely across the travel way, whose primary purpose is to reduce the 
speed of vehicles traveling along that roadway. The base of the hump varies in width and gradually 
slopes to a maximum height of approximately 3 to 4 inches. Speed Cushions and Speed Tables may also 
be utilized for this purpose. 
 
Speed Criteria: the speed which is 5 miles per hour (mph) over the posted or prima facie speed limit for 
a given street. 
 
85th percentile speed: the measured speed at or below which 85% of vehicles are traveling. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Appendix F 
 

F - 1 

 

 

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION  
NOTIFICATION/EVIDENCE OF SUPPORT PETITIONAPPLICATION 

 
We, the undersigned homeowners, residents, business owners, or property owners of ____________________________________________ Subdivision, located 
___________________________________________ request that the City of Rosenberg install speed humps in our subdivision, at locations approved by the City 
Manager. We understand that this petitionapplication only represents our desire for speed humps and does not warrant or guarantee their installation. It is 
further understood that all in the affected area as defined by the City Manager must complete this form, by affixing the date, their address, whether renter or 
owner, name, signature, and whether support installation or not on the list below. All submitted names are subject to verification. 
 
Speed humps will more than likely cause: modification in traffic speeds and volumes; increased levels of noise at the hump locations; aesthetic changes to 
the subdivision streets due to the speed humps, and the associated signs and pavement markings; and impacts on street maintenance and emergency vehicle 
response times. 
 
Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation 

Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

 



Appendix F 
 

F - 2 

 

Notification/Evidence of Support PetitionApplication 
 

Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation 

Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

 
DO NOT SIGN this PETITIONAPPLICATION if you have NOT READ the front page of this PETITIONAPPLICATION. 
 
Please do not use any other form. This sheet may be reproduced if necessary.  



Appendix G 
 

G - 1 

 

 

SPEED HUMP REMOVAL 
NOTIFICATION/EVIDENCE OF SUPPORT PETITIONAPPLICATION 

 
We, the undersigned homeowners, residents, business owners, or property owners of ____________________________________________ Subdivision, located 
__________________________________________ request that the City of Rosenberg remove speed humps in our subdivision, at locations approved by the City 
Manager. We understand that this petitionapplication only represents our desire for removal of speed humps and does not warrant or guarantee their removal. 
It is further understood that all in the affected area as defined by the City Manager must complete this form, by affixing the date, their address, whether renter 
or owner, name, signature, and whether support removal or not on the list below. All submitted names are subject to verification. 
 
Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date Address 

Renter 
or 

Owner 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Installation 

Support 
Yes 

Installation 
Support 

No 

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

 



Appendix G 
 

G - 2 

 

Notification/Evidence of Support PetitionApplication 
 

Please list only one signature per residence/property owner/business owner. 
 

 
Date Address 

Renter 
or 

Owenr 

Name 
(Printed) 

Signature 
Removal 
Support 

Yes 

Removal 
Support 

No 

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

  
 

     

 
DO NOT SIGN this PETITIONAPPLICATION if you have NOT READ the front page of this PETITIONAPPLICATION. 
 
Please do not use any other form. This sheet may be reproduced if necessary. 

 



PAGE 3 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive Summary

regarding the FY2015 Street Right-Of-Way tree trimming contract.

Questions/Comments:
C: A lot of street lights are hindered by the overgrowth of tree limbs. This would be a valuable 
program to keep our streets well lit. Current procedure is reactive to complaints versus 
proactive to avoid complaints, non-compliance, and liability.
Q: Has there been talk about waste removal and recycling of tree limbs?
A: We will have to discuss this with the contractor, and see if we would have a space to store a 
stockpile for residents to use for their fireplaces if they desire.
Q: Since five months is enough time for this contractor to address the trees in a given district,
then could a second district be taken care of in the same year?
A: That is possible, but we would still need to discuss this with the contractors to determine the 
amount of time needed and analyze the available funding.
Q: Is the clearance of 12’ and 15’ feet in the technical specifications established by the 
Uniform Traffic Code, or is that a clearance that we set?
A: There is a minimum clearance amount, but we are trying to go a little bit higher to elongate 
the effectiveness of the program.

� The general consensus of Council was to go out for bid, but not ask the contractor to 
provide wood and debris for public consumption, as most companies recycle the 
product internally through mulch or firewood in order to keep their costs down, resulting 
in a lower bid.

� No action was taken on the item.

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to allow City Council the 
opportunity to review and discuss the proposed speed hump installation and removal policy 
and procedures.

Based on previous direction from City Council, staff has prepared policies and procedures 
regarding installation and removal of speed humps. Key points of the policy include:

� Speed hump installation request process
� Criteria to determine if a street is eligible for consideration of speed hump installation
� Notification/evidence of support criteria for property owners along segments of streets 

under consideration
� Speed hump location criteria
� Funding criteria
� Speed hump removal request process
� Design  standards, construction and maintenance criteria
� Standardized forms

The policy includes a step-by-step procedure that defines the process beginning with the initial 
request from a citizen, all the way through the review and final determination that may, or may 
not, support the installation of speed humps based on criteria that will be applied equally to all 
requests.     

Should City Council direct staff to move forward, the Speed Hump Policies and Procedures will 
be placed on a future City Council Agenda for action.  

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services presented the proposed Traffic 

Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedures.
� After discussion by Council, the following changes were requested:

o Add or modify the form to require both the renter and the landlord to sign the 
form.

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 4 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

o The petition should be done first and then the traffic study to determine need.
o Change the forms from “petition” to “application” and add a date line for 

signatures.
� Scott Tschirhart, Attorney for the City stated clarification of authority of the City 

Manager is needed to more clearly define the City Manager’s authority to determine 
the area included or the location of the speed hump of the affected properties.

� Councilor McConathy asked for clarification under the “Notification/Evidence Support” 
to the wording to better describe the placement information.

� The general consensus of Council was for staff to bring the item back with the changes 
as discussed.

� No action was taken on the item.

4. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 6, ARTICLES 
XVI AND XVII, REGARDING PARKING LOT AND SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DWELLING 
STANDARDS, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item addresses a number of issues in Chapter 6 that have 
been discussed over a relatively long period of time.  Staff believed the best approach would 
be to cover them all in one Agenda item since all proposed amendments are found under the 
same Chapter.  Should City Council direct staff to move forward, one (1) Ordinance addressing 
all of the proposed amendments described below could be placed on a future Agenda for 
City Council’s consideration.

Over the last several months, the Planning Commission (Commission) and City Council have at 
different times discussed a number of possible amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of 
Ordinances.  Chapter 6 relates to Building and Building Regulations and the proposed 
amendments in particular would address Parking Lot and Single-Family Residential Dwelling 
Standards (Articles XVI and XVII, respectively).  An overview of the proposed amendments, and 
draft revisions to the Ordinance were included in the agenda packet for City Council’s 
consideration.

On April 22, 2014, City Council directed staff to research and discuss with the Commission the 
regulation of parking in residential yards as well as outside display of merchandise.  These items 
were discussed by the Commission on May 21, 2014, and the Commission recommended 
approval of amendments to the City’s existing ordinances on these matters on June 18, 2014.  
The ordinance amendments in question are similar to the City of Sugar Land’s ordinance (as 
directed by City Council) and generally provide for the following:

� No parking of vehicles in residential front yards except on improved surfaces or 
preexisting unimproved driveways;

� Strict limitations on outside display of merchandise (i.e., 25’ setback from right-of-way, 
not located in parking areas, owned by the owner or lessee of the property, and not 
greater than ten (10) percent of the building area), with the exception of certain types 
of merchandise such as landscaping materials and vehicles.

Further, on July 16, 2014, the Commission received a presentation from the Texas Masonry 
Council explaining the benefits of masonry planning policies or ordinances requiring a minimum 
percentage of masonry on residential and/or nonresidential structures.  The Commission had 
previously expressed interest in such policies, noting the amount of HardiPlank siding on homes 
in new subdivisions and concerns regarding maintenance.  Among the benefits of masonry 
planning policies that were discussed were that masonry products generally are lower 
maintenance, result in increased home values, are more durable, and provide for more 
predictability of development or architectural control.  That being said, on October 15, 2014, 
the Commission recommended approval to City Council of an Ordinance Amendment that 
would require homes on lots platted after the effective date of the Ordinance to generally 
have a minimum of seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior.  Staff has further refined the 
proposed amendment to seventy-five (75) percent masonry exterior for one (1) story structures 
and fifty (50) percent for two (2) stories and above.  If adopted, this would not apply to existing 
subdivisions or to homes built in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ); it would only apply to homes 
constructed in future developments within the City.

reneel
Rectangle



• 

• 
5. 

• 

Livable Centers Case Study (Study) for the U.S. gOA corridor. The purpose of the Study is to facilitate a 
revitalization plan for the Highway gOA corridor through Rosenberg .. 

The H-GAC Board of Directors has approved a contract with Morris Architects to facilitate the 
Rosenberg/U.S 90A Livable Centers Study. Representatives of Morris Architects will attend the 
meeting to brief City Council on the Study and answer any questions regarding same. 

Key discussion points: 
• Randall Malik, Economic Development Director gave an overview of the item. 
• Armandina Chapa with Morris Architects provided City Council with a brief on the Study and 

was available to answer questions. 

Questions: 
Q: Who will fund the Livable Centers Study? 
A: The Rosenberg Development Corporation, Houston Galveston Area Council and West Fort Bend 
Management District. 
Q: With one-way streets how will we go to the public? How often will we get a status report? 
A: With a Workshop to involve stakeholders and clients and through utility bills and the website. 
Q: It needs to be reiterated what Livable Centers are so we can get good input. 
A: Yes, that will be done and the northern boundary is the railroad track and Avenue H. 
Q: What are Livable Centers? 
A: Livable Centers are walk able, mixed-use places that provide multi modal transportation options, 
improve environmental quality and promote economic developments. If there is accessible retail to 
shoppers you keep people from driving so far. 
Q: How does this intertwine with our Comprehensive Plan? 
A: We wrote our Comprehensive Plan at the overall transportation plan and with new development but 
there will be coordination on this plan. 
Q: We don't want Avenue H and I to be a direct route for all the traffic to come through Rosenberg. 
When will this stop, when you reach Task 6 is it over then? 
A: The proposal we wrote does not want people to just speed thorough Rosenberg. 
Q: Are you aware we are going to have buses going through? 
A: Yes. 
Q: Does it incorporate all of gOA? 
A: This boundary was defined but they will look beyond the boundaries of Avenue H. 

• No action was taken on the item. 

REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PROPOSED INSTALLATION OF POLE MOUNTED RADAR SPEED 
SIGNS ON CERTAIN STREETS WITHIN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY. 
Executive Summary: This Agenda item was requested to allow City Council an opportunity to discuss 
potential locations for the installation of pole mounted radar speed signs, and to direct staff accordingly. 
The following three (3) locations were submitted by Councilor Benton for consideration: 

1. Grunwald Heights Boulevard; 
2. Wagon Wheel Lane; and, 
3. Walnut Glen Lane in the Oaks of Rosenberg. 

Additionally, staff has identified the following four (4) locations for such signage at the recommendation 
of the Police Department: 

4. Lane Drive; 
5. Southgate Drive; 
6. Jones Street; and, 
7. J. Meyer Road. 

The equipment cost is approximately $3,800.00 per sign. The labor and equipment to install and 
maintain each sign is provided by the Public Works Department. 

Key discussion points: 
• Discussion was held regarding the proposed installation of pole mounted radar on the streets 

as outlined in the Executive Summary and if funding is available the addition of Callendar 
Street and Elizabeth Street. 

• Councilor Grigar expressed concern regarding no criteria for these devices and stressed the 

PAGE 4 of6 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

sherrin
Rectangle



• 

• 

• 

need to outline a criterion. 
• Councilor Barta stated she would like to visit with the citizens on Wagon Wheel Lane and the 

two roads that lead out to Spacek Road. Residents in the Oaks of Rosenberg want speed 
humps and officer presence . 

Questions: 
Q: What were the recommendations the Police Department made for the signs based on? 
A: Some were cut through roads, such as Southgate and Lane Drive. There is a high volume of 
pedestrian traffic and school zone. There are a lot of traffic complaints in this area. 
Q: Who should these people call to complain? 
A: They should call Citizens Relations and the Police Department. 
Q: What criteria are speed humps based on? 
A: We have to have the HOA's permission. Other items such as distance from the intersection, etc, has 
to be considered. 

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Barta to approve installation of pole 
mounted radar speed signs on Grunwald Heights Boulevard, Wagon Wheel Lane, Walnut Glen Lane in 
the Oaks of Rosenberg, Lane Drive, Jones Street, Brooks Street, and Callendar Street. 

Further discussion: 
• Joyce Vasut, Executive Director of Administrative Services stated we have some funding for 

traffic calming ($30,OOO). We have spent approximately $8,000. Fourteen signs at $4,000 each 
will cost $56,000. There is $21,000 currently in the budget. 

• Robert Gracia, City Manager stated staff will have to come back with a budget adjustment 
before we can do this. 

Upon voting - Yeses: Mayor Pro Tem McConathy, Councilors Benton and Pena. No: Councilor 
Grigar. Abstention: Councilor Barta. 

Further discussion: 
• Councilor Grigar stated he would vote for it if it were amended and some sort of generic criteria 

added. 

Amended Motion: Councilor Grigar amended the motion, seconded by Councilor Barta to add criteria 
for the areas and for all future radar signs. The motion carried by a unanimous vote. 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1877, A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN 
ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR BRIDGE REPLACEMENT OR REHABILITATION OFF 
THE STATE SYSTEM, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE STATE OF TEXAS, ACTING BY 
AND THROUGH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, REGARDING A PROJECT 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS REPLACEMENT OF THE W. FAIRGROUNDS ROAD BRIDGE OVER 
SEABOURNE CREEK. 
Executive Summary: Recently, the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) submitted 
documentation regarding replacement of the W. Fairgrounds Road bridge over Seabourne Creek 
utilizing the "Off-System Bridge Replacement Program" (Program). City Council previously approved 
Resolution No. R-1843 on August 19, 2014, and Resolution No. R-1855 on September 02, 2014, 
authorizing participation in the Program and to utilize the "PartiCipation Waived" form of project 
agreement. The local "Participation Waived" project will consist of the improvements to add drainage 
capacity to the Louise Street bridge over Dry Creek. 

The Advanced Funding Agreement, attached as Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1877, should now be 
the last document required to formalize the bridge replacement project. 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1877, which will authorize the City Manager to execute 
the Advance Funding Agreement for Bridge Replacement of Rehabilitation Off the State System for 
replacement of the W. Fairgrounds Road bridge over Seabourne Creek . 

Key discussion points: 
• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive Summary. 

PAGE 5 of6" REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES" NOVEMBER 18, 2014 

sherrin
Rectangle



Main Street Program was indentified in the Economic Development Strategic Plan. Staff has submitted a

Letter of Intent to apply for the Main Street designation, and now seeks direction on moving forward with the
application process.

The deadline to apply for the Texas Main Street Program is July 31, 2014. The application process involves
coordination between the business community, City staff, and downtown stakeholders.   Staff recommends
approval to move forward with the application process.

Key discussion points:
Randall Malik gave a brief overview of the item and introduced Debra Drescher, State Coordinator
for the Texas Main Street Program.

Debra Drescher provided a handout to Council and reviewed the program.

Questions/Comments:

Councilor McConathy asked who is responsible for the hiring and what that responsibility is.
Debra Drescher stated job descriptions can be provided. They carry out the public functions of the
program to focus on small business development, institute a calendar of events and oversee them.
It is what you want to get out of the program. You are the employee' s boss and they can report to
the Economic Development Director, Planning Director or City Manager. That decision is up to
Council.

Councilor McConathy asked if this has been presented to the Rosenberg Development Corporation
RDC).

Randall Malik stated this was discussed before he was here but it was part of the strategic plan for
the RDC.

Councilor McConathy stated there should have been some discussion for this.

Randall Malik explained this is an application process and is funded through RDC funds, City funds,
private funds and HOT tax. It is a combination of funds.

Councilor Benton asked what the salary would be and is the position strictly used for the Program.
Debra Drescher stated they could provide a suggested salary but there is not a set number. Yes,
they will do economic development and tourism work and support what is already setup.
Councilor BoIf stated she is excited about it and would like to know more regarding the cost and she
would like it to move forward.

Debra Drescher stated Brenham, LaGrange and Sealy are in the program and she suggested a
manager could come speak about the program to provide more detail.

Councilor Pena stated it is an excellent idea. He thinks the manager should be accountable to City
Council or the City Manager. It would go out into residential areas as well.
Randall Malik explained it is a commercial based program. A map highlighting the area was included
in the packet and a few residents would be in this.

Mayor Morales stated the Main Street Program is more flexible today. He has seen the results in
Brenham and LaGrange.

The general consensus of Council was to move forward and look at more detail of the program.
No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING POLICIES,  AND TAKE ACTION AS
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.

Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to allow City Council the opportunity to
discuss traffic calming measures that may be needed in certain areas to improve mobility safety by reducing
cut-through traffic and reduce excessive vehicular speeds on neighborhood streets.

Key discussion points:

Councilor Benton asked Council what direction they would like to take regarding this item.
Travis Tanner,  Executive Director Community Development explained the scope for the
Comprehensive Plan would look at the streets and the dates to back up the information for the
areas.

After a brief discussion by Council, Robert Gracia, City Manager recommended that during the

0
process of approving the Comprehensive Plan calming devices be looked at as a plan city wide and
what that study would provide.  The areas in the City that have been identified that are of concern
can be addressed immediately and we need to wait for the assessment of the entire City.
Mayor Morales stated he likes that plan.
No action was taken on the item.

PAGE 2 of 10* CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES* MAY 27, 2014

sherrin
Rectangle



 
 
 
 

ITEM 17 
 

Hold Executive Session to deliberate the 
employment, evaluation, and duties of Police 
Chief pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas 
Government Code. 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 18 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as 
necessary as a result of Executive Session. 



 

 
 
 

 
ITEM 19 

 
Announcements. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 20 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - REGULAR ONLY - 02-17-15
	2 - New Elevated Water Storage Tank Branding Discussion
	Presentation - FM 2977 Elevated Water Storage Tank Branding Recommendation 

	3 - Resolution No. R-1921 - Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services
	Resolution No. R-1921

	4 - Ordinance No. 2015-03 - General Municipal Election
	Ordinance No. 2015-03

	5 - Ordinance No. 2015-07-  City Charter Amendment Special Election
	Ordinance No. 2015-07

	6 - Resolution No. R-1904 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-01
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Kalkomey Correspondence without attachments - 02-09-15
	Resolution No. R-1904
	Project Location Map 
	Resolution No. R-1755 - 02-18-14 
	Rosenberg Business Park Development Agreement - 02-05-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-18-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-05-13

	7 - Resolution No. R-1905 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-02 for Construction of Rosenberg Business Park Lift Station Improvements
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Kalkomey Correspondence - 02-09-15 
	Resolution No. R-1905

	8 - Resolution No. R-1900 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-05 for Construction of Avenue H and Avenue I Water Line Relocation
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Kalkomey Correspondence - 02-09-15
	Resolution No. R-1900
	Project Location Map
	Resolution No. R-1801 - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 08-26-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-17-14

	9 - Rescinding Installation of Pole Mounted Radar Speed Signs - Wagon Wheel Lane and Walnut Glen Lane
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-18-14

	10 - Ordinance No. 2015-04 - Location of Stop Signs
	Ordinance No. 2015-04 - Redlined
	Ordinance No. 2015-04
	Location Map - Walnut Glen Lane at Spacek Road
	Location Map - Carlisle Street at Avenue D

	11 - Ordinance No. 2015-05 - Revised Speed Limit in Oaks of Rosenberg
	Ordinance No. 2015-05
	Location Map

	12 - Resolution No. R-1924 - Utility Development Agreement with ZED Partners, Ltd.
	Resolution No. R-1924
	Location Map

	13 - Resolution No. R-1925 - ZED Partners Drainage Agreement, Amendment No. 1
	Resolution No. R-1925
	Drainage Agreement - 02-07-12
	Location Map
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-07-12

	14 - Ordinance No. 2015-06 - Consent for MUD No. 144 Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2015
	Ordinance No. 2015-06
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 07-18-06
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-13-05
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-06-03 

	15 - Resolution No. R-1922 - Main Street Advisory Board Bylaws
	Resolution No. R-1922
	Main Street Advisory Board Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 01-22-15 

	16 - Resolution No. R-1923 - Traffic Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedures
	Resolution No. R-1923
	Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedures - Redlined
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-27-15
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-18-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-27-14

	17 - Hold Executive Session
	18 - Adjourn Executive Session
	19 - Announcements
	20 - Adjournment



